
Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

Wednesday, June 9, 2021 
Closed Session - 6:00 PM 
Regular Session - 7:00 PM 

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the 
Ralph M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely 

telephonically or by other electronic means. Pursuant to the Shelter-in-Place Orders issued by the San 
Mateo County Health Officer on March 16, 2020 and March 31,2020, the statewide Shelter-in-Place Order 
issued by the Governor in Executive Order N-33-20 on March 19, 2020, and the CDC’s social distancing 
guidelines which discourage large public gatherings, the Council Chamber will not be open to the public 

for this Town of Colma City Council Meeting. The purpose of these orders was to provide the safest 
environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing for public participation. 

Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer, 
the Zoom Meeting listed below: 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261 
Passcode: 074407 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
One tap mobile 
+16699006833,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (Houston) 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc 

Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting. Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you  

are commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of the 
emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


 
Page 2 of 3 

 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00PM 
1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor 

Negotiators. 
 

Agency Negotiator:   Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees:  All 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00PM 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 
• Introduction of new Human Resources Analyst Gioia Perez 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the May 26, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for May 2021. 
4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adopting the Salary Schedules in FY 2021-22. 
5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Agreements with the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level 

Rise Resiliency District for Maintenance of (1) a Portion of the Colma Creek Channel Known as the 
Bart Portion of the Creek; and (2) a Portion of the Colma Creek Channel Known as the “Old Colma 
Creek.” 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2021-22 Funded by SB 1: The 
Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

7. FY 2021-2022 BUDGET ADOPTION  
Consider: Resolution Appropriating Funds and Adopting the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 

STUDY SESSION 

8. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

REPORTS 
Mayor/City Council 
City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 



 
Page 3 of 3 

 

The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website  
www.colma.ca.gov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley, City Clerk at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 
Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators.

Agency Negotiator: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees: All 

This is a Closed Session item; there is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.26.21 Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Meeting Held Remotely via Zoom.us 

Wednesday, May 26, 2021 
Closed Session - 5:30 PM 

Regular Session - 7:00 PM 

CLOSED SESSION – 5:30PM 

1. In Closed Session under Government Code § 54957 – PUBLIC EMPLOYEE
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Title: City Manager

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL – 7:00 PM 

Mayor Diana Colvin called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
Gonzalez, Joanne F. del Rosario and John Irish Goodwin were all present.  
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police 
John Munsey, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, City Planner Michael Laughlin and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  
The Mayor announced, “Welcome to another of our completely remote Council Meeting. A 
few notes about tonight’s meeting: We are accepting public comments through email or the 
chat function—you can email our City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov or use the chat 
function to let her know which item you would like to speak on. Please keep your comments 
to 3 minutes or less. Thank you.” 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Mayor Colvin announced, “Direction was given to staff at the end of the closed session this 
evening.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. She 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded 
by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Item #2



Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.26.21 Page 2 of 3 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  

5 0 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:14 p.m. and seeing no one request to 
make a comment, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the May 12, 2021 Regular Meeting.

3. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with the County of San Mateo for Continued Provision of Animal Control Services
for a Five-Year Term Beginning on July 1, 2021.

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to approve the consent calendar items #2 and 3;
the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote:

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  

5 0 

STUDY SESSION 

4. FY 2021-2022 BUGET
City Manager Brian Dossy and Administrative Services Director Pak Lin presented the staff
report. Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:49 p.m. and seeing no one
come forward, the Mayor closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed.

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 05.26.21 Page 3 of 3 

5. SANITARY SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
Director of Public Works Brad Donohue and City Engineer Cyrus Kianpour presented the
staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 8:29 p.m. and seeing no
one come forward, the Mayor closed the public comment period. Council discussion
followed.

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, June 9, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. and it will be 
held remotely.  

REPORTS  

City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the following topics: 
 On June 9, 2021 at 5:00 p.m., we will raise the Philippine Flag in honor of Philippine

Independence Day; we will be joined by Mr. Neil Frank R. Ferrer, Consul General of the
Republic of the Philippines in San Francisco.

 There will be a Closed Session at 6:00 p.m. on June 9, 2021.
 Congratulations to Administrative Technician III Darcy De Leon on graduating from her

Master’s in Public Administration at San Francisco State University.
 Town Facilities will be closed on Monday, May 31 in observance of Memorial Day.
 City Manager and Chief of Police will be attending a conference in San Luis Obispo from

June 2-4, 2021.
 Rental assistance is available to San Mateo County residents who have experienced

financial hardship due to COVID-19. Staff is publicizing this program via the Town’s
newsletter and social media channels.

 Supervisor David Canepa is hosting a “Reopening of the State Celebration” on June 15,
2021 at 11:00 at Mike Nevin Way in unincorporated Colma, between 7684 and 7800 El
Camino Real.

ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Colvin adjourned the meeting at 8:51 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted,  

Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 





Item #3

































Staff Report re Adoption of FY 2021-22 Salary Schedules  Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: June 9, 2021 
SUBJECT: Adoption of FY 2021-22 Salary Schedules 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE SALARY SCHEDULES IN FY 2021-22 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In June 2020, CalPERS issued a Compliance Report on the Pay Schedule Review. The report 
requires all participating agencies to bring the pay schedule to their governing body for 
approval, in its entirety. The pay schedule presented as Exhibit A to the Resolution ratifies the 
pay ranges for all Town employees beginning with the June 27, 2021 pay period.  The rates are 
consistent with the pay schedule the City Council approved on January 13, 2021. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact in approving the salary schedules in FY 2021-22. The salary schedule 
are incorporated in the FY 2021-22 budget and projections.  

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

The Town maintains an updated pay schedule on the Town of Colma Human Resources’ 
webpage with each position and compensation modifications. The published salary schedule 
includes resolution numbers, approval dates, and effective dates. Prior to the June 2020 
CalPERS compliance report, the published salary schedule is updated with each City Council 
approved staffing change and pay modifications. The entire salary schedule is presented to the 
City Council as part of the labor negotiations approval. 

In November 2019, the CalPERS reviewed the Town’s pay schedule and contracts for 
compliance with Government Code section 20636. In the review, CalPERS found that the 
Town’s process for updating the pay schedule does not comply with the Government Code 
requirements for a publicly available pay schedule. In particular, CalPERS had informed staff, 
that the salary schedules themselves must be approved by the City Council, not just the 
components of said schedules. The final report from CalPERS was issued in June 2020.  

Item #4



Staff Report re Adoption of FY 2021-22 Salary Schedules  Page 2 of 2 

To comply with the CalPERS report and to ensure full transparency of the Town’s compensation 
plan, the pay schedule for FY 2021-22 is presented as Exhibit A to the Resolution. The 
presented pay schedule is the same schedule as the one presented and approved at the 
January 13, 2021 City Council Regular meeting.  

The next potential change to the attached pay schedule may be in October/November of 2021 
to update the Town’s minimum wage in order to remain in compliance with the State minimum 
wage.  

Reasons For the Recommended Action/Findings  

Ratifying the salary schedules for FY 2021-22 is required under Government Code section 
20636. It will also assist in the retirement process with CalPERS for Town employees. 

Council Adopted Values 

Ratification of the FY 2021-22 pay schedule is an example of the City Council’s integrity through 
enhancing transparency.   
 
CONCLUSION 

The pay schedule presented as Exhibit A to the Resolution reflects the pay schedule for all 
Town employees beginning June 27, 2021 and are the effective pay rates for FY 2021-22. The 
ratification of the salary schedules is to comply with Government Code section 20636.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution  
o Exhibit A: Pay Schedule Effective 06/27/2021 

 



Res 2021-##, Adoption of Salary Schedules in FY 2021-22 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE SALARY SCHEDULE FOR FY 2021-22 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows. 

1. Background

(a) Government Code sections 20636 and 7522.34 and CCR sections 570.5 and 571.1 state 
that payrates must be reported pursuant to a publicly available pay schedule that has been duly 
approved and adopted by the employer in accordance with applicable public meeting laws; 

(b) On January 13, 2021, the City Council approved Resolution 2021-03 to add Management 
Analyst I/II/III series to the compensation schedule and approved the entire pay schedule as 
attached as Exhibit A to Resolution 2021-03; 

(c) Exhibit A is a summary of City Council approved pay schedule in effect for all paydates after 
July 1, 2021 and is the same as Exhibit A to Resolution 2021-03. 

2. Findings and Order.

(a) The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby adopts the 2021/2022 salary schedule for 
Town employees attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, with an 
effective date of July 1, 2021.   In doing so, the City Council is modifying Resolution No. 2019-16 
approving cost of living increases and by this action will be maintaining the salaries as articulated 
in Exhibit “A” for the time period beginning July 1, 2021. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



Res 2021-##, Adoption of Salary Schedules in FY 2021-22 Page 2 of 2 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on June 9, 2021, by the following vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 
 
  
 

 



Town of Colma Pay Schedule (Effective Date @ June 27, 2021)

1 2 3 4 5 6

Position Title  Step 1  Step 2  Step 3  Step 4  Step 5  Step 6 
 Ord/Reso 
Number 

 Add'l 
Incentive  Payroll Ref 

Elected Officials (Monthly Compensation)

Mayor & City Council 961.00   ORD 784

Regular/Casual/Temporary Employees (hourly rate, compensated on a biweekly basis)

Accounting Technician 40.51  42.54  44.67  46.91  49.26  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8acct

Administrative Services Director 76.14  79.95  83.94  88.14  92.55  - Reso 2019-16 (11) 8acm

Administrative Technician I 37.81  39.71  41.70  43.77  45.96  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at1

Administrative Technician II 39.71  41.70  43.77  45.96  48.26  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at2

Administrative Technician III 39.71  41.70  43.77  45.96  48.26  50.67  Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at3

City Clerk 50.67  53.20  55.86  58.65  61.58  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8clrk1

City Manager 107.40   Reso 2019-57 (9) mgr

Community Service Officer 36.89  38.73  40.67  42.71  44.84  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8cso

Executive Assistant to Chief of Police 39.71  41.70  43.77  45.96  48.26  50.67  Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at3

Facility Attendant 17.73  18.61  19.54  20.52  -  -  Reso 2020-43 (11) 8fa

Human Resources Manager 55.51  58.29  61.20  64.26  67.47  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8hrm

Intern 17.00  19.00  21.00  23.00  25.00  Reso 2020-07 intr

Maintenance Technician I 36.98  38.82  40.76  42.80  44.94  - Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt1

Maintenance Technician II 38.82  40.76  42.80  44.94  47.19  - Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt2

Maintenance Technician III 38.82  40.76  42.80  44.94  47.19  49.56  Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt3

Management Analyst I 42.11  44.21  46.42  48.74  51.18  Reso 2021-03 (11) 8ma1

Management Analyst II 45.54  47.81  50.21  52.72  55.35  Reso 2021-03 (11) 8ma2

Management Analyst IIII 49.25  51.71  54.30  57.01  59.86  Reso 2021-03 (11) 8ma3

Police Chief 82.57  86.70  91.04  94.68  98.26  Reso 2020-32 (1)(11) chief

Police Commander 74.79  78.52  82.46  86.57  90.90  - Reso 2019-16 (1)(11) 8pcmd

Police Dispatcher / Clerk 46.15  47.44  48.72  50.00  51.27  - Reso 2019-15 (6)(4)(11) clerical

Police Dispatcher/Records Supervisor 55.62  57.16  58.72  60.26  61.81  - Reso 2019-15 (2)(4)(11) supervisor

Police Officer - Reserve 51.65  Ord 773 pdres

Police Officer 1 51.65  54.23  56.95  59.79  -  -  Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po1

Police Officer 2 53.71  56.40  59.22  62.19  -  -  Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po2

Police Officer 3 54.75  57.50  60.37  63.38  -  -  Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po3

Police Sergeant 1 65.47  66.82  68.20  71.97  -  -  Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt1

Police Sergeant 2 68.08  69.49  70.92  74.85  -  -  Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt2

Police Sergeant 3 69.38  70.82  72.28  76.30  -  -  Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt3

Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 47.21  49.57  52.05  54.66  57.38  - Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mts

Recreation Coordinator 36.87  38.72  40.66  42.68  44.81  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8recc

Recreation Leader 14.00  14.70  15.43  16.22  -  -  Reso 2020-43 (11) 8rl

Recreation Manager 44.07  46.27  48.58  51.02  53.56  - Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) recmgr

Senior Recreation Leader 17.73  18.61  19.54  20.52  -  -  Reso 2020-43 (11) 8rls

Student Aide 14.00  14.70  15.43  16.22  Reso 2020-07

Additional Incentive Summary of Effective Ordinance and Resolution
(1) Ord 773 Reinstatement of Reserve Officer Program - up to 4 Reserve Officers (Adopted 12/13/2017)

(2) Ord 784 City Council Compensation (Adopted 11/14/2018)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

Reso 2004-36 Establishment of Police Recruit Program - 95% of Police Officer Step 1 (5/12/2004)

Reso 2019-14 2% COLA for POA from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)

Reso 2019-15 2% COLA for CRA from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)

Reso 2019-16 2% COLA for Unrepresented from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)

Reso 2019-57 City Manager Contract Amendment 3 (Adopted 12/11/2019)

Reso 2020-07 Addition of Intern and Student Aide Classifications and Compensations (Adopted 2/26/2020) 

Reso 2020-32 Reclassify Chief of Police position from contract to appointed by City Manager (CC Mtg 7/8/2020) 

Reso 2020-43 Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff (CC Mtg 10/14/2020)

Reso 2021-03 Additional of Management Analyst I/II/III Series (CC Mtg 01/13/2021)

This position may receive a 2.5%  incentive for Back-up CAD Administrator

These positions may receive $120 per week stand-by pay

These positions receive an in kind uniform  allowance of $68.67 per pay period

This position receives a $300 monthly automobile allowance

These positions may received 5% out of class pay

These positions may receive retention pay (2.5% @ 10 years; 5.0% @ 20 years)

These positions receive a $1,025 per year uniform allowance 

This position receives a 5.0%  incentive for CAD Administrator

These positions receive an additional 5% Holiday Pay

These positions receive a $774.73 per year uniform allowance

These positions may receive a 5% incentive for Acting Commander, Acting Sergeant, 

Officer in Charge, Training Officer, and/or Detective

2021.06.27 (21-22) All

Exhibit A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Agreements with the SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: June 9, 2017 

SUBJECT: Agreements with the SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENTS WITH THE SAN MATEO COUNTY 
FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT FOR MAINTENANCE OF (1) 
A PORTION OF THE COLMA CREEK CHANNEL KNOWN AS THE BART PORTION 
OF THE CREEK; AND (2) A PORTION OF THE COLMA CREEK CHANNEL KNOWN 
AS THE “OLD COLMA CREEK” 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise District (District) since taking over the role of 
the San Mateo County Flood Control District (SMCFCD) has been re-establishing agreements 
with cities and Towns that reside within the Colma Creek Flood Control District. In January of 
2017, the Town and SMCFCD entered into a Memorandum of Agreement regarding 
maintenance for portions of the Colma Creek Channel. The portion of the Channel that is 
referenced in this agreement is what is commonly called the BART portion of the Colma Creek, 
(Please see attachment “C”). The new agreement with the District (See Attachment A) is an 
agreement with a two-year term to perform simple maintenance activities in the Colma Creek 
Channel with a $50,000 not to exceed limit.  

The second agreement references the area of the Colma Channel now known as the “Old Colma 
Creek; this portion of the creek is the open cement lined channel that stretches from F Street 
along El Camino Real through the back side of the businesses on Mission Road until the border 
of Colma and South San Francisco (see Attachment “D). The agreement (See attachment B) 
with the District will cover annual maintenance activities such as minor maintenance, vegetation 
management, trash abatement and minor repairs. This agreement  also has a two-year term 
with a not to exceed $20,000 limit. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

For the services that are provided by the Town’s Public Works Maintenance crew, Public Works 
management or the Town’s contractors for labor and materials within the Colma Creek Channel 

Item #5



Staff Report re Agreements with the SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District Page 2 of 4 

as defined within the agreements, the District shall make payments to the Town based on the 
rates and in the manner specified within the rate schedule in the agreements. 

• The proposed agreement for the portion of the Creek that is called the BART portion of 
the Colma Creek is a two-year term agreement with a not to exceed amount of $50,000.  

• The proposed cost share agreement for a portion of the Creek that is called the Old 
Colma Creek is a two-year term agreement with a not to exceed amount of $20,000.  

The Town shall submit an invoice to the district upon completion of authorized work. The 
District shall make payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice.  Invoices shall be 
submitted on a monthly basis whenever work is performed under these agreements.  

BACKGROUND 

The San Mateo County Flood Control District (SMCFCD) manages various flood control districts 
County wide. The Colma Flood Control District, (Colma Creek), was part of the SMCFCD thus 
portions of the Colma Creek Channel’s maintenance, repairs and enhancements were controlled 
by the SMCFCD. In January of 2020, the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency 
District (District) was formed, one of the main components of the District is to assume the 
responsibilities of the SMCFCD and manage the various flood control districts within the County, 
Colma Creek Flood Control District being one of the districts.   

BART portion of the Colma Creek Channel 

The District under Board direction instructed District staff to re-establish the agreement with the 
Town to perform various maintenance duties in a portion of the creek channel that is called the 
BART Channel within the Town boundaries. Since the Town entered into an agreement with the 
SMCFCD to abate such items as graffiti removal, trash pickup, vegetation management and 
minor repairs in that portion of the Channel, those maintenance items have been handled in a 
more expeditious manner than in the past. Having an agreement and being able to be proactive 
along with being compensated for the work that is either performed by the Town’s Public Works 
Department or contractors has been an efficient way to keep up with blight that accumulates 
around the creek channel if left unattended. 

The new Agreement with the District would carry over all the material terms of the Original 
agreement with the SMCFCD.  

• Quarterly inspections which the Town and District review the Colma Creek Channel, the 
Town will prepare an annual report, the District will update the Colma Creek Citizen 
Advisory Committee. 

• Illegal encampment cleanup if needed. 

• Trash cleanup program which the Town and District identify trash accumulation sites. 

• Graffiti and vandalism abatement and repair. 

• Vegetation management, Town manages vegetation according to best management 
practices. 



Staff Report re Agreements with the SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District Page 3 of 4 

• Facility maintenance, minor repairs to the channel and channel access areas. 

Portion of the creek that is known as Old Colma Creek. 

The Old Colma Creek for years has not been identified by the District as a part of the Colma 
Creek System, even though it diverts stormwater flows from various areas from the Town and 
Daly City. The Old Colma Creek collects water runoff from the west side of El Camino Real with 
in the Town boundaries and portions of Daly City and CalTrans. In our negotiations with the 
District regarding the BART Colma Creek Agreement, staff engaged District staff to consider a 
maintenance agreement for what is called the Old Colma Creek. The District also felt that this 
portion of the creek should be considered as part of the Colma Creek Flood Control District, 
thus an agreement to share cost on maintenance efforts should be considered.  The District 
Board agreed with their staff’s recommendation to have a cost share arrangement where the 
Town and the District would share costs as it relates to: 

• Pick up trash at accumulation sites. 

• Abate graffiti according to best management practices. 

• Remove vegetation according to best management practices.  

• Perform minor repairs to the facility located in and immediately adjacent to the channel.  

Before any costs are eligible for District reimbursement the Town must secure all necessary 
land rights and permits to work with in the Old Colma Creek Channel. 

ANALYSIS 

By entering into these proposed agreements with the District, the Town’s Public Works 
Department will now be able to continue to correct the many maintenance issues that exist 
within the bordered off areas of the BART portion of the Colma Creek Channel. Having an 
agreement in place for the portion of the Colma Creek that is referred to as Old Colma creek 
will help reduce the Towns annual obligation to perform trash abatement, vegetation 
management and minor repairs in and around the channel. The Old Colma Creek Agreement if 
approved also puts claim to the District that they recognize that this portion of the creek is part 
of the Colma Creek Flood Control District. The agreement only allows the Town to perform 
minor maintenance, abatement, and repair items, the Town would not be responsible for 
corrective items that require specialized services such as hazardous waste removal or clean up, 
entry into areas that require confined space permits or work that would go beyond the 
everyday activities of our Public Works Maintenance Department. The agreement also allows for 
compensation for labor and materials that are expended to repair or correct the item of 
concern. 

ALTERNATIVE 

The City Council could choose not to enter into this agreement with the District and continue to 
pursue the District to make the needed repairs and correction when they arise. This is not 
recommended, as noted in the past when left to the County and now the district, repairs and 
abatement issues seem to take a long time to remedy. Having the agreements in place allow for 



Staff Report re Agreements with the SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District Page 4 of 4 

a more expeditious outcome in taking care of the various issues and blights that come up in and 
around the Colma Creek Channel.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 
 
The City Council has taken a responsible approach by entering into an agreement with the 
San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District to maintain, repair, and abate 
acts of vandalism within and around the BART and Old Colma Creek Portion of the Colma Creek 
Channel.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that City Council adopt a resolution approving both a maintenance 
agreement for a portion of Colma Creek known as the BART portion of the creek and a second 
maintenance agreement approving a cost share agreement for maintenance activities in what is 
known as the Old Colma Creek.   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
• Exhibit A - Draft copy of Agreement- BART Portion of the Colma Creek Channel 
• Exhibit B – Draft copy of Agreement- Old Colma Creek portion of the Colma Creek 

Channel 
B. Map of the BART portion of the Colma Creek Channel 
C. Map of the Old Colma Creek portion of the Colma Creek Channel 

 

 

 



25977.00100\33997108.1 
Res. 2021-__, Agreements with SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District – Colma Creek Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AGREEMENTS WITH THE SAN MATEO 
COUNTY FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT FOR 

MAINTENANCE OF (1) A PORTION OF THE COLMA CREEK CHANNEL 
KNOWN AS THE BART PORTION OF THE CREEK; AND (2) A PORTION 

OF THE COLMA CREEK CHANNEL KNOWN AS THE “OLD COLMA CREEK” 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The San Mateo County Flood Control District (SMCFCD) manages various flood control 
districts County wide. The Colma Flood Control District, (Colma Creek), was part of the SMCFCD 
and thus portions of the Colma Creek Channel’s maintenance, repairs and enhancements were 
controlled by the SMCFCD.  

(b) In January of 2020, the San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District 
(District) was formed, one of the main components of the District is to assume the 
responsibilities of the SMCFCD and manage the various flood control districts within the County, 
with the Colma Creek Flood Control District being one of the districts 

(c) The District Board is now requesting that the District enter into agreements with the 
various cities to perform various maintenance activities in the flood control areas. 

(d) Based on this request, the District Board and Town have collaborated on two new 
agreements between the District and the Town as follows. 

(i) The first agreement would govern the BART portion of the Creek and 
would allow for repairs and maintenance of the Creek to be handled by the Town with 
reimbursement from the District. 

(ii) The second agreement would govern the portion of the Creek known as 
the “Old Colma Creek” and would also allow for repairs and maintenance with potential cost 
sharing between the District and the Town. 

(e) The Town and the District now seek to enter into these two new agreements for 
repairing and maintaining two portions of the Creek. 

(f) The agreements are not subject to competitive bidding under the Town’s Purchasing 
Ordinance and the Town can enter into the contracts with the District directly as contracts for 
services provided by a government agency under Municipal Code Section 1.06.180(c) and/or as 
contracts for services to be performed by any city pursuant to Municipal Code Section 
1.06.180(h). 

2. Order.

(a) The agreements between the Town of Colma and the District, attached hereto as Exhibit 

Attachment A



25977.00100\33997108.1 
 

Res. 2021-__, Agreements with SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District – Colma Creek  Page 2 of 2 
 

“A”, and which are on file with the City Clerk, are hereby approved by the City Council of the 
Town of Colma. 

(b) The Mayor is authorized to execute the agreements on behalf of the Town of Colma, 
with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager or City 
Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on June 9, 2021 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 

 



1 

AGREEMENT  
between the  

TOWN OF COLMA  
and the  

SAN MATEO COUNTY FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

REGARDING COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL MAINTENANCE 

This Agreement, made and entered into this ______ day of ___________, 2021, is by and between 
the Town of Colma (“Town”), a municipal corporation of the State of California, and the San Mateo 
County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District ("District"), a special district in San Mateo County, 
State of California.  

WHEREAS, a portion of the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel financed, constructed, and 
maintained by District lies within the incorporated limits of the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District have identified a need for a collaborative effort and sharing of 
resources in vegetation management, abatement of graffiti, vandalism, illegal dumping, illegal 
encampments, minor maintenance efforts, and the collection and disposal of trash and debris deposited in 
and around the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel in the Town; and 

WHEREAS, trash in the creeks and waterways is detrimental to the community and to the 
environment; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District have implemented programs that include the removal of trash 
along creeks and waterways to comply with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit issued by the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (Order R2-2009-0074, NPDES Permit No. CAS612008, October 14, 2009); and 

WHEREAS, the Town has the resources and current programs to assist in the management of 
vegetation, graffiti, vandalism, illegal dumping, illegal encampments, and minor maintenance in and 
around the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel in the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District desire to enter into an Agreement to utilize Town resources for 
vegetation management, abatement of graffiti, vandalism, illegal dumping, illegal encampments, minor 
maintenance, and trash prevention and removal activities within and adjacent to the Colma Creek Flood 
Control Channel (“Maintenance Activities”). The Maintenance Activities are more particularly described in 
Section III. Scope; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District are government agencies duly authorized and existing under 
the laws of the State of California, and situated within the boundaries of the County of San Mateo; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54981 allows the legislative body of any local government 
agency to contract with another agency for performance of municipal services or functions; and  

WHEREAS, Government Code section 6502 provides that, if authorized by their legislative or 
other governing bodies, two or more public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power 
common to the parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants in this Agreement, the 
TOWN and DISTRICT agree as follows: 

DRAFT

Exhibit A



2 
 

 
 

I.  TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
A. Term of Agreement 
 

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first set forth above to June 30, 2023. This 
Agreement may be terminated pursuant to Section J of this Section I. Terms and Conditions. 

 
B.  Authorizations 
 

The Town Manager is authorized to approve extensions to the term of this Agreement, to modify 
due dates, to resolve conflicts, or otherwise grant approvals on behalf of the Town, provided such 
approvals are not vested in the authority of the Town Council, and provided that any approval 
requiring payment of funds in excess of appropriated funds shall require Town Council approval of 
the appropriation of those funds. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer of the District is authorized to approve the extension of the term of 
this Agreement, to modify due dates, to resolve conflicts, or otherwise grant approvals on behalf of 
District, provided that any approval requiring payment of funds in excess of appropriated funds 
requires approval of the appropriation of excess funds by the District Board of Directors.  

 
C.  Insurance 

 
Each party shall maintain a program of insurance, including self-insurance authorized by the 
California Government Code, or excess insurance, or any combination thereof, and shall name the 
other party as an additional insured thereto to protect against any liability for bodily injury or 
property damage arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the insuring party, its 
appointed or elected officials, officers, agents, and employees, under this Agreement.  The liability 
coverage under such program of insurance, including self-insurance, or excess insurance shall not 
be less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit for each occurrence.  Each 
party shall supply a certificate of insurance or self-insurance to the other party on or before the time 
of execution of this Agreement.  Each party shall notify the other party in writing prior to any 
termination of such self-insurance program. 

 
D.  Indemnification 

 
Pursuant to Government Code section 895.4, each party agrees to fully indemnify, defend, and hold 
the other party (including its appointed and elected officials, officers, employees, and agents) 
harmless from any and all damage or liability imposed for injury (as defined by Government Code 
section 810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the 
indemnifying party, its appointed or elected officials, officers, employees, or agents, under or in 
connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction delegated to such party under this Agreement.  
 
The mutual indemnification obligations under this Agreement are subject to the principles of 
comparative negligence, and each party shall bear the proportionate cost of any loss, damage, 
expense or liability attributable to that party’s negligence.  To the extent that more than one party is 
determined to have been negligent or at fault, the parties agree that each party shall bear its own 
portion or percentage of liability and to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other parties from 
that share.  Notwithstanding the above, no party shall be indemnified hereunder for any loss, 
liability, damage or expense resulting from its sole negligence or willful misconduct.  

 
E.  Amendment 

 
This Agreement may be amended at any time upon the written mutual approval of the parties. 



3 
 

 
 
F.  Notices 
 

Any and all notices required to be given hereunder shall be provided by United States mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed to either of the parties at the following address or such other address as is 
provided by either party in writing: 
 

To Town: 
Town of Colma 
1188 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
Attn: Brian Dossey, City Manager 
 

To District: 
San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise 
Resiliency District 
1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 502 
San Mateo, CA 
Attn: Len Materman, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Any notice so given shall be considered received by the other party three (3) days after deposit in 
the U.S. Mail as stated above and addressed to the party at the above address.  Actual notice shall 
be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice occurred, regardless of the method of service. 

 
G.  Severability 

 
If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the validity, 
legality, or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof shall not in any way be affected or 
impaired thereby. 

 
H.  Entire Agreement 

 
This Agreement, together with Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein, 
contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, documents, and discussions pertaining thereto. 

 
I.  Debt Limitation 
 

The Town and District are both subject to laws or policies which limit their ability to incur debt in 
future years. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute an obligation of future legislative bodies of 
the Town or District to appropriate funds for purposes of this Agreement. 

 
J.  Termination 
 

Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing the other party with written 
notice of termination, no less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of termination. Town shall 
be compensated for those services, including, but not limited to, Maintenance Activities, performed 
prior to the effective date of termination and any and all costs related to terminating its contractors.    

 
K.  Conflict of Interest 
 

The Town and the District shall each avoid all conflicts of interest in the performance of this 
Agreement and shall immediately notify the other should a conflict of interest arise that would 
prohibit or impair the party's ability to perform under this Agreement. 

 
L.  Non-Discrimination 
 

Neither the Town nor District will discriminate, in any way, against any person on the basis of race, 
sex, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, actual or perceived gender identification, disability, 
ethnicity, or national origin, in connection with or related to the performance of this Agreement. 

 



4 
 

 
M.  Limitations 
 

Sites that may require the performance of the Maintenance Activities under the terms of this 
Agreement must satisfy all of the following: (i) be located within the limits of the Town and in or 
immediately adjacent to the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel (as depicted in Exhibit A) , and 
(ii) be subject to a Town and/or District right-of-way, easement, or permit. Other sites not meeting 
the requirements of this subsection are not covered under this Agreement. 
 

N.  Disputes 
 

The Town and District agree that, with regard to all disputes or disagreements arising under this 
Agreement which are not resolved informally at the staff level after a good faith attempt by both 
parties, the parties may, at their sole and mutual discretion, agree to engage in mediation. The costs 
of the mediation shall be divided equally between the parties, unless otherwise agreed. 

 
O.  Payment for Services 
 

In consideration of the services provided by the Town or the Town’s contractors within District 
right-of-way, easement or future easements as depicted on Exhibit A in accordance with all terms, 
conditions, and scope set forth herein, the District shall make payment to the Town based on the 
rates attached hereto as Exhibit B and in the manner specified.  The Town shall submit an invoice 
to the District on a monthly basis..  Said invoice shall include an accounting of all charges for 
personnel, material, equipment, and/or outside services which the Town shall have used for the 
performance of the work and a description of the work performed including dates of the work 
performed.  Payments shall be in accordance with the rates described in Exhibit B. Every July 1, 
the Town may notify the District in writing of any rate adjustments as identified in Exhibit B. Rate 
adjustments are subject to District approval.  District shall make payment within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of invoice.  In no event shall District’s total fiscal obligation under the term of this 
Agreement exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars and No/100s ($50,000.00). Invoices shall be submitted 
on a monthly basis whenever work is performed under this Agreement. 
 

P. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 

Each of the parties shall cooperate with and provide reasonable assistance to the other to the extent 
contemplated hereunder in the performance of all obligations under this Agreement and the 
satisfaction of the conditions of this Agreement.  Each party shall keep itself fully informed of and 
in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in any manner affecting 
the performance of this Agreement.  The parties agree and intend that the parties are independent 
contracting entities and do not intend by this Agreement to create any partnership, joint venture, or 
similar business arrangement, relationship, or association between them.  There are no intended 
third-party beneficiaries of any right or obligation of the parties. 

 
II. DEFINITIONS 

 
A. Colma Creek Flood Control Channel - The Colma Creek Flood Control Channel financed, 

constructed, and maintained by District from the confluence with the Navigable Slough (also 
known historically as San Bruno Creek/Canal/Slough) to the general vicinity of the intersection of 
El Camino Real and Valley Street in the City of Daly City. 
  

B. Active Illegal Encampment - An illegal encampment that appears to have been recently used as 
an encampment site as evidenced by (i) the presence of persons at or around the encampment, or 
(ii) the organized, systematic and methodical appearance of the encampment where it would be 
reasonable to assume that it is currently being used as an encampment. 

 



5 
 

 
C. Town Waste - All wastes generated by or collected by the Town in the performance of all 

municipal services, including Grit and Screenings, but excluding Sewage Sludge or other residue 
from waste-water treatment facilities, and including, but not limited, to debris from street and 
sewer repairs and construction, debris from public and private lot clean-up operations, tires from 
municipal vehicles, debris from street sweepings, grass clippings, leaves and tree trimmings from 
maintenance of Town parks, streets, median strips, and property, rock and concrete not exceeding a 
non-diagonal dimension of four (4) feet, asphalt pavement as found in streets, tree stumps and 
branches no more than eight (8) feet long and no more than two (2) feet in diameter, bulky wastes 
such as large appliances and furniture found in clean-up operations of real property, parks or other 
public or private lands, and other similar wastes generated by or collected by the Town. Except as 
provided in this Section II.C, Town Waste shall not include residential garbage and rubbish, or 
commercial garbage and rubbish that is generated by private individuals or private businesses and 
is regularly collected by the Town’s waste hauler from private property. 

 
D. Grit and Screenings - Grit includes sand, gravel, cinder, or other heavy solid materials that are 

“heavier” (higher specific gravity) than the organic biodegradable solids in wastewater.  Grit also 
includes eggshells, bone chips, seeds, coffee grounds, and large organic particles, such as food 
waste.  Screenings are suspended solids or objects such as rags, paper, plastics, and metals to 
prevent damage and clogging of downstream equipment, piping, and appurtenances. 
 

E. Hazardous Waste - A solid waste, or combination of solid wastes, which, because of its quantity, 
concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics may: (i) cause, or significantly 
contribute to an increase in mortality, or an increase in serious irreversible, or incapacitating 
reversible illness; or (ii) pose a substantial, present, or potential hazard to human health or the 
environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, or disposed of, or otherwise managed. 

 
F. Illegal Encampment - A camp located in or immediately adjacent to the Colma Creek Flood 

Control Channel within the Town that has not been permitted by the Town, District, and/or other 
agencies with jurisdiction to regulate that camping activity. 

 
G. Inactive Illegal Encampment - An illegal encampment that does not appear to have recently been 

used as an encampment as evidenced by: (i) the lack of persons at or around the encampment, and 
(ii) the unorganized, unmethodical, unsystematic, haphazard appearance of the encampment where 
it would be reasonable to assume that it was abandoned. 

 
H. Right-of-Way - Recorded deed for property, either in form of fee title ownership or easement. 

 
I. Sewage Sludge - Sewage sludge are nutrient-rich organic materials resulting from the treatment of 

domestic sewage in a wastewater treatment facility. 
 

J. Trash - All illegal dumping and improperly discarded waste material, including, but not limited to, 
shopping carts, tires, furniture, pallets, convenience food, beverage, and other product packages or 
containers constructed of steel, aluminum, glass, paper, plastic, and other natural and synthetic 
materials, thrown or deposited on the lands and waterways within the Town. For the purposes of 
this Agreement, Trash does not include sediment or vegetation; except for yard waste that is 
illegally disposed in or along the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel. 

 
K. Universal Waste - Any of the following hazardous wastes that are subject to the universal waste 

requirements of 40 CFR part 273 or CCR Title 22, Division 4.5, Chapter 23, including: (1) 
Batteries as described in § 273.2; (2) Pesticides as described in § 273.3; (3) Mercury-containing 
equipment as described in § 273.4; and (4) Lamps as described in § 273.5. (source: 40 CFR §273.9) 
 

L. Advisory Committee – The Colma Creek Flood Control District Citizens Advisory Committee 
  



6 
 

 
III. SCOPE 

 
A.  Agreement Administration 
 

1. Quarterly Channel Inspections 
 
The Town and District shall each designate lead staff from their respective organizations to 
perform quarterly tandem inspections of the Channel from Mission Road approximately one 
thousand five hundred (1,500) feet southeast of the intersection of Mission Road and El Camino 
Real to D Street (Town boundary). Staff shall inspect only areas adjacent to the Channel diversion 
structure and surface conditions along the alignment of the underground box culvert. The quarterly 
inspections shall: 
 
 Identify issues related to maintenance needs, including litter problem areas, illegal 
dumping sites, abandoned shopping carts, graffiti, vandalism, Active and Inactive Illegal 
Encampments, areas in need of vegetation maintenance, including those areas within the Channel 
and along access roads, and fence repair needs along the Channel. 
 
2. Reporting 

 
a. The Town shall prepare an Annual Report. 

 
i. The Annual Report for each fiscal year (July 1 – June 30) shall be prepared and submitted 

to District by the Town by July 31 of each year this Agreement is in effect. 
 

ii. The Report must include at a minimum the following: 
 

• Status, accomplishments, and requests to be completed under this Agreement; 
• Number of sites, site locations, and amount of material collected during all clean-up 

programs or projects under this Agreement; 
• Number of sites and site locations of Illegal Encampments removed under this 

Agreement;   
• Actual expenditures under this Agreement.  

 
iii. The information provided pursuant to ii. above, and other appropriate metrics as agreed 

upon by District and the Town, shall be used to determine the success of the maintenance 
program, and generate information that supports Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit 
reporting.  

 
b. The Annual Report shall be submitted by District to the Advisory Committee each calendar 

year for the Advisory Committee’s September meeting. 
 
3. Environmental Permitting 

 
For Maintenance Activities by the Town in and around the areas of the Colma Creek Flood Control 
Channel that are included in the long-term maintenance permit from environmental regulatory 
agencies, Town shall be responsible for compliance with the provisions of such permit(s) in the 
performance of these activities. Copies of these permits area attached as Exhibit C and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
For other activities by the Town in and around the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel, the Town 
shall obtain all necessary permits.  

 
 
 



7 
 

 
B.  Illegal Encampment Clean-up Program 
 

The Illegal Encampment clean-up program focuses on the cleanup of Active and Inactive Illegal 
Encampment sites and is led by the Town on an as-needed basis. 
 
1.  Town Actions 

 
The Town shall: 

 
a. Coordinate site identification, which includes the identification of the sites and verification 

(in collaboration with District staff) that the sites are within the Town limits, that either 
District or the Town has Right-of-Way on the sites, and that the sites are in or adjacent to 
the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel; 

b. Coordinate site logistics, which includes coordinating the timing of the clean-ups; and 
coordinating with the District on services and supplies needed as described in Section 2. 
below under District Actions for this program; 

c. Provide clean-up personnel and supervision, which includes providing sufficient personnel 
and supervision to conduct the cleanup.  Alternately, the Town may contract with another 
entity to provide personnel for clean-up of Active Illegal Encampments. The Town shall 
ensure that notices of the clean-up are posted by the Town at least seventy-two (72) hours 
prior to the clean-up date of the sites and in accordance with all applicable laws.   

d. Coordinate appropriate social services, which includes coordinating appropriate and 
available resources to attend clean-ups and direct any encampment occupants to social 
services as needed and in accordance with all applicable laws;  

e. Provide disposal of non-hazardous wastes, except during the limited time period when the 
Town is complying with due process or other legal notification requirements allowing for 
any homeless individual to recover any materials as personal property, which includes the 
acceptance at an appropriate disposal facility of materials meeting all of the following 
conditions: 
 
i. Materials meeting the definition of "Trash"; 

ii. Materials include only Trash from this clean-up program; no other materials may be 
commingled with the material collected pursuant to this Agreement; 

iii. Any vehicle or container used for this purpose must be empty at the start of the clean-
up and must be dumped at the end of the clean-up without being used for any other 
purpose; all containers must be secured to prevent unauthorized deposition of waste in 
the containers; 

iv. Materials include no Hazardous Wastes (such as containers of fuel, paint, or 
chemicals), Universal Wastes (such as batteries, lamps, televisions, or other electronic 
waste), sediment or vegetation, or other materials banned from landfill disposal (such 
as tires, appliances, motor vehicles, and other large metallic discards); 

v. Delivery is accompanied by properly completed forms; and 
vi. All regulations at the disposal facility shall be observed by disposal vehicle drivers. 

 
f.  Lawfully manage personal possessions, which include the receipt, storage, and 

management by the Town of personal possessions collected during clean-ups. 
 
2.  District Actions 
 

The District shall: 
 
a.  Ensure appropriate permits are obtained for the performance of maintenance work in and 

around the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel pursuant to this Agreement; 
b.  Provide notifications when appropriate and coordinate with permitting agencies when 

requested by the Town. 



8 
 

 
3.  Standard Operating Procedures 
 

a.  The parties agree that all clean-up of Illegal Encampments under the encampment clean-up 
program will be performed in accordance with the Town’s standard procedures. 

b.  The Town procedures may be amended from time to time by the Town. Town shall notify 
District of any amendments to Town procedures impacting clean-up of Illegal Encampments. 

 
C.  Trash Clean-Up Program 
 

The Trash Clean-Up Program helps address the clean-up of Trash accumulations that fall outside the 
scope of the encampment cleanup program. It is coordinated by Town and District staff through the 
Quarterly Channel Inspections described in Section III.A.1 of this Agreement. Sites must be located 
within the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel Right-of-Way and the boundaries of the Town. 
 
1.  Site Identification: 
 

a. Town and District staff will identify the Trash Clean-Up Program sites, using the following 
criteria for prioritization: 
 
i. Site is a historically-reoccurring litter problem area 

ii. Site has received complaints from the public 
iii. Site provides opportunity for proactive intervention 
iv. Site has a significant accumulation of debris  

 
2.  Implementation 

 
Town and District staff will coordinate logistics and responsibilities on an annual basis. 
 
a. Program List – The Town shall develop, maintain, and distribute to appropriate Town and 

District personnel a list of trash prevention and removal programs and their associated staff 
contacts. This list is intended to improve coordination and make communications with 
residents more seamless. 
 

b. Coordinating Operations – The Town and District shall, as part of their annual work 
planning, consider opportunities to manage and schedule routine clean-up activities 
performed by both parties with the intent of providing equitable exchange of services. 
 

D. Abatement of Graffiti and Vandalism 
 

The Town and District will work collaboratively on graffiti and vandalism abatement programs.  
Recognizing that timely abatement of graffiti and vandalism discourages proliferation of associated 
illegal activities, District authorizes the Town to abate upon notice by any party.  

 
Graffiti and Vandalism Abatement: 
 

a. Graffiti and Vandalism abatement may be conducted by the Town. 
b. The Town shall provide photographs of graffiti that was removed (before and after) as a 

condition of reimbursement for services provided under this Agreement. 
c. Proper best management practices (BMPs) shall be followed to ensure compliance with 

water quality laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, BMPs for methods of 
proper capture and disposal of wastes generated during graffiti removal activities. 

 
 
 



9 
 

 
E. Vegetation Management 
 

The Town and District will work collaboratively on vegetation management within the Colma 
Creek Flood Control Channel Right-of-Way and access road areas.  
 
Vegetation Management: 
 

a. Vegetation removal within the Channel and access road areas may be conducted by the 
Town upon request by the District. 

b. Vegetation removal within the Channel shall not occur unless the necessary permit 
coverage has been obtained by District. 

c. Proper best management practices (BMPs) shall be followed to ensure compliance with 
water quality laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, BMPs for methods of 
proper capture and disposal of debris generated during vegetation removal activities. 

d. Use of herbicides shall be compliant with the NPDES requirements pursuant to the San 
Francisco Bay Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit and requirements of the City’s 
Integrated Pest Management Plan, if applicable. 

 
F. Minor Maintenance 
 

The Town and District will work collaboratively on identifying and performing minor repairs to the 
following, but not limited to, facilities within the Colma Creek Flood Control Channel Right-of-
Way and access road areas:  

 
• Fences, posts, cables, and gates. 
• Flap gates, valves, and other flow restriction devices. 
• Concrete or asphalt pavement/sidewalk. 
 

When requested by District, the Town shall submit a proposal that includes a scope of work and anticipated 
costs.  District shall authorize the proposed work by the Town prior to commencement of repairs.  
Reimbursement for actual costs shall be in accordance with the terms under Section I-O, “Payment for 
Services”. 
 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



10 
 

 
  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, have 
executed this Agreement. 
 
 
 
“Town”      “District” 
TOWN OF COLMA, SAN MATEO COUNTY FLOOD AND 
a California municipal corporation SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 
   
   

 
By: __________________________  By: __________________________ 
Diana Colvin, Mayor  Len Materman, Chief Executive Officer  
    
Date: __________________________  Date: __________________________ 
 
Authorized by    
Resolution No.: ______________ 
 
By: _____________________________   
City Clerk   
        
Adopted:  ____________________, 2021   
  
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________  _____________________________ 
Christopher Diaz, Town Attorney  Brian E. Kulich, District Legal Counsel 
 
Date: _______________________  Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
 
EXHIBITS: 

A – Colma Creek Flood Control Channel Right-of-Way Map 
B – Town of Colma Labor, Material, and Equipment Rates 



 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 
 

  



LEGEND: 

CALTRANS 

CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 

/ 

"F" / --- .,,..--,,,-
L _!_ 

7 / 
---

S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

:::::::::::::::::; PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD ~nzzn~ TOWN OF COLMA 

N 
. 

I 
U') 

------ -r-------:-."T'""'T"lrT""":'"':=------==-=--:--:-----1 w 

l'l,._r,- ~g~~~~-a;J.ir:ili.~i&i~[Z-;si~i;~~tt~rJ,ti~~:t~~~ ~ 
--="'-1::b.Cl:::D.'::l.l::l:,.D:::J.:]'::::J.Z:::l,£:1:::l.:,7:::i,.£:j_,IJ::J..r:J,.D.,JJ;:,J.:z:::J.J::Jl:J.:1:::I.J::::J..C'bl.:l:::I.J::::I..C.~ w 

z 
-==--==--==I _J 

------

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

I 
u 
I
<( 
~ 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

SCALE: 1" = 200' 

w~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) 1 .. A" 1 STREETS -- - -- CITY I COUNTY BOUNDARY SHEET 1 of 10 



- - -----L_ _ _J 

----
I~--=-=====- _-_- _-_- _-_- _-_- _-_-

(/) 

I . 
..... 

LEGEND: 

~ CALTRANS 

- CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 

~ 
~ 

t 

·: +: +: +: +: +: +: +: + :~ PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD 
·++++++++~ 

w~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) 

I 

I?<<; 5 ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

TOWN OF COLMA 

,, A" STREETS -- - -- CITY/ COUNTY BOUNDARY 

~----·--creek ··· 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

. 
I 
(/) 

w 
w 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SHEET 2 of 10 



~ 

• -I 
() 
I 
r 
z 
rTJ 

(/) 
rTJ 
rTJ 

(/) 
I 

N 

I 
I 

-----
EL CAMINO 

i--
1 

I 
I 

I 
I 

______ _J 

DUVAL 

\ ..... 

LEGEND: 

~ CALTRANS 

- CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 

I+~+~+~+~ +I PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD 

~//1/1/////~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) 

lflillifft~ 
~======= @ 

[\\\\\\\\\\\] 
I "A" I 

S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC} 

TOWN OF COLMA 

STREETS -- - -- CITY/ COUNTY BOUNDARY 

- - - ==t===---,--rr-11-

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SHEET 3 of 10 

. 
I 
(/) 

u.J 
u.J 
I 
(/) 

u.J 
z 
_J 

I 
u 
I
<( 
~ 



\ 

MIS~ --
~ 
):> 
-I 
() -I -
r 
z 
fTl 

(/) 
fTl 
fTl 

(/) 

I . \ ~ Q I C 

~ !\ t [Xl O C 
U d 

(/) 

liJ '\ s: ..J +' 
<C( :J 

a a 
I 
~ RO.AD_ ---------

R£AL 

\ 
\ 

\ \ 

r--~~~~~~~ 
I . 50' S. F. wo.ter eo.se, 

(STAT£ Rte. 82) 

v,I 

\ 

LEGEND: 

~ CALTRANS I?<< 2 5 ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

- CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

·: +: +: +: +: +: +: +: + :~ PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD 
·++++++++~ 

TOWN OF COLMA 

w~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) ,, A" STREETS -- - -- CITY/ COUNTY BOUNDARY 

ALTA LOMA DR. 

\ 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SHEET 4 of 10 



3:: 
)> 
-I 

J i 
)-
...l 
...l 
0 
I. 

MtSStON 

() (_ ____ ___,JL---

I 
r 
z 
fTl 

en 
I . 

----
LEGEND: 

~ CALTRANS 

-\ 
\ 
\ 

- CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 

RD. 

·: +: +: +: +: +: +: +: + :~ PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD 
·++++++++~ 

w~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) 

~ 
-,q; 

LOMA 

I?<< 2 5 ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

TOWN OF COLMA 

,, A" STREETS -- - -- CITY/ COUNTY BOUNDARY 

lLl 
'> 
~ 

,.__ 
:'.:) 

~ 
t] 
J 

---

----

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 
SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SHEET 5 of 10 

<.O 

. 
I 
en 
w 
w 
en 
w 
z 
.....J 
I 
u 
I-
<( 
::!E 



3:: 
)> 
-I 
() 
:r: 

\ 

~ 
~ 
"'( 

rL---------'-----------------------------------z ___ ~~~~ 
fTl ~....,..........~.---rr:,......,..,,--,--;;r-T"T"i!""7"T".--,.-:;:r"""7~~~m?7"IT?7'Tl~"'T"T"T....,......-.----::,~~_;.;..,,.............7"'T"'i~"S"T7'"7"'\r?-::s"""~v~"""'"':,,r-Oi'~®~ C><V()a),.!I ...... 

~ illfilUirli~~[jlfj__l~rJL~Uirli~~~llic.2.i.fil@illlli~~fil~?l_£~filfil?.11__~Wf~~~~-
f"Tl l--------1-'.',-+~ -----=~ ;----___::__::_.....:.......:.....:__ ____________________ _j___,,---
(/) 

:r: . 
(.J1 

\ 
\ 

VICTORY AV£ 

MEMORIAL 

-- ---
LEGEND: 

~ CALTRANS I?<< 2 5 ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

- CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

·: +: +: +: +: +: +: +: + :~ PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD 
·++++++++~ 

TOWN OF COLMA 

w~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) ,, A" STREETS -- - -- CITY/ COUNTY BOUNDARY 

r--.. 
. 

:r: 
(/) 

w 
w 
(/) 

w 
z 
_J 

:r: 
u 
I-
< 
::?! 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 
SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SHEET 6 of 10 



:?.:: 
)>, 
-I 
() 
I 
r 
z 
rr1------~ 

O') 

AV£. 

laJ 
t) 
:::> 
0:: 
Q.. 

' V' 

,,-------,------------------- (/) i-.: 
(/) 

\.. 
REDWOOD 

r I r 
AV£. 

1 r 
STARLIT£ 

I/ 

LEGEND: 

~ CALTRANS I?<< 2 5 ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

- CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

·: +: +: +: +: +: +: +: + :~ PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD 
·++++++++~ 

TOWN OF COLMA 

w~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) ,, A" STREETS -- - -- CITY/ COUNTY BOUNDARY 

I 
I 

I 

~ 
"-( 1----1-----

1
111 
:,, ,.. 
!') 

I 

~ I---- - - _J 
Q.. 

~ 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

CX) 

. 
I 
(/) 

w 
w 
(/) 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SHEET 7 of 10 



3:: 
> 
-I 
() 
I 

I 

r .__ __ __.___.__ _______ ----1----~-------'-----__. 

z 
rri ~ :m-~::p::f-a;p~~~~~R:Pi~~~m H'\'.J:::H'r:m:!~:m-~::p::f~~~~~~~=t=n:R":IJn-n:...,___ 

(/) 

I 

7 

LEGEND: 

~ CALTRANS 

~ 
,q: f----+---------' 

l.iJ 
...J f----
a.. 
~ 

- CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 

·: +: +: +: +: +: +: +: + :~ PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD 
·++++++++~ w~ SAN MATEO COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT (SAMTRANS) 

~ 

~ 

~ 

,\J 

$ 
\J 

~ 
t 
~ 

~ 
~ l.iJ 

~ -a:: 
~ 
0 

\ 
..J 

I?<< 2 5 ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

TOWN OF COLMA 

,, A" STREETS -- - -- CITY/ COUNTY BOUNDARY 

l.iJ 
:> 
,q: 

0 
l.iJ 
t-

~ 

< 
~ 

---

/ 

/ 
/ 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

SCALE: 1" = 200' 

SHEET 8 of 10 

w 
z 
_J 

I 
u 
I
<{ 
~ 



~ ~ 
-I 
() 
I 

I 
I 

MITCHELL 
r ------=--------------~ 
z 
fTl 

V) 
fTl 
f"Tl a=-ic:::...=.=..c::-=i ________________ _ 

V) 

I . 
OJ 

LEGEND: 

~ 
am 
+++++++++~ 
++++++++ 

+ + + + + + + + + 
++++++++ 

_J 

WY. 

I 

CALTRANS 

CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 

PENINSULA-CORRI DOR-JOI NT-POWE RS-BOARD 

\ 

\ -----
\ 

\ 

\ 

I?<< 2 5 ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

TOWN OF COLMA 

LITTLEFIELD 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

~ 
~ 0) 

3:: 
~ 

c 
0 

+> 
d 

+> s: 
a, 
Vl 
a, 
s.... 
a. 
s.... 
0 
4-

d 
£ 

0 
u 

/ 
.:::{_ 
a, 
a, 
s.... 
u 
d 
£ 

0 
u 

/ 
Vl 
a, 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
SAN MATEO COUNTY 

~ 

/ 
+> 
4-
d 
s.... 
~ 
/ 
Vl 
s.... 
a, 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 
SCALE: 1" = 200' 

Vl 
:::5 

l...-=r%=✓=/ "'=%=:=~=/=/ ,,,::::....__sA_N_M_A_T_Eo_c_o_u_N_TY_TR_A_N_s_1T_D_1_sT_R_1c_T_(_s_A_M_T_RA_N_s_)___:::::==·=· A="==::::::...._s_T_R_EE_T_s ____ -:_-:_-:_-_ -:=:-_c_1T_Y_f_c_o_u_N_T_Y_B_o_u_N_D_A_R_Y __ _,l_ ________________ S_H_E_E_T_9_o_f_1_0 _ ____J~ 



/ 

/ 
/ 

------
------

/ 

-

0) 
31: 

1:1 

i:::i 
Q:'. 
Q:'. 
_J 
Cl) 
u... 

I 
<[ 
D 
~ 

I 
::3 
D 
Q:'. 

~ 
w 
w 
Q:'. 
u 
<[ 
~ 
_J 
D 
u 
/ 
d 
0 
£ 

a., 

_____; j 
- C 

d 
£ 

/ 
1:1 

s.... 
0 
31: 

/ 
1:1 
u 
4-

L--------------------------------------------------------,-----------------------------1 

~ 
a., 
a., 
s.... 
u 

LEGEND: 

~ 
am 
+++++++++~ 
++++++++ 

+ + + + + + + + + 
++++++++ 

CALTRANS I?<< 5 i ~ S.M.CO. FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

CITY OF SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO S. P. T. C. (UNION PACIFIC) 

RIGHT-OF-WAY MAP 

COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 

d 
£ 

0 
u 

/ 
>, 

+> 

SAN MATEO COUNTY ~ 

FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 3 
Vl 

PENINSULA-CORRIDOR-JOINT-POWERS-BOARD TOWN OF COLMA SCALE: 1" = 200' ~ 
Vl 
J 

l...-=r%=✓=//=%=:=~=/=//=-----SA_N_M_A_T_Eo_c_o_u_N_TY_TR_A_N_s_1T_D_1_sT_R_1c_T_(_s_A_M_T_RA_N_s_)___:::::==·=·A="==::::::....-s_T_R_EE_T_s ____ -:_-:_-:_-_ -:=:-_c_1T_Y_f_c_o_u_N_T_Y_B_o_u_N_D_A_R_Y __ _,l_ ________________ S_H_E_E_T_1_o_o_f _1_0 _ __J~ 



 
 

 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
 
 

TOWN OF COLMA 
 

LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT RATES 
 
 
 
 
 

Position Hourly Charge 

Senior Engineer 
Public Works Maintenance 

$199.00 
$  66.15  

Equipment (Caltrans Rate Description)  Per Caltrans Posted Rates  
Rental of equipment At Cost 

Contract Services At Cost 
 
 
  
  



 
 

 
EXHIBIT “C” 

 
 
 

LONG-TERM MAINTENANCE PERMIT 
 

FOR COLMA CREEK FLOOD CONTROL CHANNEL 
  



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR A COPY OF THE CURRENT LONG-TERM 
MAINTENANCE PERMIT, PLEASE VISIT: 

 
 

https://oneshoreline.org/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/Long_Term_Maintenance_Permit_Colma_Creek.pdf 

 



1 

AGREEMENT  
between the  

TOWN OF COLMA  
and the  

SAN MATEO COUNTY FLOOD AND SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY DISTRICT 

REGARDING OLD COLMA CREEK MAINTENANCE 

This Agreement, made and entered into this ______ day of ___________, 2021, is by and 
between the Town of Colma (“Town”), a municipal corporation of the State of California, and the 
San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District ("District"), a special district in San 
Mateo County, State of California.  

WHEREAS, the Town has provided services on an annual basis to maintain Old Colma 
Creek for over 25 years; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District have identified a need for a collaborative effort and 
sharing of resources in vegetation management, graffiti abatement, minor maintenance, and the 
collection and disposal of trash and debris deposited in and around the Old Colma Creek in the Town; 
and 

WHEREAS, trash in the creeks and waterways is detrimental to the community and to the 
environment; and 

WHEREAS, Old Colma Creek is a tributary to Colma Creek, and is therefore hydraulically 
connected to important flood control infrastructure in the region and collaboration between the parties 
improves the ability to monitor and control upstream water quality and flow conditions that ultimately 
impact the Colma Creek Channel; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District have implemented programs that include the removal of 
trash along creeks and waterways to comply with National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit issued by the San Francisco Bay Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (Order R2-2009-0074, NPDES Permit No. CAS612008, October 14, 2009); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Town has the resources and current programs to assist in the management 
of graffiti, illegal dumping, and trash collection in and around the Old Colma Creek in the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District desire to enter into an Agreement to utilize Town 
resources for vegetation management, graffiti abatement, minor maintenance, and the collection and 
disposal of trash and debris deposited in and around the Old Colma Creek in the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and District are government agencies duly authorized and existing 
under the laws of the State of California, and situated within the boundaries of the County of San 
Mateo; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54981 allows the legislative body of any local 
government agency to contract with another agency for performance of municipal services or 
functions; and  

WHEREAS, Government Code section 6502 provides that, if authorized by their legislative 
or other governing bodies, two or more public agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power 
common to the parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual covenants in this Agreement, the 
TOWN and DISTRICT agree as follows: 

Exhibit B



2 
 

 
I. DEFINITIONS 

 
A. Graffiti Abatement – Abatement of graffiti and vandalism that follow proper best 

management practices (BMPs) to ensure compliance with water quality laws and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, BMPs for methods of proper capture and disposal of wastes 
generated during graffiti removal activities. 
 

B. Grit and Screenings - Grit includes sand, gravel, cinder, or other heavy solid materials that 
are “heavier” (higher specific gravity) than the organic biodegradable solids in wastewater.  
Grit also includes eggshells, bone chips, seeds, coffee grounds, and large organic particles, 
such as food waste.  Screenings are suspended solids or objects such as rags, paper, plastics, 
and metals to prevent damage and clogging of downstream equipment, piping, and 
appurtenances. 
 

C. Hazardous Waste - A solid waste, or combination of solid wastes, which, because of its 
quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics may: (i) cause, or 
significantly contribute to an increase in mortality, or an increase in serious irreversible, or 
incapacitating reversible illness; or (ii) pose a substantial, present, or potential hazard to 
human health or the environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, or disposed 
of, or otherwise managed. 

 
D. Land Rights – Recorded deed for property, either in form of fee title ownership or easement, 

or valid permit granting property access rights. 
 

E. Maintenance Activities – Vegetation Management (as defined in Section I.K), Graffiti 
Abatement (as defined in Section I.A), Minor Maintenance (as defined in Section I.F below), 
and the collection and disposal of trash and debris deposited in and around the Old Colma 
Creek in the Town. 
 

F. Minor Maintenance – Minor repairs to the following facilities in and around Old Colma 
Creek: fences, posts, cables, and gates; flap gates, valves, and other flow restriction devices; 
concrete or asphalt pavement/sidewalk. 
 

G. Old Colma Creek – The Old Colma Creek is a key tributary to the Colma Creek Channel, 
comprised of an open concrete-lined channel and a series of culverts that primarily run along 
the western side of El Camino Real (see map in Exhibit A for reference). The portion of the 
Old Colma Creek in the Town starts near the corner of F Street and El Camino Real and 
flows downstream to a point where it crosses under El Camino Real near the intersection of 
El Camino Real and Mission Road. At this point, most flows in Old Colma Creek are 
redirected to the Colma Creek Channel (box culvert under Mission Road), while another 
portion of the tributary – kept in place to take the stormwater overflows that cannot be 
managed by the box culvert – runs behind the businesses on Mission Road. Old Colma Creek 
continues downstream beyond the Town’s boundaries and reconnects to the Colma Creek 
Channel upstream of McClellan Avenue, within the City of South San Francisco’s 
boundaries. 
 

H. Sewage Sludge - Sewage sludge are nutrient-rich organic materials resulting from the 
treatment of domestic sewage in a wastewater treatment facility. 

 
I. Town Waste - All wastes generated by or collected by the Town in the performance of all 

municipal services, including Grit and Screenings, but excluding Sewage Sludge or other 
residue from waste-water treatment facilities, and including, but not limited, to debris from 
street and sewer repairs and construction, debris from public and private lot clean-up 



3 
 

operations, tires from municipal vehicles, debris from street sweepings, grass clippings, 
leaves and tree trimmings from maintenance of Town parks, streets, median strips, and 
property, rock and concrete not exceeding a non-diagonal dimension of four (4) feet, asphalt 
pavement as found in streets, tree stumps and branches no more than eight (8) feet long and 
no more than two (2) feet in diameter, bulky wastes such as large appliances and furniture 
found in clean-up operations of real property, parks or other public or private lands, and other 
similar wastes generated by or collected by the Town. Except as provided in this Section I.I, 
Town Waste shall not include residential garbage and rubbish, or commercial garbage and 
rubbish that is generated by private individuals or private businesses and is regularly 
collected by the Town’s waste hauler from private property. 
 

J. Trash - All illegal dumping and improperly discarded waste material, including, but not 
limited to, Town Waste, shopping carts, tires, furniture, pallets, convenience food, beverage, 
and other product packages or containers constructed of steel, aluminum, glass, paper, plastic, 
and other natural and synthetic materials, thrown or deposited on the lands and waterways 
within the Town. For the purposes of this Agreement, Trash does not include sediment or 
vegetation, except for yard waste that is illegally disposed in or along the Colma Creek Flood 
Control Channel or Old Colma Creek, and also does not include Hazardous Waste or 
Universal Waste. 

 
K. Universal Waste - Any of the following hazardous wastes that are subject to the universal 

waste requirements of 40 CFR part 273 or CCR Title 22, Division 4.5, Chapter 23, including: 
(1) Batteries as described in § 273.2; (2) Pesticides as described in § 273.3; (3) Mercury-
containing equipment as described in § 273.4; and (4) Lamps as described in § 273.5. 
(source: 40 CFR §273.9) 
 

L. Vegetation Management – Activities to remove vegetation that follow: (a) proper best 
management practices (BMPs) to ensure compliance with water quality laws and regulations, 
including, but not limited to, BMPs for methods of proper capture and disposal of debris 
generated during vegetation removal activities; and (b) proper herbicide use compliant with 
the NPDES requirements pursuant to the San Francisco Bay Municipal Regional Stormwater 
Permit. 
 
 

  



4 
 

II.  TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
A. Term of Agreement 
 

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first set forth above to June 30, 2023. This 
Agreement may be terminated pursuant to Section J of this Section II. Terms and Conditions. 

 
B.  Authorizations 
 

The Town Manager is authorized to approve extensions to the term of this Agreement, to 
modify due dates, to resolve conflicts, or otherwise grant approvals on behalf of the Town, 
provided such approvals are not vested in the authority of the Town Council, and provided 
that any approval requiring payment of funds in excess of appropriated funds shall require 
Town Council approval of the appropriation of those funds. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer of the District is authorized to approve the extension of the term 
of this Agreement, to modify due dates, to resolve conflicts, or otherwise grant approvals on 
behalf of District, provided that any approval requiring payment of funds in excess of 
appropriated funds requires approval of the appropriation of excess funds by the District 
Board of Directors.  

 
C.  Insurance 

 
Each party shall maintain a program of insurance, including self-insurance authorized by the 
California Government Code, or excess insurance, or any combination thereof, and shall 
name the other party as an additional insured thereto to protect against any liability for bodily 
injury or property damage arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the 
insuring party, its appointed or elected officials, officers, agents, and employees, under this 
Agreement.  The liability coverage under such program of insurance, including self-
insurance, or excess insurance shall not be less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
combined single limit for each occurrence.  Each party shall supply a certificate of insurance 
or self-insurance to the other party on or before the time of execution of this Agreement.  
Each party shall notify the other party in writing prior to any termination of such self-
insurance program. 

 
D.  Indemnification 

 
Pursuant to Government Code section 895.4, each party agrees to fully indemnify, defend, 
and hold the other party (including its appointed and elected officials, officers, employees, 
and agents) harmless from any and all damage or liability imposed for injury (as defined by 
Government Code section 810.8) occurring by reason of the negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the indemnifying party, its appointed or elected officials, officers, 
employees, or agents, under or in connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction 
delegated to such party under this Agreement. The mutual indemnification obligations under 
this Agreement are subject to the principles of comparative negligence, and each party shall 
bear the proportionate cost of any loss, damage, expense or liability attributable to that 
party’s negligence.  To the extent that more than one party is determined to have been 
negligent or at fault, the parties agree that each party shall bear its own portion or percentage 
of liability and to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other parties from that share.  
Notwithstanding the above, no party shall be indemnified hereunder for any loss, liability, 
damage or expense resulting from its sole negligence or willful misconduct.  
 

E.  Amendment 
 



5 
 

This Agreement may be amended at any time upon the written mutual approval of the parties. 
 
F.  Notices 
 

Any and all notices required to be given hereunder shall be provided by United States mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed to either of the parties at the following address or such other 
address as is provided by either party in writing: 
 

To Town: 
Town of Colma 
1188 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
Attn: Brian Dossey, City Manager 
 

To District: 
San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise 
Resiliency District 
1700 S. El Camino Real, Suite 502 
San Mateo, CA 
Attn: Len Materman, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Any notice so given shall be considered received by the other party three (3) days after 
deposit in the U.S. Mail as stated above and addressed to the party at the above address.  
Actual notice shall be deemed adequate notice on the date actual notice occurred, regardless 
of the method of service. 

 
G.  Severability 

 
If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality, or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby. 

 
H.  Entire Agreement 

 
This Agreement, together with Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated 
herein, contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter 
hereof, and supersedes all prior negotiations, documents, and discussions pertaining thereto. 

 
I.  Debt Limitation 
 

The Town and District are both subject to laws or policies which limit their ability to incur 
debt in future years. Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute an obligation of future 
legislative bodies of the Town or District to appropriate funds for purposes of this 
Agreement. 

 
J.  Termination 
 

Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing the other party with 
written notice of termination, no less than thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of 
termination. Town shall be compensated for those services, including, but not limited to, 
Maintenance Activities, performed prior to the effective date of termination and any and all 
costs related to terminating its contractors. 

 
K.  Conflict of Interest 
 

The Town and the District shall each avoid all conflicts of interest in the performance of this 
Agreement and shall immediately notify the other should a conflict of interest arise that 
would prohibit or impair the party's ability to perform under this Agreement. 

 



6 
 

L.  Non-Discrimination 
 

Neither the Town nor District will discriminate, in any way, against any person on the basis 
of race, sex, color, age, religion, sexual orientation, actual or perceived gender identification, 
disability, ethnicity, or national origin, in connection with or related to the performance of 
this Agreement. 

 
M.  Limitations 
 

Sites that may require the performance of the Maintenance Activities under the terms of this 
Agreement must satisfy all of the following: (i) be located within the limits of the Town and 
in or immediately adjacent to Old Colma Creek (as depicted in Exhibit A), and (ii) be subject 
to Town and/or District Land Rights. Other sites not meeting the requirements of this 
subsection are not covered under this Agreement. 
 

N.  Land Rights 
 
The Town and District agree that the Town must secure any/all necessary Land Rights to 
work in Old Colma Creek before the costs related to Maintenance Activities adjacent to Old 
Colma Creek are eligible for reimbursement. While the relevant Land Rights may not be 
obtained at the time the Agreement is executed, once they are obtained and Exhibit A is 
updated accordingly, the Maintenance Activities adjacent to Old Colma Creek will then be 
eligible under this Agreement. 

 
O.  Disputes 
 

The Town and District agree that, with regard to all disputes or disagreements arising under 
this Agreement which are not resolved informally at the staff level after a good faith attempt 
by both parties, the parties may, at their sole and mutual discretion, agree to engage in 
mediation. The costs of the mediation shall be divided equally between the parties, unless 
otherwise agreed. 

 
P.  Payment for Services 
 

In consideration of the services provided by the Town or the Town’s contractors within sites 
subject to District’s Land Rights as depicted on Exhibit A in accordance with all terms, 
conditions, and scope set forth herein, the District shall make payment to the Town based on 
the rates and in the manner specified.  The District shall reimburse the Town for 50% of its 
costs related to Maintenance Activities adjacent to the Old Colma Creek (Exhibit A). The 
Town shall submit an invoice to the District upon completion of District-authorized work.  
Said invoice shall include an accounting of all charges for personnel, material, equipment, 
and/or outside services which the Town shall have used for the performance of the work and 
a description of the work performed including dates of the work performed.  Payments shall 
be in accordance with the rates described in Exhibit B. Every July 1, the Town may notify the 
District in writing of any rate adjustments as identified in Exhibit B. Rate adjustments are 
subject to District approval.  District shall make payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
invoice.  In no event shall District’s total fiscal obligation under the term of this Agreement 
exceed Twenty Thousand Dollars and No/100s ($20,000.00). Invoices shall be submitted on a 
monthly basis whenever work is performed under this Agreement. 

 
Q. Miscellaneous Provisions 
 

Each of the parties shall cooperate with and provide reasonable assistance to the other to the 
extent contemplated hereunder in the performance of all obligations under this Agreement 



7 
 

and the satisfaction of the conditions of this Agreement.  Each party shall keep itself fully 
informed of and in compliance with all local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations in 
any manner affecting the performance of this Agreement.  The parties agree and intend that 
the parties are independent contracting entities and do not intend by this Agreement to create 
any partnership, joint venture, or similar business arrangement, relationship, or association 
between them.  There are no intended third-party beneficiaries of any right or obligation of 
the parties. 

  



8 
 

 
III. SCOPE 

 
A.  Agreement Administration: Environmental Permitting 

 
Town is responsible for obtaining and paying all fees for all permits required for Maintenance 
Activities in and around the Old Colma Creek and shall furnish copies of all such permits to 
District prior to the commencement of any work. 
 

B. Maintenance Activities Along Old Colma Creek 
 
For sites within the limits of the Town that are in or immediately adjacent to Old Colma 
Creek (as depicted in Exhibit A), and subject to Town and/or District Land Rights, the Town 
is responsible for all Maintenance Activities.  
 
Reimbursement for actual costs shall be in accordance with the terms under Section II.P, 
“Payment for Services”. 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
  



9 
 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized representatives, have 
executed this Agreement. 
 
 
 
“Town”      “District” 
TOWN OF COLMA, SAN MATEO COUNTY FLOOD AND 
a California municipal corporation SEA LEVEL RISE RESILIENCY 

DISTRICT 
   
   

 
By: __________________________  By: __________________________ 
Diana Colvin, Mayor  Len Materman, Chief Executive Officer  
    
Date: __________________________  Date: __________________________ 
 
Authorized by    
Resolution No.: ______________ 
 
By: _____________________________   
City Clerk   
        
Adopted:  ____________________, 2021   
  
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________  _____________________________ 
Christopher Diaz, Town Attorney  Brian E. Kulich, District Legal Counsel 
 
Date: _______________________  Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
EXHIBITS: 

A – Old Colma Creek Map 
B – Town of Colma Labor, Material, and Equipment Rates 



 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 

OLD COLMA CREEK MAP 
 
  



011341110

008322540

008322999

008322520

011341720

011341020

008322440

093280010

011341290

008323020

008392140

006388380

011331180

008152020

011341330

008322440

008322500

008322530

134051280
008141060

011341340

011341440

011341250

011341740

008141050

008392230
011341830

006388620

008322290

093270030

008322270

011341870

008131060 008144300

011341630

011341280

011341730

011341530

011341760

006388540

008322460

008392240

011341450

011341310

008322490

008144280

006388600

011341860

008392190

006381070

008322230

008141070

006388610

008322999

008144290

008144150

008322530

008144090

011341580

011341570

008392290

011341540

011341770

008322510

008144260

008133030

011341270

006388460

008144200

006388420

006388400

008392280

008392200

011341850

093281010

F ST

E
L C

A
M

IN
O

 R
E

A
L

C
O

LM
A B

LV
D

SERRAM
O

NTE B
LV

D

HILLSIDE BLVD

4
Town of Colma

Properties adjacent to Colma Creek
0 160 320 480 64080

Feet

Date: 3/16/2021

Page  of 

Legend

Colma Creek

Town Limit

Old Colma
Creek

Old Colma Creek



011341700

011341140

011341850

010422020

008421120

008392140

008413030

011341590

010421020

008392260

011341680

008373200

008322440

008374040

011341830

011341710

008374020

008421150

011370180

008374050

010421170

008392280

008373190

011341330

010421200

010421160

010421110

010422040

011341780

010422050

008392290

008392230

010421180

011341720

008392170

011341870

011341690

093290020

093282030

010421190

008421180

010421090

011341860
011341310

011341810

011341500

008392240

008421040

011341620

008421170

093280010

010423030

008392070

010421100

011341790

008421190

011370220008403050

011341340

011341820
008392270

011370150

008421050

008322440

008373110

011341800

010421050 011370140

010423020

011341840

COLLINS AVE
E

L C
A

M
IN

O
 R

E
A

L

5TH A
VE

SER
R
AM

O
N
TE B

LV
D

S
E
R
R
A
M

O
N
TE

 B
LV

D

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

D

4
Town of Colma

Properties adjacent to Colma Creek
0 160 320 480 64080

Feet

Date: 3/16/2021

Page  of 

Legend

Colma Creek

Town Limit

Old Colma
Creek

Old Colma Creek



011370180

010422020

134072580134072880
134072900134073380

010181020134072290

134072300134072340

134072430

134072490

134073371
134072350

134072480

011370220

010421020

011341680

010142080

011341700

011341710

010142090

010423020

134073580

134072680

011341690

093290020

093330999

093330020

010423030

093291010

010142100

010142070

010142120

011370150

010182080

010423050

010182190

010142110

093291010

010136230

010142050

010142130

010171150

010423040

010182070

010171160

010141180

010141170

010141150

010141160

010171140

093291010

010141210

010134120

010141130

010141120

010141110

010141100

010136220

010141090

010141070

010137010

010141140

010141080

093330010

010182090

010141050

010135010

010141060

010141190

010124150

010132050

010124160

010133020

010124170

010131050

010142030

010141220

010142040

010137200

010133010

010138030

010124180

010132040

010133030

010171130

010138170

010138160

010124140

010141200

010138050
010138150

010137110

010138180
010138020

010124190

010124200

010136150

010137160

010133040

010138040

010137100010136180
010136170

010135100

010136210
010136200

010135090

010136190

010136140

010133050

010137040

010136130

010133060

010137190

010136120

010135110

010134110

010136160

010138140

010134010

010133070

010123110

010123150

010136110

010136240

010135020

010123100

010135030

010134080

010135040
010135050

010135060

010132030

010137150

010135070
010135080

010132060

010137140
010123130

010137130

010138060

010137120

010138070

010137080

010134040

010134100

010132010

010137090010122010
010131010

010131020
010131030

010131040

010137060

010135120
010135130

010135140

010123120

010134020

010135150
010135160

010135170
010135180
010135190

010137050
010138110

010134030

010134050

010138190

010135200

010123140

010136250

010137180
010137170

010132020

010138080

010134090

010136090

010134060
010134070

010137020

010136060

010136270

010136070

010136260

010136050

010136030
010136010

010138090
010138120

010171210

010123170

010124220

011370140

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

D

E
L
 C

A
M

IN
O

 R
E

A
L

4
Town of Colma

Properties adjacent to Colma Creek
0 160 320 480 64080

Feet

Date: 3/16/2021

Page  of 

Legend

Colma Creek

Town Limit

Old Colma
Creek

Old Colma Creek



EXHIBIT “B” 

TOWN OF COLMA 

LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT RATES 

Position Hourly Charge 

Senior Engineer 
Public Works Maintenance 

$199.00 
$  66.15  

Equipment (Caltrans Rate Description)  Per Caltrans Posted Rates  
Rental of equipment At Cost 

Contract Services At Cost 



B





C







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2021-22 Budget Adjustment  Page 1 of 2 
[6/9/2021] 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works, CSG Consultants  

Abdulkader Hashem, Associate Engineer, CSG Consultants 
VIA:   Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: June 9, 2021 
SUBJECT: Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 FUNDED BY 
SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Requirements have been imposed by the State as part of the State Gas Taxes that began 
collection on November 1, 2017. In order to receive an allocation of the Gas Tax revenue, a list 
of proposed projects to be funded with SB 1 funds must be adopted.  For Fiscal Year 2021-22 the 
Town is projected to receive $33,215 in gas tax revenue and is included in the proposed budget. 
(See attachment “C”). Also, the Town is required to demonstrate that the revenue and 
expenditures are included in the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Budget. The funds are proposed to 
be allocated to the maintenance of F Street from El Camino Real to the City Limit (Block 300) “F 
Street Resurfacing Project” to be constructed in 2022. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The adoption of the RMRA project list and accompanied resolution will allocate funds for the F 
Street Resurfacing Project and transfer the FY 2021-22 SB1 allocation of $33,215 into the Street 
Capital Fund (Fund # 32) to assist in the rehabilitation of the 300 block of F Street.  

BACKGROUND 

On April 28, 2017, the Governor Signed into law Senate Bill (SB) 1, which is known as the Road 
Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.  SB1 legislation increased the per gallon fuel excise taxes 
($0.12 per gallon), as well as increased diesel fuel sales taxes and vehicle registration fees.  The 
use of SB1 funds - focus on using the new funds for basic road maintenance, rehabilitation, and 
critical safety projects on both the State Highway and local streets and roads system. Jurisdictions 

Item #6



Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2021-22 Budget Adjustment  Page 2 of 2 
[6/9/2021] 

and agencies that receive SB1 funding are required to report back to the California Transportation 
Commission CTC on how those funds are to be expensed or how they were expensed, this 
required reporting is done on an annual basis. 
 
On November 1, 2017, the State Controller (Controller) began to deposit various portions of this 
new funding into the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA).  Although the exact 
amount has not been determined by the Controller for Fiscal Year 2021-22, the Town of Colma’s 
RMRA allocation will include an estimated $33,215 funds that will be expensed per SB 1 
Accountability and Transparency Guidelines, adopted on March 21, 2018.   
  
ANALYSIS 

The Town of Colma must submit to the California Transportation Commission (CTC) a list of 
projects to be funded with RMRA funds.  To simplify the reporting and administration of the RMRA 
funds, the proposed Project List consists of adding the RMRA funds to the F Street Resurfacing 
Project that will be constructed in the Spring of 2022. 
 
If approved by City Council, the adoption of the project list will appropriate $33,215 in SB1 to the 
F Street Resurfacing Project. If approved, Town Staff by way of a Resolution, will be required to 
provide the annual RMRA project list and expenditure reporting to the CTC.   
    
REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The recommended actions are a requirement of the State program implementing the tracking of 
expenditures for the Gas Tax increase adopted by the State Legislature.  If the action is not taken 
prior to July 1, 2021 the Town could potentially lose or not receive the estimated RMRA Gas Tax 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2021-22.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

By approving the RMRA funds to be used for the F Street resurfacing Project exhibits a visionary 
approach to using the allocated funds to promote a safe roadway corridor for vehicles and 
bicyclists along F Street.    

CONCLUSION 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution approving Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution Adopting Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List 
for Fiscal Year 2021-22 

B. RMRA Project List for FY 2021-22  
C. LSR Projected FY2021-22 Revenues - Town’s Annual RMRA Funds 



Res. 2021-_____, FY 2021-22 SB 1 Project List Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO._______ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 FUNDED 
BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5, Statutes 
of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 to 
address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and  

(b) SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the residents of 
our Town are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which projects 
have been completed each fiscal year; and 

(c) The Town must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal year 
funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, which 
must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for 
the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

(d) The Town, will receive an estimated $33,215 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 2021-22 from 
SB 1; and 

(e) This is the fifth year in which the Town is receiving SB 1 funding and will enable the Town 
to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, 
repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options for the traveling 
public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

(f) The Town has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input into our 
community’s transportation priorities identifying roadway rehabilitation projects through the 
Town’s Capital Improvement Program; and    

(h) The Towns allotment of SB 1 funds will assist in the funding of the F Street Resurfacing 
Project; and 

(i) The scope of work for the project will improve the pavement road condition, which will 
increase the Pavement Condition Index (PCI) for the F Street, and enhance the vehicle safety for 
this section of the roadway, funding these enhancements are Gas Tax / RMRA eligible expenses; 
and 

(m) The Fiscal Year 2021-22, SB 1 allocation is estimated at $33,215, these proposed SB1 
funds are to be designated for the “F Street Resurfacing Project”; and 

Attachment A



Res. 2021-_____, FY 2021-22 SB 1 Project List  Page 2 of 3 

(n) The SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads infrastructure 
with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets infrastructure, and 
using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant positive benefits to 
local and statewide communities. 

2. Findings and Order. 

The City Council finds and orders that: 

(a) The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

(b) The City Council hereby authorizes the transfer of FY 2021-22 SB 1 allocation of $33,215 
into Street Capital Fund (32). 

 (c) The following projects may utilize fiscal year 2021-22 Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the relisting of these projects in the 
adopted fiscal year resolution, the Town is reaffirming to the public and the State our intent to 
fund these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues:  

 RMRA 2021-22 Project List 

The Project will be created for roadway rehabilitation work in 2021-2022. 

Project Description: Implementation of road rehabilitation for F Street from El Camino 
Real to the City Limit (Block 300) includes base repair, overlay and street striping and 
markings.   

Location: F Street From El Camino Real to the City Limit (Block 300). 

Scheduled Construction Completion: Spring of 2022 

Estimated Useful Life: 20 Years. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 



Res. 2021-_____, FY 2021-22 SB 1 Project List  Page 3 of 3 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2022-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on June 9, 2021, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin       

Joanne F. del Rosario      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest: ____________________________ 
        Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Submittal Report

LSR-C11-FY21/22-5264-001

FY 21/22

Submittal Details
Program

Local Streets and Roads Program

Agency

Town of Colma

Date Created

05/27/2021

Date Submitted Date Approved

Address

1198 El Camino Real

City

Colma

State

CA

Zip Code

94014

Contact

Brad Donohue

Contact Title

Public Works Director

Contact Phone

(650) 757-8888

Contact Email

brad.donohue@colma.ca.gov

Avg. Network PCI

79

Measurement Date

7/2020

Support Documentation
Town's adopted Resolution No. 2021-XX and Staff Report
specifying the F Street Resurfacing project   for approving Road
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List for
Fiscal Year 2021-22 funded by SB 1 : The Road Repair and
Accountability Act of 2017.

Additional Information
The funds are proposed to be allocated to the rehabilitation of F
Street from El Camino Real to the City Limit (Block 300) “F Street
Resurfacing Project”  to be constructed in 2022.

abdulkaderh
Text Box
Attachment "B"



Project Details

Title Description Location Component
Priority
Status

Est. Schedule Useful Life

Assem SenateStart Complete Min Max
F Street
Resurfacing
Project

This project will include: Cost Estimating
Town of Colma, F Street (Block
300) from El Camino Real to City
Limit

Pre-
Construction

New 21/22
05/2022 06/2022

10 20 19 11



ATTACHMENT B

Local Streets and Roads - Projected FY2021-22 Revenues
Based on State Dept of Finance statewide revenue projections

Estimated May 2021 TOTAL Road Mntnc
Sec2103 (5) Sec2105 (3) Sec2106 (3) Sec2107 (3) Sec2107.5 (4) HUTA Rehab Acct

Highway Users Tax Acct (HUTA)(1)  Streets & Highways Code TOTAL
SAN MATEO COUNTY
ATHERTON 54,181             39,802             29,107             50,620             2,000           175,711              135,068           310,779               
BELMONT 206,623           151,786           97,497             193,043           6,000           654,949              515,086           1,170,034            
BRISBANE 35,702             26,227             20,817             33,356             1,000           117,102              89,001             206,103               
BURLINGAME 232,091           170,495           108,923           216,838           6,000           734,347              578,576           1,312,923            
COLMA 13,324             9,788               10,777             12,448             1,000           47,337                33,215             80,552                 
DALY CITY 841,055           617,843           382,121           785,780           10,000         2,636,799           2,096,650        4,733,449            
EAST PALO ALTO 237,300           174,322           111,260           221,705           6,000           750,587              591,562           1,342,149            
FOSTER CITY 254,554           186,997           119,000           237,825           6,000           804,376              634,574           1,438,950            
HALF MOON BAY 95,794             70,371             47,776             89,498             3,000           306,439              238,803           545,242               
HILLSBOROUGH 87,988             64,636             44,274             82,205             3,000           282,103              219,343           501,446               
MENLO PARK 271,670           199,570           126,679           253,815           6,000           857,733              677,240           1,534,973            
MILLBRAE 175,945           129,250           83,734             164,382           5,000           558,310              438,609           996,920               
PACIFICA 295,381           216,988           137,316           275,968           6,000           931,654              736,350           1,668,004            
PORTOLA VALLEY 35,502             26,080             20,727             33,169             1,000           116,477              88,502             204,979               
REDWOOD CITY 668,532           491,107           304,722           624,595           7,500           2,096,456           1,666,570        3,763,026            
SAN BRUNO 350,271           257,311           161,942           327,251           6,000           1,102,775           873,185           1,975,960            
SAN CARLOS 232,299           170,648           109,016           217,032           6,000           734,996              579,094           1,314,090            
SAN MATEO 794,395           583,566           361,188           742,187           10,000         2,491,336           1,980,331        4,471,667            
SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 523,080           384,257           239,468           488,703           7,500           1,643,008           1,303,975        2,946,983            
WOODSIDE 43,740             32,131             24,423             40,865             2,000           143,159              109,038           252,196               
SANTA BARBARA COUNTY
BUELLTON 42,106             30,931             20,369             39,339             2,000           134,744              104,965           239,710               
CARPINTERIA 102,760           75,488             42,796             96,007             3,000           320,051              256,169           576,220               
GOLETA 248,312           182,411           96,613             231,993           6,000           765,330              619,013           1,384,344            
GUADALUPE 62,273             45,746             27,825             58,180             2,000           196,024              155,238           351,262               
LOMPOC 337,418           247,869           129,560           315,242           6,000           1,036,089           841,142           1,877,230            
SANTA BARBARA 720,602           529,357           271,242           673,243           7,500           2,201,944           1,796,374        3,998,318            
SANTA MARIA 827,685           608,021           310,836           773,289           10,000         2,529,831           2,063,320        4,593,151            
SOLVANG 42,861             31,486             20,648             40,044             2,000           137,039              106,848           243,887               

 14 May 2021
CaliforniaCityFinance.com

Page 13 of 16

C

abdulkaderh
Rectangle



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Adoption of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget  Page 1 of 6 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: June 9, 2019 
SUBJECT: Adoption of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The new Fiscal Year for the Town of Colma begins on July 1, 2021.  To conduct business, it is 
necessary for the City Council to authorize the expenditure of funds.   

The attached FY 2021-22 Proposed Budget includes a projection of $19.4 million in total revenues 
for all funds and a budget request of $20.6 million in total expenditures, which consists of $19.5 
million in Operating Expenditures, $300,000 in annual Debt Service (Town Hall Certificate of 
Participation) and $1.1 million in Capital Improvement Projects (22% funded in prior years). 

The General Fund revenue budget is $17.5 million and the expenditure budget is $17.9 million, 
generating a projected operating deficit of $0.4 million in FY 2021-22.  General Fund supports 
sewer operation, debt payments, and the capital programs. Total transfers from the General Fund 
is $1.1 million, with $297,000 to Debt Service (Fund 43), $238,000 to Sewer Fund (Fund 81), and 
$532,000 to Capital Improvement Projects (Fund 31 & 32). This brings the total General Fund 
deficit to $1.5 million. The General Fund is also transferring $3.0 million of unassigned reserves 
to the General Fund Budget Stabilization Reserve per Colma Administrative Code Section 
4.01.150(d)(2). 

The operating expenditure budget in other funds includes $1.2 million for Sewer Operations (Fund 
81); $157,000 for Creekside Villas and Verano Operations (Fund 83, City Properties); $184,000 
for Parking Enforcement Operations (Fund 29); $6,000 for Youth Outreach and Crisis Intervention 
Training (Fund 27); and, $30,000 for streetlight and traffic signal maintenance (Fund 21). 

The preliminary FY 2021-22 Budget was studied on April 28, 2021, the capital program on May 
12, 2021, and the proposed FY 2021-22 operating and capital budget on May 26, 2021. Comments 
from the City Council meetings are incorporated in the document.  

Item #7



Staff Report re Adoption of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget  Page 2 of 6 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY 2021-22 Proposed Budget requests an appropriation of $19.5 million in Town-Wide 
Operating Expenditures, $300,000 in Debt Service, and $1.1 million in Capital Improvement 
Projects. The budget includes a total transfer out of $4.2 million, with: 

• General Fund (Fund 11) transfers $3.0 million to Budget Stabilization reserve, $298,000 
to debt service operation, $525,000 to the non-street capital program, $7,000 to the 
street capital program, and $238,000 to sewer operations, 

• Gas Tax & RMRA (Fund 21) transfers $45,000 to street capital program, 
• Measure A (Fund 22) transfers $73,000 to the street capital program, and 
• Measure W (Fund 26) transfers $32,000 to the street capital program.  

 
The FY 2021-22 budget also includes the use of $1.52 million of General Fund Unassigned 
Reserves to pay for operations in excess of projected revenues for the year. Table 1 below 
summarizes the projected General Fund reserve balances for June 30, 2022. 
 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND 

The budget is an annual planning tool that communicates priorities and sets the Town’s operating 
and spending policy for the year. The City Manager is responsible for presenting a budget to the 
City Council, in accordance with Colma Administrative Code Section 4.01 Division 2. The financial 
objective of the budget is to ensure that there are sufficient funds to meet ongoing spending. 
Special projects, where spending is generally one-time in nature, can utilize reserves. 

At the April 28, 2021 City Council Regular meeting, Staff presented the preliminary revenues and 
expenditures for FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22, as shown in Table 2 below.  

Table 1 Actual
Reserve 
Categories

General Fund Reserves
(Fund Number)

FY 2019-20 
Balance

FY 2020-21 
Balance

FY 2021-22 
Balance

Change in Fund 
Balance

[a] [b] [b] - [a]

Restricted OPEB Trust (71) 5,082,881$           5,549,281$           6,511,615$           962,334$              
Pension Trust (72) 1,458,087             1,911,052             2,531,545             620,493                 

Committed Budget Stabilization (12) 12,000,000           12,000,000           15,000,000           3,000,000             
Debt Reduction (12) 600,000                 600,000                 600,000                 0                              
Accrued Leave Payout Reserve (12) 715,000                 683,946                 788,671                 104,725                 

Assigned Litigation Reserve (11) 100,000                 100,000                 100,000                 0                              
Insurance Reserve (11) 100,000                 100,000                 100,000                 0                              
Disaster Reserve (11) 750,000                 750,000                 750,000                 0                              

Unassigned Unassigned (11, 19) 9,568,502             10,036,890           5,412,927             (4,623,963)           
Total General Fund Reserves (Incl 115 Trusts) 30,374,470$     31,731,169$     31,794,758$     63,588$              
Total General Fund Reserves (excl 115 Trusts) 23,833,502$     24,270,836$     22,751,598$     (1,519,238)$      

Projected



Staff Report re Adoption of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget  Page 3 of 6 
 

 

The FY 2021-22 preliminary budget shows a fund deficit of $1.21 million for all funds (or “Town-
wide”) and $1.55 million deficit in General Funds. At the April 28th Council meeting, the City 
Council directed staff to further refine the budget and bring back more information regarding the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on Recreation and Facility Operations. The City Council was 
open to the proposed operating program and the need to use unassigned reserves to fund the 
funding deficit, shown as Change in Fund Balance in Table 2 above. 
 
After the April 28th City Council meeting, staff refined the FY 2021-22 capital program and 
returned to the City Council on May 12th with a study session for the capital program. As shown 
in Table 3 below, the total Capital Program budget for FY 2021-22 is $1.08 million, with $235,000 
of projected carryover of unspent project budget. 
 

 

During the Capital Budget Study Session, the City Council directed staff to program and complete 
the F-Street Retaining Wall (902) project before the 2021 rainy season, if possible, and to 
potentially drawdown on other capital projects, such as the Financial Software Update and 
Replacement (965). At this point, the construction cost for the F-Street Retaining Wall is unknown 
and a budget amendment will be brought forward to the City Council for consideration, post 
adoption of the FY 2021-22 Operating and Capital Budget. 
 

Table 2 (4/28/2021 CC Mtg)

Financial Town-wide General Fund Town-wide General Fund Town-wide General Fund
Operating Activities [a] [b] [c] [d] [c] - [a] [d] - [b]

Revenues 17,776,372$     15,281,314$     19,383,580$     17,531,264$     1,607,208$       2,249,950$       
Expenditures 15,925,737       14,118,997       19,748,293       17,876,721       3,822,556         3,757,724         
Capital Program 3,016,897         0                          848,525             0                          (2,168,372)        0                          
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) (1,166,262)     1,162,317      (1,213,238)     (345,457)        (46,976)           (1,507,774)     

Net Transfers In/(Out)
General Fund (675,354)           0                          (535,756)           0                          139,598             0                          
Special Revenues & Debt (109,631)           (297,369)           297,569             (297,569)           407,200             (200)                    
Capital Funds 657,000             (250,000)           0                          (665,025)           (657,000)           (415,025)           
Enterprise Funds 127,985             (127,985)           238,187             (238,187)           110,202             (110,202)           

Net Transfers In/(Out) 0                       (675,354)        0                       (1,200,781)     0                       (525,427)        

Change in Budget2020/21 Est. Actual 2021-22 Preliminary Budget

Fund Surplus / (Deficit)
  "Change in Fund Balance"

(1,166,262)        (1,213,238)        (46,976)              486,963             (1,546,238)        (2,033,201)        

Table 3 22/23 thru 26/27 Unfunded

2021-2027 Capital Program Carryover New Request Projection Budget

1. Streets, Sidewalk, & Bikeways 40,000$                      157,000$                   2,167,900$                60,450,000$             

2. Sewer & Storm Drains 0                                   0                                   235,000                      0                                   

3. City Facilities & Long-Range Plan 195,000                      174,025                      1,544,025                  0                                   

4. Major Equipment, Technology & Fleet 0                                   515,000                      1,460,000                  0                                   

Total Program Budget & Projection 235,000$                   846,025$                   5,406,925$                60,450,000$             

Total Program Budget for FY 2021/22 1,081,025$                

2021/22 Budget



Staff Report re Adoption of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget  Page 4 of 6 
 

On May 26, 2021, staff returned with the full proposed budget which incorporated feedback from 
the April 28th and May 12th budget study sessions and presented the budget as shown in Table 4 
below. 

 

Changes between Table 2 and Table 4 above includes: 

• Revenue reduction to correct Creekside Villa rental income from $360,000 to $180,000, 
an addition of $20,000 in grant reimbursements for the Housing Element Update (996) 
project, and an increase of $6,000 in Gas Tax (and RMRA) revenues per recent revenue 
distribution notice.  
 

• The expenditure budget increased by $291,000, with $106,000 in General Fund and 
$185,000 in the capital program. The Police Department is anticipating having four known 
vacancies with three Officer positions vacant. The Police Administration Overtime budget 
was increased by $100,000 to account for overtime cost due to the vacant positions. The 
overtime budget is for patrol coverage while the positions are being filled and the newly 
hired police officers are trained. This $100,000 is a limited time budget increase and will 
be removed in the FY 2022-23 budget if the department is fully staffed. The increase of 
$185,000 in the capital program is primarily from projected unspent capital project 
budgets to be carried over to FY 2021-22. Final amounts to be carried over from 
FY 2020-21 to FY 2021-22 will be based on actual available project budget on 
June 30, 2021 and will be presented as part of the FY 2020-21 Capital Program closeout. 

The final proposed budget for FY 2021-22, is the same as the budget presented on May 26, 2021. 
Feedback on the budget presentation are incorporated in the budget attached (Attachment B). 

ANALYSIS 

Overall, the FY 2021-22 Budget includes a projection of $19.4 million in total revenues (all funds) 
and a budget request of $20.6 million in total appropriation (expenditure budget), which consists 
of $19.5 million in Operating Expenditures, $300,000 in Annual Debt Service (Town Hall COP) 
and $1.1 million in Capital Improvement Projects (22% funded in prior years).  

Table 4  (5/26/2021 CC Mtg)

Town-wide Financial
Operating Activities

Revenues 17,531,264$     290,652$           22,000$             256,500$           1,129,468$       19,229,885$     
Expenditures 17,982,721       517,697             877,025             164,000             1,337,375          20,878,818       
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) (451,457)         (227,045)         (855,025)         92,500             (207,907)         (1,648,934)     

Net Transfers In/(Out)
Capital Program (532,025)            (150,000)            682,025             0                          0                          0                          
Debt & Sewer (535,756)            297,569             0                          0                          238,187             0                          

Net Transfers In/(Out) (1,067,781)     147,569          682,025          0                       238,187          0                       

30,280                (1,648,934)        
Fund Surplus / (Deficit)

  "Change in Fund Balance"
(1,519,238)        (79,476)              (173,000)            92,500                

General Funds

Special 
Revenues & 
Debt Funds Capital Funds

Vehicle
Replacement

Fund
Enterprise 

Funds Total



Staff Report re Adoption of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget  Page 5 of 6 
 

The proposed FY 2021-22 Operating and Capital Budget (Attachment B) continues to be a 
conservative budget. It accounts for uncertainties surrounding the Covid-19 pandemic and its 
impact on Town revenues and operation. The FY 2021-22 Budget includes assumptions that 
revenues will not fully return to pre-Covid levels until the end of September or October of 2021. 
On the other hand, with Governor Newsom’s plan to reopen California on June 15, 2021, the 
Town’s FY 2021-22 Expenditure Budget assumes the Town will reopen all facilities and be in full 
operation on July 1, 2021. 

Transfers Summary 

As shown in Table 5 below, transfers out for all funds total $4.2 million with: 

• $3,000,000 from General Fund unassigned reserves to Budget Stabilization reserves in 
Fund 12; 

• $297,569 from General Fund to debt service operation in Fund 43; 
• $525,025 from General Fund to capital program in Fund 31; 
• $157,000 from General Fund, Gas Tax, Measure A, and Measure W to street capital 

program in Fund 32; and 
• $238,187 from General Fund to sewer operations in Fund 81.  

 

The projected reserve balance is presented above as Table 1, within the Fiscal Impact section. 

GANN Limit  

As part of the Budget exercise, the Town prepares the Appropriation Limit in accordance with 
State Law.  The Limit is calculated by multiplying the adopted Limit from the previous year by 
factors reflecting economic changes.  The laws regulating the application of the Limit forbid an 
agency from appropriating specific funds that would exceed the Limit.  The restriction applies to 
appropriated monies categorized as " Proceeds of Taxes."  The Limit carries forward each year 
and is subject to an adjustment in accordance with a specified formula. 

The new 2021-22 Appropriations Limit is included in the budget document but will be part of the 
June 23, 2021 Regular City Council meeting for consideration and adoption. 

Table 5

Interfund Transfers General Funds Capital Funds
Enterprise 

Funds Total
Net Transfers In/(Out)

General Fund (11) (3,000,000)$      297,569$           532,025$           0$                        238,187$           (1,932,219)$      
General Fund Reserve (12) 3,000,000          3,000,000          
Gas Tax & RMRA (21) 45,450                45,450                
Measure A (22) 72,600                72,600                
Measure W (26) 31,950                31,950                
Debt Fund (43) (297,569)            (297,569)            
Capital Fund (31) (525,025)            (525,025)            
Street Capital Fund (32) (7,000)                (150,000)            (157,000)            
Sewer (81) (238,187)            (238,187)            

Net Transfers In/(Out) (1,067,781)     147,569          682,025          0                       238,187          0                       

Special 
Revenues & 
Debt Funds

Vehicle
Replacement

Fund



Staff Report re Adoption of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget  Page 6 of 6 
 

Reasons For the Recommended Action/Findings  

Adoption of a budget is required for operations to continue in FY 2021-22.  

Council Adopted Values 
 
Approval of the FY 2021-22 Annual Budget is the responsible action because the City Council has 
studied the budget in April and May and considered various budgetary options, including 
considering community input.  

Alternatives 

1. Adopt a reduced or modified FY 2021-22 budget appropriation. 

2. Adopt one month of the operating budget and conduct further study of the FY 2021-22 
Budget. This action may result in operating and capital projects delay. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the Council conduct a public hearing and adopt the attached resolution 
appropriating funds and adopting the 2021-22 Proposed Budget.   

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution Appropriating Funds and Adopting the 2021-22 Proposed Budget 
B. FY 2021-22 Proposed Budget 

 



Res 2021-##, Adoption of FY 2021-22 Annual Budget Page 1 of 5 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows. 

1. Background

(a) The City Manager’s budget message, the proposed budget, and all calculations and 
documentation upon which this resolution is based have been available to the public for more 
than fifteen days for review; 

(b) The City Council conducted a study session and public meeting on the preliminary 
budget report on April 28, 2021, the capital program on May 12, 2021, and the complete 
FY 2021-22 Proposed Budget document was distributed and available on the Town website on 
May 28, 2021; 

(c) The City Council conducted a study session in a public meeting on the complete FY 
2021-22 Proposed Budget document on May 26, 2021; 

(d) A public hearing was held on June 9, 2021 on the proposed budget; and 

(e) The City Council duly considered the proposed budget, the City Manager’s budget 
message, and public comments, if any, thereon. 

2. Findings and Order.

(a) Budget Approval. The 2021-22 budget proposed by the City Manager, dated July 1, 
2021, shall be, and hereby is, adopted as the budget for the Town of Colma for Fiscal Year 
2021-22.  

(b) Authorization for the use of reserves. Colma Administrative Code 4.01.180 (b) requires 
City Council approval for use of reserves above $50,000. The maximum amount of reserves 
needed for FY 2021-22 is $1.52 million.  

(c) Summary of Appropriations. A summary (Exhibit A) is attached hereto and by reference 
made part of this Resolution, reflects the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget (All Funds) for the Town 
of Colma. 

(d) Clerical Adjustments. The City Manager shall be, and hereby is, authorized to adjust the 
budget pursuant to the provisions of section 4.01.070 of the Colma Administrative Code to 
make such other adjustments necessary to correct any clerical or technical errors in the 
proposed budget, provided that the City Manager makes a written report of all corrections or 
adjustments to the City Council within 30 days. 

(e) Department Limitation. The City Council authorizes the expenditure of funds for the 
items specified in the budget, provided that the total expenditures for the department shall not 

Attachment A



Res 2021-##, Adoption of FY 2021-22 Annual Budget Page 2 of 5 
 

exceed the total budget by fund, for the department.  

(f) Staffing. The number and classifications of employment positions shown in the proposed 
budget is hereby approved as the authorized staffing level for the Town.  The City Manager and 
each department head may not expand the number of full-time equivalent employees beyond 
that shown as the authorized staffing level for the Town without specific approval of the City 
Council. 

(g) Purchasing Ordinance. All expenditures for services, goods, or public works projects 
must comply with the Town’s Purchasing and Contracting Ordinance (Subchapter 1.06 of the 
Colma Municipal Code). 

(h) Administration of Annual Budget. The City Manager shall be responsible to administer 
the Budget and financial records and the City Council authorization includes the following 
administrative actions as may be required during the year: 

(i) Transfer budgeted amounts between line items, provided that the transfer 
is within the same fund, and within the same Department. 

(ii) Increase grant funded revenue and expenditure budgets.  Changes may 
be administratively processed, when revenue estimates exceed the amount 
identified in the Budget due to increases in grant revenues, as verified by 
financial records.  The adjustment will also account for increased 
expenditures in an amount not to exceed the amount of increased grant 
revenue. Increased appropriations shall continue to be documented in the 
financial records and conveyed to the City Council as part of the quarterly 
financial reports. 

(iii) Make transfers among the various funds designated as “Transfers In / 
Transfers Out”.  The FY 2021-22 Budget document.  All fund transfers shall 
be recorded in the financial records. 

(iv) Administratively adjust the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating Budget 
appropriations to account for the carryover of unspent 2020-21 
appropriations for contracts entered into before June 30, 2021, where funds 
are encumbered.  The City Manager shall use discretion in approving 
carryovers and all such adjustments shall be clearly recorded in the Town 
financial records.  These amendments shall be identified and included in the 
Fiscal Year 2021-22 quarterly financial report. 

(v) Administratively adjust the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Capital Project 
appropriations to account for the carryover of unspent appropriations from 
Fiscal Year 2020-21.  All such adjustments shall be clearly recorded in the 
Town financial records and shall only be for projects that remain incomplete 
as of June 30, 2021. 



Res 2021-##, Adoption of FY 2021-22 Annual Budget Page 3 of 5 
 

3. Reserves 

The City Council hereby declares the following classifications of reserves (Net Income):  

(a) A Debt Reduction reserve shall be recorded in the General Fund in the amount of 
$600,000 as of June 30, 2022.  This amount represents a minimum of two years of COP Debt 
Service. (Committed Fund Balance – Designated by City Council) 

(b) The Budget Stabilization Reserve as of June 30, 2022 is established at $15,000,000, 
being the amount sufficient to ensure continuity of operations in the event of a severe 
economic downturn, which amount is hereby determined to be 100% (rounded to the nearest 
$100,000) of the General Fund expenditures for the prior fiscal year.  The exact amount of this 
reserve shall be determined based on the final audit and financial statements.  (Committed 
Fund Balance – Designated by City Council) 

(c) Accrued Leave Payout Reserve shall be recorded in the General Fund in the amount of 
$788,671 as of June 30, 2022.  (Committed Fund Balance – Designated by City Council) 

(d) Assigned Fund Balances – General Fund: Assigned fund balance includes amounts 
intended to be used by the Town for specific purposes, subject to change. The City Council 
authorizes the City Manager to establish the following assignments in the General Fund: 

(i) Litigation Reserve of $100,000, which may fund expenditures in the event of 
extraordinary legal expenses. 

(ii) Insurance Reserve in the amount of $100,000, which may fund expenditures 
in the event of extraordinary insurance claims and related expenses. 

(iii) Disaster Response and Recovery in the amount of $750,000 which may fund 
expenditures in the event of a catastrophic event. 

(e) Assigned Fund Balances – Capital Project Fund / Fleet Replacement Fund: All reserves in 
the Capital Project Fund and Fleet Replacement Fund shall be recorded as assigned for future 
projects.  Changes in the assignment shall be subject to City Council action.  

(f) General Fund 2021-22 – Decrease Reserve: The proposed budget estimates $4,623,963 
reduction in unassigned reserves.   

4. Transfer to Unassigned Reserve 

All General Fund net income on hand on June 30, 2021, which is not designated for a specific 
reserve category shall be recorded in the Unassigned Reserve.  

// 

// 

// 



Res 2021-##, Adoption of FY 2021-22 Annual Budget Page 4 of 5 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on June 9, 2021, by the following vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Diana Colvin, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



Res 2021-##, Adoption of FY 2021-22 Annual Budget Page 5 of 5 
 

“EXHIBIT A”: SUMMARY OF APPROPRIATIONS FY 2021-22 
 

 

Town-wide Financial

General 
Funds

(11, 12, 19)

Special 
Revenues & 
Debt Funds
(21, 22, 23, 

24, 25, 26, 27, 
29, 43)

Capital Funds
(31, 32)

Vehicle
Replacement

Fund
(61)

Enterprise 
Funds

(81, 82, 83) Total
Revenues by Categories

Sales tax 12,000,000    0                       0                       0                       0                       12,000,000    
Cardroom tax 3,512,000      0                       0                       0                       0                       3,512,000      
Property and other taxes 787,308          0                       0                       0                       0                       787,308          
Licenses and permits 281,176          0                       0                       0                       0                       281,176          
Fines and forfeitures 94,000            0                       0                       0                       0                       94,000            
Use of money and property 277,685          8,500               0                       6,500               187,305          479,990          
Revenues from other agencies 328,020          282,152          20,000            0                       0                       630,172          
Charges for current services 196,362          0                       0                       250,000          942,163          1,388,526      
Allocations 0                       0                       0                       0                       0                       -                   
Other revenues 54,713            0                       2,000               0                       0                       56,713            

Total Revenues 17,531,264    290,652          22,000            256,500          1,129,468      19,229,885    

Expenditures by Function
General Government 4,610,490      297,569          0                       0                       0                       4,908,059      
Public Safety 8,977,081      190,128          0                       0                       0                       9,167,209      
Public Works 2,664,058      30,000            0                       0                       1,180,350      3,874,408      
Facility Operations 715,457          0                       0                       0                       117,025          832,482          
Capital Improvement Projects 0                       0                       877,025          164,000          40,000            1,081,025      
Recreation 1,015,635      0                       0                       0                       0                       1,015,635      

Total Expenditure by Function 17,982,721    517,697          877,025          164,000          1,337,375      20,878,818    

Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) (451,457)        (227,045)        (855,025)        92,500            (207,907)        (1,648,934)     

Other Activities
Transfers In 3,000,000      297,569          682,025          0                       238,187          4,217,781      
Transfers (Out) (4,067,781)     (150,000)        0                       0                       0                       (4,217,781)     

Net Transfers In/(Out) (1,067,781)     147,569          682,025          0                       238,187          0                       

Fund Balance
Change in Fund Balance (1,519,238)     (79,476)           (173,000)        92,500            30,280            (1,648,934)     
Beginning Fund Balance @ 7/1/21 24,318,863    1,018,948      3,302,794      740,869          242,870          29,624,343    

Ending Fund Balance 22,799,625    939,472          3,129,794      833,369          273,150          27,975,410    

Trust Funds Balance
OPEB Trust (71) 6,511,615      
Pension Trust (72) 2,531,545      

Ending Fund Balance - All Funds 37,018,569    



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 1

Attachment B

https://www.colma.ca.gov/
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/rcFCRdSf6


2021-22 Proposed Budget 2

Attachment B



Table of Contents 

Introductory 

Preface 

Budget Award (below) 

Introductory 

How to Use Navigate Document 
City Manager's Message 
Budget At A Glance 
Colma Profile 
Colma Revenues Profile 

Budget Overview 

Economic Assumptions for FY 2021-22 
Town-wide Financial Summary 
Revenues and Expenditures Summary 
Projected Reserve Balance for All Funds 
Inter-Fund Transfers 

Department Budget 

General Government 

City Council (110) 
City Attorney (130) 
City Manager/City Clerk (140) 
Human Resources (141) 
Finance (150) 
General Services (151) 
Debt Service (620) 
Emergency Response (19-600) 

Public Safety 

Administration (210) 
Patrol (220) 
Communication (230)  
Community Services (240) 

Public Works & Planning 

Engineering & Building (310) 
Maintenance (320) 
Planning (410) 
Facilities (800s) 

Recreation (510) 

Capital Improvement Plan 

Capital Overview 
Streets, Sidewalks, & Bikeways 
Sewers & Storm Drains 
City Facilities & Long-Range Plans 
Major Equipment, Technology, & Vehicles 

Supplementary 

Financial Summaries 

Financial Trends and Projections 
(includes assumptions, trends, and 
projections by fund categories) 

Appendix 

2021-22 Appropriation Limit 
Staffing 
Description of Funds 
Town's Financial Policies 
Glossary of Terms 
Resolutions for: 

• Budget Adoption
• GANN Limit

Budget Award 
The Town did not pursue the budget in FY 2020-21. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Town rolled over the FY 
2019-20 budget to FY 2020-21 and shifted our attention from budget document development to pandemic response. 
Therefore, the FY 2020-21 budget document was an abbreviated budget and did not include several sections required 
by the GFOA and CSMFO budget award. The abbreviated budget document can be found at: 
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EbzmlxBIP 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 3

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EKt4AU0Ht
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EKt4AU0Ht
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EKt4AU0Ht
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EKt4AU0Ht
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EKt4AU0Ht
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/c3iExm-L3
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/3oKDWKv8j
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/r9AohjWM-
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Z1M1Zt2Gd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/LEukjwzkH
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/9xMEmOs59
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/p4QnkN7X2
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/jq2ZbHp8c
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/dgNtTTEZd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/QzXOnVJDq
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/R_URgpQf8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/kR5Dlr1RN
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/7B2MyzNyt
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/0EIwyMYBN
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/AGACb54Yw
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/clrEFcQ2C
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Xmu_J9GG1
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/WWhCdf5JM
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/P9WYXiUB8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/o7G0QA07N
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/DlQE_JcuA
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/VVMGeZFMe
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ePYfWw36w
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/zUSKwdxcb
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/rcFCRdSf6
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/rcFCRdSf6
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/rcFCRdSf6
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EbzmlxBIP


Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Navigating Through the Digital Budget 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 4

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd


City Manager's Message 

 

Budget At A Glance 
<<YouTube video will be embedded by June 9, 2021>> 

Expenditure by Funds 

 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 5

Attachment B



Colma Profile 

More information about Colma history is available at the Colma Historical Association website at 
https://www.colmahistory.com/history.html 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 6

Attachment B

https://www.colmahistory.com/history.html


 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 7

Attachment B



Colma Revenues Profile 
The Town's main sources of revenues are sales, cardroom, and property taxes. Cardroom tax is based on gross 
revenue.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 8

Attachment B



Sales Tax Revenues 

Where does my sales tax dollar go? 

The tax rate for San Mateo County is 9.25%. The chart 
above shows that for every dollar of sales tax you pay, 
11 cents goes to the Town of Colma. 

Sales Tax Trend 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 9

Attachment B



Property Tax Revenues 

Where does my property tax dollar go? 

 

For every dollar of property tax you pay, the Town gets 
7 cents. This does not include special bonds and other 
fees added to the property tax roll. 

 

Property Tax Trend 

 

Major Employers in Colma 

Data below are based on currently issued business licenses as of 5/7/21 (During Covid-19). Major employers are 
arranged in alphabetical order. 

• Ashley HomeStore has 19 employees and is classified as Retail 
• Best Buy has 92 employees and is classified as Retail 
• Black Bear Diner has 37 employees and is classified as Restaurant 
• Cadillac has 25 starting and will have 55 when fully running employees and is classified as Automobile 

Dealership 
• Car Max has 68 employees and is classified as Automobile Dealership 
• Cypress Lawn has 153 employees and is classified as Cemetery 
• Home Depot has 241 employees and is classified as Retail 
• Home Depot Pro has 200 employees and is classified as Retail 
• Honda of Serramonte has 94 employees and is classified as Automobile Dealership 
• Kohl’s has 112 employees and is classified as Retail 
• Lexus of Serramonte has 79 employees and is classified as Automobile Dealership 
• Lucky Chances has 199 employees and is classified as Cardroom with Restaurant, Coffee Shop, Bar and 

Gift Shop 
• Serramonte Ford has 122 employees and is classified as Automotive Dealership 
• Stewart Chevrolet Chrysler Dodge Jeep Ram has 102 employees and is classified as Automobile 

Dealership 
• Target has 334 employees and is classified as Retail 
• Tesla has 12 employees and is classified as Automobile Dealership 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 10

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Economic Assumptions for FY 2021-22 
The FY 2021-22 Budget projects total revenues to be $19.4 million, the operating budget to be $19.8 million, and the 
capital program to be $1.1 million. The General Fund is the main revenue source for Town operations. In addition to 
supporting operations in the General Fund (Fund No 11, 12, & 19), General Fund revenues also support the capital 
program, debt service, and sewer operations, through annual transfers. For this reason, the analysis below will focus 
primarily on the General Fund. 

Overall General Fund Budget 

For FY 2021-22, the General Fund is projected to receive $17.5 million in revenues, to spend $18.0 million in 
operations, and to transfer $1.1 million to support capital, debt, and sewer programs. After transfers, the General 
Fund will need $1.5 million of unassigned reserve 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 11

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/EKt4AU0Ht
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/c3iExm-L3


General Fund Revenue and Expenditure 

 

The General Fund operating deficit for FY 2021-22 is 
projected to be $451,000. It reflects the difference 
between the projected General Fund revenues of 
$17.53 million and the General Fund expenditures 
budget of $17.98 million. Since the Town's General 
Fund also supports capital, debt, and sewer operations, 
the operating deficit of $451,000 does not reflect the full 
picture. 

 

As stated above, after accounting for General Fund 
transfers, the net fund deficit is $1.52 million for FY 
2021-22. Transfers include $532,000 to the Capital 
Program (31 & 32), $298,000 to Debt Service (43), and 
$238,000 to Sewer Operations (81).  

General Fund (11) transfers include $3.0 million to fund 
the Budget Stabilization Reserve (12) per the Town's 
reserve policy. Fund 11 and Fund 12 are classified as 
General Fund for reporting purposes and the transfers 
between Fund 11 and Fund 12 offsets each other. 

General Fund Revenues 

Since the Shelter-in-Place order was announced in March of 2020, the Town saw a reduction of roughly $5.8 million 
in revenues. The total FY 2019-20 revenues was $2.8 million less than FY 2018-19 Actuals, and the FY 2020-21 
revenues is projected to be $3.1 million less than FY 2018-19 Actuals. The Town originally expected revenues to be 
less in both years due to the shelter in place order. Below is a brief explanation of how the Covid-19 pandemic 
impacted the Town's revenues in FY 2020-21 and how the Town expects the largest three revenue sources to recover 
in FY 2021-22, representing 93% of Total General Fund revenues. 

• Sales tax: Pre-Covid, the Town expected to receive $11.4 million in sales tax revenues in FY 2019-20. Due 
to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Town received $10.5 million in FY 2019-20. We expected the revenue for FY 
2020-21 to be similar to FY 2019-20, with a projected budget of $10.4 million. Because of the enactment of 
the Wayfair decision (https://www.cdtfa.ca.gov/industry/wayfair.htm), the Town will receive $12.0 million in 
sales tax revenues in FY 2020-21. The Wayfair decision impacted the reporting and remittance requirement 
for online sales and the revenues are distributed to the Town as use tax, a component of sales tax revenues. 
The Town expects revenues in FY 2021-22 to be the same as FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual because of 
potential supply shortage and changing online merchant arrangements. 

• Cardroom tax is the Town's second largest general fund revenue source. The Town originally projected to 
receive $4.3 million in cardroom tax revenues in FY 2019-20. The shelter-in-place order in March dropped 
the monthly revenues from $350,000 to $17,000, reducing the final FY 2019-20 cardroom tax revenue to 
$3.3 million. The trend continued in FY 2020-21, where the cardroom facility was closed to the public for a 
majority of the fiscal year. As the county moved through the California Covid tiers, the Town's cardroom 
industry began to reopen with limited capacity. Based on the latest estimates, the Town expects to end the 
fiscal year 2020-21 at $1.8 million. The FY 2021-22 Budget of $3.5 million assumes that the cardroom 
industry will operate at 80% capacity in the first few months of FY 2021-22 before returning to full capacity.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 12

Attachment B

https://www.cdtfa.ca.gov/industry/wayfair.htm


• Property and other taxes is a relatively stable revenue source. Growth is limited to 2% per year, per Prop 
13, but during an economic crisis, property values may reduce per Prop 8 housing valuation relief. In general, 
property tax impacts are delayed by 2 years, whereas sales tax and cardroom tax revenues can be impacted 
immediately. Since the Covid-19 pandemic began in FY 2019-20, the Town projected a more conservative 
number for FY 2021-22 at $787,000.  

General Fund Revenues by Categories Trend 

 

General Fund Tax Revenue Trend 

 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 13

Attachment B



General Fund Expenditure 

The FY 2021-22 General Fund budget is $18.0 million, an increase of $3.8 million from FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual, 
$2.7 million more than FY 2019-20 Actual, and $1.01 million more than the FY 2019-20 Budget. 

In response to the financial impact from the Covid-19 pandemic, the Town cut $1.7 million from the FY 2019-20 
budget in March through a hiring freeze ($221k), reducing contribution to the 115 Trusts by half ($988k), suspending 
capital purchases ($300k), and eliminating the $500k transfer to the Capital Fund from the General Fund. These 
temporary cost cutting measures were continued in FY 2020-21. The FY 2021-22 Budget restores the Town's 
operation to pre-Covid service levels, including aiming to be fully staffed, making contributions to 115 Trusts at 100%, 
replacing vehicles and equipment as necessary, and hosting recreation events and programs. 

The FY 2021-22 Budget also includes initiatives identified in the Town's 2020-2022 Strategic Plan, which can be 
found on the Town's website ( https://www.colma.ca.gov/strategic-plan/ ). These initiatives include engaging
consultants for economic development ($50k) and revenue strategies ($100k). 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 14

Attachment B

https://www.colma.ca.gov/strategic-plan/


Town-Wide Financial Summary for Fiscal Year 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 15

Attachment B



Revenues & Expenditure Summary 

Revenues by Categories for All Funds 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 16

Attachment B



Expenditure by Categories for All Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 17

Attachment B



Expenditure by Department for All Funds 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 18

Attachment B



Projected Reserve Balance 
The graph below shows reserve balance by fund categories. The default is set on FY 2021-22. You can move the 
slider below the graph to a different fiscal year. The table below the graph will update with the balances corresponding 
to the selected fiscal year.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 19

Attachment B



Inter-Fund Transfers Summary 
The General Fund Transfer Out for FY 2021-22 totals $4.07 million with $532,000 to the Capital Program (31 & 32), 
$298,000 to the Debt Service Fund (43), $238,000 to Sewer Operations, and $3.0 million to the Budget Stabilization 
Reserve per the Colma Reserve Policy (CAC 4.01.150(d2)).

2021-22 Proposed Budget 20

Attachment B

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-01-budget-procedures-reserve-policy/


Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

The Town's operation is made up of four main functions: 

1. General Government,
2. Public Safety,
3. Public Works & Planning, and
4. Recreation

Aside from Recreation, there are multiple departments/divisions within each of the functions above. 

Organizational Chart 

The organizational chart, below, is a .gif file and will repeat on its own. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 21

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/3oKDWKv8j
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/R_URgpQf8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/clrEFcQ2C
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/DlQE_JcuA
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/3oKDWKv8j


 

 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 22

Attachment B



 

 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 23

Attachment B



 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 24

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

General Government comprises of the following departments/divisions: 

• City Council (110),
• City Attorney (130),
• City Manager & Clerk (140),
• Human Resources (141),
• Finance (150),
• General Services (151),
• Debt Services (620), and
• Emergency Response (19-600).

All departments and divisions within the General Government function are fully supported by the General Fund (11), 
with Debt Services (620) department housed under Debt Service Fund (43) but are fully supported through annual 
transfers from the General Fund. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 25

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/r9AohjWM-
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Z1M1Zt2Gd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/LEukjwzkH
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/9xMEmOs59
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/p4QnkN7X2
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/jq2ZbHp8c
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/dgNtTTEZd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/QzXOnVJDq
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/c3iExm-L3
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/r9AohjWM-


Revenue Summary 

The main revenue source for General Government operations is the General Fund. The Town receives insurance 
reimbursements for workers' comp, general liability, and property claims. The budget for insurance reimbursement is 
$50,000.  

For the Emergency Response operation (19-600), the Town is expecting a grant of $280,000 from the American 
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA or ARPF).  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 26

Attachment B



Expenditure Summary 

The total General Government Expenditure Budget for FY 2021-
22 is $4.9 million, an increase of $657,000 from FY 2020-21 
Estimated Actual. The increase is attributed to the following: 

• increase contributions to the 115 trusts to reduce future 
pension and OPEB cost ($174,000), 

• restore operating supplies budget to pre-Covid 19 levels 
($118,000),  

• account for consultant services for economic 
development and revenue initiative per the 2020-2022 
Strategic Plan ($150,000), 

• increase in insurance premiums due to unfavorable 
insurance market, ($167,000), and  

• budget for services needed as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic - including continued weekly deep cleaning of 
Police Station and supplies needed for re-opening 
($45,000). 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 27

Attachment B



Expenditure by Fund 

 

Accomplishments 

• Updated 2020-22 Strategic Plan 
• Updated the Town's Reserve Policy and Unfunded Liabilities Strategy for FY 2021-22 and thereafter 
• Received a clean audit for FY 2019-20 
• Improved communications with community through consistent messaging on Social Media Channels  
• Successfully recruited and hired Chief of Police 
• Welcomed several new businesses including House of Bagels, Tesla, Cadillac, Panda Express, Philz Coffee, 

Wing Stop, and AllStar Glass 
• Completed Census 2020 with increased participation from Census 2010 
• Issued seventeen Proclamations, 85 Certificates and managed fifteen Public Records Requests 
• Transitioned from a paper office environment to electronic with the addition of Docu-sign and Laserfiche 

Document Management Software. 

COVID Response 

• Exhausted CRF funding and completed quarterly reporting requirement 
• Coordinated with C.A.P.E  
• Donated $15,000 to San Mateo Strong Business Relief Fund 
• Communicated with business and residential community on Shelter in Place Orders and where to access 

relief 
• Moved Public Meetings to online platform Zoom 
• Supported a Work from Home workplace environment 
• Provided PPE and established Covid-19 protocols for working within the office 
• Provided online tools and resources for business continuity 
• Created a webpage on the Town's website for Covid-19 related updates and resources 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 28

Attachment B



Future Objectives 

• Continue assessment of issues compromising the Town’s long-term fiscal health, including coordinating with 
consultant on potential new revenue strategies. 

• Increase business outreach efforts and economic development. 
• Implement City Council priorities as directed. 
• Continue to work on priority programs and goals as set forth in the 2020-2022 Strategic Plan 
• Implement a document codification system making Town codes and ordinances easier to search and update 
• Covid 19 permitting re-open Town Hall and re-establish in person Public Meetings 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 29

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The City Council Department is part of the General Government Function and its main funding source is the General 
Fund (11). 

The City Council is the elected policy-making body for the Town of Colma. The City Council has four key roles – 
Legislative, Governing Body, Quasi-Judicial, and Representative. 

• Legislative - In its legislative role, the City Council makes laws, which may be in the form of an ordinance or
a resolution. Some examples of legislative acts are an Ordinance Regulating the Uses of Land in the Town
and an Ordinance Prohibiting Nuisances in the Town.

• Governing Body - In its governing body role, the Council sets policies for the Town’s key staff, much like a
Board of Directors of a publicly-held corporation. The Council also sets goals and expectations of the City
Manager and City Attorney and determines overall staffing levels for the Town. In the Council-Manager form
of government, Council Members are not involved in managing the day-to-day operations of the City, leaving
that role to the City Manager.

• Quasi-Judicial - The Council frequently sits as an adjudicatory body. At times, the Council is obligated to
hear evidence and make an impartial decision. At others, the Council has some discretion on how to rule. An
application for a use permit and a request to revoke a use permit are examples of the types of matters that
come before the Council in its quasi-judicial role.

• Representative - Council Members frequently act as the Town’s representative before other public agencies.
In these cases, the member’s authority goes only so far as the instructions given to him or her by the entire
council. Members of the City Council represent the Town on various local, regional and statewide committees,
boards and commissions, such as the San Mateo County Council of Cities.

2021-22 Proposed Budget 30

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/3oKDWKv8j
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Z1M1Zt2Gd


Staffing 

 

The City Council is comprised of five members elected 
at large who serve four-year overlapping terms. Each 
year, the Council selects a member to act as Mayor. 

 

Revenue Summary 

City Council operation is entirely funded by General Fund revenues. 

Expenditure Summary 

FY 2021/22 City Council Budget is $83,400 more than the FY 
2020/21 Estimated Actuals.  

Salaries, wages & benefits budget is $51,000 more than FY 
2020/21 Estimated Actuals because of the increase in health care 
and pension costs and the additional contributions to OPEB and 
pension trusts in an effort to reduce future unfunded liabilities. 

Supplies & services budget is $32,830 and it is due to restoration 
of the FY 2021/22 Budget to pre-Covid budget.  

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 31

Attachment B



Expenditure by Categories 

 

Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 32

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The City Attorney's Department is part of the General Government Function and its main funding source is the 
General Fund (11). 

The City Attorney: 

• Provides legal advice to the City Council, City Manager and staff in identifying legal options and strategies
for implementing and achieving the goals, policies and objectives of the City Council.

• Attends meetings of the City Council and other advisory committees, as needed.
• Meets regularly with City Manager and staff to discuss proposed programs, policies and activities.
• Prepares or reviews all resolutions, ordinances for consideration by the City Council and all contracts for the

Town.
• Monitors and disposes of pending claims involving potential tort liability.
• Represents the Town in significant litigation matters involving the Town or manages the representation

provided by outside counsel.
• Interprets the law for Council Members and staff and renders formal legal opinions.
• Provides training to Council Members and staff on ethics, Brown Act and new laws.
• Provides general legal advice and opinions to the City Council and staff regarding all relevant municipal law

matters.

The City Attorney’s mission is to provide legal advice and support to the City Council and staff to aid them in carrying 
out their responsibilities. 

Staffing 

The Town contracts for City Attorney services through a retainer. 

Revenue Summary 

City Attorney operation is entirely funded by General Fund revenues. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 33

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/r9AohjWM-
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/LEukjwzkH


Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021/22 Budget of $312,500 includes $30,000 for the 
online codification of the Colma Municipal Code and $285,000 for 
general legal services from the City Attorney and the outside 
counsel. The online codification project was budgeted in FY 2018-
19 and FY 2019-20 but was postponed. This project will enhance 
transparency and simplify the maintenance of the Town’s codes 
and regulations. 

The $285,000 budget for general legal services is based on 
historical trends plus contingency. The Town's Legal Services 
fluctuate depending on the types and complexity of the business 
undertaken by the City Council. A small contingency is built into 
the general legal service budgets to ensure adequate 
appropriation. 

The department is part of the General Government function and 
the department expenditures are fully supported by general taxes and fees. Legal services linked to a specific permit 
issue are billed directly to the permit and the corresponding revenues and expenditures are recorded in the Planning 
Division (410).  

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 34

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 35

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The City Manager/City Clerk Department is part of the General Government Function and its main funding source is 
the General Fund (11). 

The Administration Division provides support to residents, members of the City Council and staff. Division functions 
include front office reception and general administrative support; City Council agenda and packet preparation; Council 
meeting minutes; records management; and elections. 

Staffing 

Positions include the City Manager, the Administrative Services 
Director, the City Clerk and two Administrative Technicians. The 
City Manager also serves as the City Treasurer.  

The Administrative Services Director is the Town’s ADA 
Coordinator responsible for administering ADA requests for 
reasonable accommodation. Other responsibilities include Risk 
Manager, chairing the Safety Committee and ensuring the 
implementation of risk management activities; and General 
Services function. 

Revenue Summary 

City Manager/City Clerk operation is entirely funded by General Fund revenues. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 36

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Z1M1Zt2Gd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/9xMEmOs59


Expenditure Summary 

The City Manager/City Clerk's budget is $1.5 million and is 
$224,00 more than the FY 2020/21 Estimated Actuals. The 
budget includes the following: 

• Implementing the 2021 Unfunded Liabilities strategy 
($234,000); 

• Restoring of the Intern Program ($15,000); 
• Engaging consultants for economic development per the 

2020-2022 Strategic Plan ($50,000); 
• Participating in California Cities Gaming JPA to preserve 

Town revenues ($30,000); and  
• Reinstating the vehicle replacement cost allocation 

($11,600). 

 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 37

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 38

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Human Resources Department is part of the General Government Function and its main funding source is the 
General Fund (11).  

The Human Resources Division is responsible for personnel functions including policy development and compliance, 
recruitment and retention, compensation and benefits administration. The Division’s budget contains program 
expenses for the annual employee recognition event, citywide training, safety committee activities and professional 
consulting services including labor negotiations. 

Staffing 

The Division contains the Management (HR) Analyst and is also 
supported by the Administrative Services Director position. 

Between 2017 and 2020, the Town had a HR manager. The FTE 
started from 47% to 80%. The FY 2021-22 FTE includes one full 
time Management (HR) Analyst and 0.15 FTE for a part-time 
student aide. 

Revenue Summary 

Human Resources operation is entirely funded by General Fund revenues. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 39

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/LEukjwzkH
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/p4QnkN7X2


Expenditure Summary 

The Human Resources Department Budget increased by 
$86,000, compared to the FY 2020/21 Estimated Actual. The 
main drivers of the increase are as follows:  

• Change in personnel classification. The FY 2020/21 
Budget includes 6 months of HR Manager at 75% FTE 
and 3 months of full-time HR Analyst positions. The FY 
2021/22 Budget accounts for one full-time HR Analyst for 
the entire year ($34,000). 

• Contribution to Pension and OPEB trust and Accrued 
Leave Reserve increased per the City Council approved 
2021 Unfunded Liabilities Strategy ($15,000). 

• Employee development and wellness programs were 
added to the FY 2021/22 Budget ($27,000). 

 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 40

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 41

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Finance Department is part of the General Government Function and its main funding source is the General 
Fund (11). 

The Finance Division is responsible for paying the Town’s bills, maintaining and reconciling accounts, payroll, 
financial reporting, responding within one business day to vendor and employee inquiries and maintaining related 
records. 

The Administrative Services Director is responsible for oversight of the Finance Division and also two non-
departmental activities: General Services, which includes all insurance for the Town, utility bill payments and 
miscellaneous expenditures; and Debt Service for the 2015 Certificates of Participation Town Hall Renovation Project. 
Each of these activities has detailed budget pages. 

Staffing 

The Finance Division is staffed by two Accounting Technicians 
(1.8 FTE). The Division reports to the Administrative Services 
Director. 

Revenue Summary 

The Finance operation is entirely funded by General Fund revenues. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 42

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/9xMEmOs59
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/jq2ZbHp8c


Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021/22 Finance Budget is $161,600 more than FY 
2019/20 Estimated Actuals. The main increase is in Professional 
Consulting Services, which is comprised of the following: 

• Restoration of finance support to pre-COVID level 
($50,000); and 

• Revenue Strategy Consultant to help with the Resiliency 
element of the 2020-2022 Strategic Plan ($100,000). 

 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 43

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 44

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The General Services Department is part of the General Government Function and its main funding source is the 
General Fund (11). 

The General Services budget includes expenditures shared by all departments, such as the telephone system, 
cellular telephones, utilities and insurance. This Activity also includes the cost of funding Town-wide communications 
support (basic cable television) for residents. 

Staffing 

The Administrative Services Director is responsible for General Services. This activity has no staff. 

Revenue Summary 

Operating expenditures in General Services is generally supported by non-departmental General Fund revenues. 
Annually, the Town is reimbursed for recovered Town property damage and workers comp claims filed and for risk 
mitigation. The risk mitigation grant is allocated through PLAN JPA and unused portions are rolled over to the 
following year. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 45

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/p4QnkN7X2
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/dgNtTTEZd


Expenditure Summary 

Total General Services budget for FY 2021-22 is $1.37 million, an 
increase of $240,000 from FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. 
Insurance premiums are projected to increase by $167,000. The 
Town belongs to the PLAN JPA for property and general liability 
coverage and PRISM (a JPA) for workers compensation. In 
recent years, the insurance market in California has been 
competitive, with more insurance carriers leaving the California 
public sector market. Being part of a JPA allows the Town to 
share risk with other agencies within the Silicon Valley/San 
Francisco /Bay Area.  

 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 46

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 47

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Debt Service Activities are part of the General Government Function. Activities are recorded in Fund 43 and are 
fully supported by the General Fund (11) through interfund transfers.  

This Activity shows the budget and expenditures for Certificates of Participation (COP). The debt represents 
collateralized lease payments and is not a form of bonded debt. 

The financing documents require the City Council to appropriate the annual lease payments as part of the Operating 
Budget. The Debt Service Fund will receive a Transfer of resources from the General Fund to cover the expenses. 
The Finance Division is responsible for the transfer of funds to the Trustee to make timely payments on principal and 
interest. 

Revenue Summary 

The Debt Service Fund is fully supported by the General Fund through annual transfers. 

Expenditure Summary 

In 2014-15, the City Council established a Town Hall 
Renovation project budget of $13 million. In 
September 2015, the Town completed the 2015 COP 
Financing to fund the $18.0 million Town Hall Campus 
Renovation Project. The principal amount of the COP 
issuance was $5.3 million and the amount deposited 
into the project fund for construction was $5,102,500 
(principal net the cost of issuance). The first payment 
was made in 2016 and the final scheduled payment 
will be made in April 2045. The FY 2021-22 budget 
reflects the scheduled debt service and administrative 
fees. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 48

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/jq2ZbHp8c
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/QzXOnVJDq


Expenditure by Categories 

 

Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 49

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Emergency Response Fund (19) was created in FY 2019-20 to track all personnel and operating spending in 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic. Fund 19 is part of the General Fund and the revenues and expenditures are 
rolled into the General Fund group from an accounting standpoint.  

Staffing 

There is no staffing recorded for Emergency Response. All staff from all departments charges a portion of their time 
to this fund when it is related to the Covid-19 response. Activities include staff time in contact tracing, facilities cleaning 
above and beyond the normal level, and food delivery to at risk residents.  

Revenue Summary 

In FY 2021-22, the Town received $50,000 in CARES Grant and is projected to receive an additional $280,000 from 
the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA). Non-grant supported portions of the expenditures are supported by 
the General Fund. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 50

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/dgNtTTEZd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/R_URgpQf8


Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Budget for Emergency Response assumes the 
continuation of the food delivery and facility cleaning performed 
by the Recreation Department Facility Attendants and Recreation 
Leaders ($35,000). It includes budget for supplies needed to 
reopen Town facilities ($36,400) and the weekly police station 
deep cleaning ($20,000). 

 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 51

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 52

Attachment B



 

Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

 

 

 

 

   
The Public Safety Function consists of the following departments: 

• Police Administration, 
• Patrol, 
• Communication (Dispatch), and 
• Community Services. 

The Department is primarily supported by the General Fund, with the exception of the Community Services Officer 
(CSO) position which is funded by a SLESF grant from the State of California. 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 53

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/kR5Dlr1RN
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/7B2MyzNyt
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/0EIwyMYBN
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/AGACb54Yw
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/QzXOnVJDq
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/kR5Dlr1RN


Revenues Summary 

The Police Department is projected to receive $265,157 in departmental revenues in FY 2021-22. Included in the 
$265,157 is $100,000 of annual Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund, also known as COPS Grant funding. 
The COPS grant fund is recorded in Fund 29 and supports activities charged to Fund 29. 

With a total department budget of $9.27 million dollars, the department depends largely on non-specified General 
Fund revenues.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 54

Attachment B



Expenditure Summary 

The overall Police Departments budget is $9.27 million and is 
largely due to the restoration of pre-Covid 19 pandemic service 
levels. The FY 2021-22 budget assumes all vacant positions (2) 
will be filled, unfunded liabilities will return to 100% contribution, 
and other operating spending and equipment purchases will 
return to pre-COVID levels.  

 

 

Police Photo Gallery 

   

Accomplishments 

Although an extremely difficult year under COVID 19 restrictions, the Colma Police Department still made community 
engagement a priority by participating in National Night Out, Coffee with a Cop, Drive by Birthdays, Elderly Food 
Distribution, Youth Super Bowl Party, Blood Drive, Veterans Christmas Eve Food and Gift distribution and Youth 
Programs.  

The biggest case of the year was the Town's first homicide in over twenty-five years. This made for an enormous 
amount of work, consisting of approximately 10 search warrants, 42 supplemental reports and 51 interviews.  

The Colma Police Department also supported the wildfires at both the Half Moon Bay CZU Complex Fire and 
Monterey County River Fires by sending personnel to work both the command post and assist with evacuations.  

Special accommodations were given to the following individuals for outstanding performance and services in FY 
2020-21. 

• Police Officers Trask and Moreno received a commendation for their life saving efforts while de-escalating 
a suicidal subject. 

• Sgt. Jordan, Detective Rosset, Detective McKenna, Officer Berkovatz, and Officer Mendoza received 
Police Officer of the Year awards for their combined efforts on the homicide investigation. 

• Police Officers Berkovatz, Mendoza, and McKenna each received 10851 Pins for their efforts in vehicle 
theft recovery and arrests. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 55

Attachment B



• Dispatcher Thelma Coffey was awarded the Dispatcher of the Year for both her work during the homicide 
investigation and outstanding efforts throughout the year.  

The Colma Police Department did a complete evaluation of our Use of Force Policy and made changes to reflect 
current law and best practices.  

The Colma Police Department was awarded the Gold Award by Lexipol LLC, for Excellence In Law Enforcement 
Policy Management. Lexipol LLC is the Colma Police Departments policy and risk management consultant.  

COVID Response 

The Colma Police Department worked with all agencies in the county to ensure the safest procedures possible. Colma 
Police Officers were faced with fulfilling their duties while wearing protective gear and social distancing.  

The Colma Police Department worked closely with the San Mateo County Business Compliance unit to ensure all 
our businesses were following all policies associated with the current COVID 19 Tier. The Colma Police Department 
also worked closely with our residents to ensure Covid 19 compliance based on current policies, and are proud to 
report that we received cooperation with both our residential and business community.  

The Colma Police Department hosted two Youth Mask Give-A-Way events.  

Future Objectives 

The Colma Police Department's objective for the next year is to expand on current technology brining the safest 
environment possible to the Town of Colma. By adding body and in-car camera systems as well as Automated 
License Plate Readers to our patrol officers brings not only transparency and accountability, but also assists in our 
ability to provide the best possible evidence in our criminal cases.  

The Colma Police Department will continue to make community engagement our priority by not only hosting many of 
our own events, but being more involved in Town and Recreation events. 

The Colma Police Department is working with the California State Office of Emergency Services 911 Department on 
obtaining 24/7 9-1-1 compliance.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 56

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

Police Administration provides the planning, direction and oversight control of the Department. 

Staffing 

The staffing for this Division includes the Police Chief, a Detective 
Sergeant, a Detective and an Executive Assistant. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 57

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/R_URgpQf8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/7B2MyzNyt


Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Police Administration operating budget is $1.68 
million, or $525,000 more than the FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. 
Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, budget was cut dramatically. The 
$1.68 million budget is a return to pre-Covid service levels. 

 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 58

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 59

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

Police Patrol provides a front-line uniform response to calls for police services. Police Patrol addresses neighborhood 
quality-of-life issues and responds to all security-related service needs of the community, including threats to life and 
property, enforcement of traffic laws and investigation of crimes against persons and property. 

Staffing 

The Division’s personnel include a Police Commander, four 
Police Sergeants and 11 Police Officers. As staffing allows, one 
officer is assigned to a motorcycle on a part-time basis, and 
officers work a variety of other ancillary assignments including 
SWAT, San Mateo County Gang Task Force, Bicycle Patrol and 
STEP (Saturation Traffic Enforcement Program). 

Revenue Summary 

The Police Patrol Division is primarily funded by the General Fund and does not have a specific revenue resource. 
The Police Patrol Division's related grants are recorded in Federal/State/County Grants revenue accounts and these 
accounts are grouped and presented under Public Safety.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 60

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/R_URgpQf8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/kR5Dlr1RN
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/0EIwyMYBN


Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Police Patrol Budget is $6.05 million and is $1.02 
million more than the FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. Total 
personnel cost of $5.77 million is $850,000 more than the FY 
2020-21 Estimated Actual because of two main elements: 

1. Unfreeze police office vacancy. This was frozen during 
the Covid-19 pandemic.  

2. Restore contribution 115 Trusts for future OPEB and 
pension liabilities. 

Additionally, the Police Patrol budget includes the vehicle 
replacement fund transfer of $116,000 as part of the internal 
service fund (ISF) allocation. The Town did not make ISF 
contribution in FY 2020-21 as part of the Covid-19 Deficit 
Strategy. 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 61

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 62

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

Police Communications handles the clerical and record-keeping duties of the Department and citizen-initiated calls 
for service, including 9-1-1. 

Staffing 

The positions in this Division are one Dispatch Records 
Supervisor, three Dispatchers and Per Diem Dispatchers 
(equivalent to 0.2 FTE). 

Revenue Summary 

The Police Communications Division is primarily funded by the General Fund and does not have a specific revenue 
resource. Dispatch center related grants are recorded in Federal/State/County Grants revenue accounts and these 
accounts are grouped and presented under Public Safety.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 63

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/R_URgpQf8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/7B2MyzNyt
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/AGACb54Yw


Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Police Communication Budget is $1.09 million, 
which is $117,000 more than the FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. 
The increase is primarily due to the restoration of the 115 trust 
contributions to 100% of actuarially determined contribution for 
OPEB and 6% discount rate for pension ($72,000). Operating 
supplies and services, and budget have been restored to pre-
Covid 19 pandemic capacity as well ($11,000). 

 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 64

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 65

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Police Community Services Division was referred to in previous budgets as Police Grants, which reflected the 
primary funding source since 2001-02. The state grant fund is the Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund 
(SLESF), which is for front-line personnel services. This division funds a Community Service Officer (CSO) and 
specific training costs. 

Staffing 

The Division consists of 1.48 FTE Community Services Officer 
(CSO).  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 66

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/0EIwyMYBN
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/clrEFcQ2C


Revenue Summary 

Annually, the Town receives $100,000 of Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funds (SLESF). Per Government 
Cost Section 30062, monies allocated for SLESF is to be expended exclusively to provide front line law enforcement 
services. The Town classified parking enforcement as front-line law enforcement services.  

 

Expenditure Summary 

The total Police Community Services budget is $239,000 for FY 
2021-22. It is $19,000 more than FY 2020-21. The main change 
is in contribution to the Town's 115 Trust to address future OPEB 
cost.  

Contributions to the 115 Trust is paid for by General Fund and not 
SLESF.  

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 67

Attachment B



Expenditure by Categories 

 

Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 68

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

The Public Works & Planning Department consists of the following Divisions: 

• Engineering and Building,
• Public Works Maintenance (which includes Sewer operations),
• Planning, and
• Facility Operations.

Contract technical professionals and three Town employees provide Public Works and Planning services. 
Department responsibilities include the development and implementation of the Town’s Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP); administration and implementation of solid waste recycling and National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) regulations; administration of private land development and building permits; 
maintenance of all Town-owned facilities and infrastructure; current and advanced planning; and neighborhood and 
sustainability services. 

The Department continues to address traffic and transportation issues; identify and develop future capital 
improvement projects; improve maintenance and land development services; address the needs of other Town 
departments as they relate to Public Works and Planning; administer local, state, and federal regulations; administer 
grants and applications; and maintain the overall operation of the Department. 

Public Works & Planning Revenues 

The main revenues source for Public Works & Planning operations is the General Fund. The department generates 
some revenues to offset certain expenditures, as indicated below.  

Sewer charges (or fees) is one of the revenue sources generated by the Public Works & Planning operation - 
$942,000. Revenues received from sewer charges are recorded in a separate fund (Enterprise Fund) from the 
General Fund to pay for sewer conveyance and treatment costs charged by the City of Daly City and South San 
Francisco. Sewer maintenance and capital improvements are funded by the General Fund through annual transfers. 

The department also collects permit fees and service charges for planning, building and engineering activities - 
$281,000. These fees and charges are set based on the City Council approved 2019 Cost of Service Study and 
offsets up to 90% of actual cost of providing such services.  

Grant funding, such as Gas Tax ($74,000) and Measure A, are used for specific activities. A portion of Gas Tax 
supports streetlight and traffic light repairs and the remaining funds are reserved for streets, sidewalk, and bikeway 
related capital programs. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 69

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Xmu_J9GG1
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/WWhCdf5JM
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/P9WYXiUB8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/o7G0QA07N
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/AGACb54Yw
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Xmu_J9GG1


 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 70

Attachment B



Expenditure Summary 

The total Public Works & Planning expenditure budget for FY 
2021-22 is $4.7 million, or $1.1 million more than the FY 2020-21 
Estimated Actual. To address the financial crisis from the Covid-
19 pandemic, this department limited its use of essential contract 
services and deferred a number of its projects. This included 
reducing landscape maintenance and engineering, and advanced 
planning services. The goal for this department during the Covid-
19 pandemic was to shift all available resources to urgent and 
essential services and projects, and away from essential but non-
urgent projects. This will require some catch up in the new fiscal 
year to bring the quality of maintenance back to pre-Covid levels.  

It is also important to note that the Public Works & Planning 
Budget includes roughly $250,000 of contingency built into the 
budget to address unpredictable events. Such events include 
changes in commercial landscape, urgent right-of-way repairs, 
important feasibility studies or need assessment needed due to 
the changing legal landscape, and facilities improvement. For 
example, unanticipated costs were incurred for interior repairs 
and improvements at Creekside Villas in FY 2020-21, roadway repair on the public right-of-way in FY 2019-20, and 
grant administration and applications in FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20.  

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 71

Attachment B



Accomplishments 

The following accomplishments are broken down by Division: 

Planning Division (410): 

• Prepared policy documents and reports for City Council consideration including General Plan Study 
Sessions and an update to the Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) ordinance. 

• Continued work on sections of the General Plan and the General Plan EIR. 
• Continued participation in regional meetings (County and Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, Grand Boulevard 

Initiative, RICAPS, County Stormwater Committees, County Flood and Sea Level Rise District, Bay Area 
Planning Directors Association, 21 Elements Housing, etc.). 

• Processed staff level and development applications including the Cadillac dealership, Tesla dealership, car 
storage at the landfill and tenant improvements at Serra Center. 

• Completed the update of the Climate Action Plan. 
• Completed the adoption of Reach Codes. 
• Prepared letters regarding legislation affecting Colma. 
• Continued work with property owners to resolve property maintenance issues. 
• Coordinated and participated in the El Camino Real Pedestrian plan preparation. 
• Participated in auto dealer’s working group meetings and cemetery manager’s work group meetings. 
• Participated in Census 2020 activities. 

Engineering and Building Division (310): 

• Completed the El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. 
• Continued work on the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Project. 
• Continued work on the Municipal Regional Permit Green Infrastructure program. 
• Represented the Town at County and Regional meetings: County wide NPDES meetings, C/CAG TAC, 

Colma Creek Flood Control Advisory and TAC meetings, San Mateo Sea Level Rise committee and board 
meetings, Cal Building Official Association, CALBO, City and County Engineers Group, League of Ca. 
Cities. 

• Continued work on expanding the Town’s Sanitary Sewer Enterprise Fund. 
• Continued work with SFPUC and NSMCSD on the potential of a reclaim water system for the Cemeteries 

and Town. 
• Worked with Property managers to open several new businesses, to highlight a few, DaVita, Philz, Coffee, 

Panda Express, Wing Stop, Noah’s Bagels. 
• Help sponsor reach code amendments to the Town’s Building Code. 
• Participated in Facility safety walk throughs. 
• Finalized a Street Light replacement program for Sterling Park. 

Public Works Maintenance Division (320): 

• Installed courtesy sign for dog walkers in Sterling Park Neighborhood. 
• Installed dog mitt dispensers and waste receptables on Lawndale Blvd. 
• Installed park benches in the Mission Road and Lawndale Blvd. area. 
• Installed signage and parking markers on El Camino Real. 
• Maintained street sweeping paving stone cleaning schedules throughout Town with “shelter in place 

orders” in effect. 
• Responsible for the cleaning and recording of 300+ storm drains throughout the Town. 
• Inspected commercial facilities regarding FOG compliance (Fats, Oil and Grease) along with stormwater 

compliance. 
• Certified all Town owned domestic and irrigation backflow devices. 
• Managed landscape maintenance contract adherence. 
• Minor facility repairs and maintenance & oversite of the Landscape and janitorial contracts. 
• Attended Integrated Pest Management Countywide meetings. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 72

Attachment B



COVID Response 

Though an adjustment at the beginning, the Engineering, Planning and Building Divisions successfully shifted to 
remote operations as a result of the Covid-19 shelter in place order. The Planning and Engineering Divisions were 
able to assist the public remotely by phone, email and virtual conferencing conducting administrative hearings, 
preconstruction meetings, bid openings, committee meetings and other. Planning and Permit applications along with 
plan reviews were taken in and processed electronically. Town staff from the Planning and Building Departments 
assisted various businesses with temporary use permits or plan reviews for their temporary outdoor structures. Many 
within our departments were obligated to perform work that involved day to day work within the Right of Way, facility 
operations, and project inspections. Obligations where one had to encounter the public, staff adhered to strict Covid-
19 best management practices to continue the duties that their department were obligated to perform. The Planning 
Division was also very active in sending out regular eblasts and community memorandums to the business community 
offering information about assistance loans, operating restrictions, along with a weekly (now biweekly) update 
meetings with cemeteries.  

Future Objectives 

Planning Division (410): 

• Continue the General Plan Update  
• Continue preparation of the General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR). 
• Continue work with San Mateo County on the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan update. 
• Continue to process development and administrative applications. 
• Conduct work related to the update of the Housing Element. 
• Implement policies from the Climate Action Plan. 
• Continue to monitor legislation and propose ordinance amendments, if required. 
• Continue to participate in activities and meetings related to economic development. 
• Continue to represent Colma in regional meetings. 
• Monitor and review plans, development proposals and environmental documents of surrounding 

communities and utility companies to assure that the interests of the Town are considered. 
• Work with Town’s Franchise Waste Hauler and Businesses to comply with the SB 1383, Organic Waste 

Reduction Requirements. 

Engineering and Building Division (310): 

• As part of the Annual Road Rehabilitation and Preventive Roadway Maintenance Program, the 300 block of 
F Street Mill and Fill. 

• Complete the design and start the construct to rebuild the F Street Retaining wall. 
• Start the design and construction documents for El Camino Real and Lawndale landscape projects. 
• Continued work in securing grant packages for future Town and infrastructure capital projects. 
• Complete the study regarding annexing in Colma’s portion in the Colma Street Light District and the 

potential of creating the Town’s own Street Light and Landscape District, (Study only). 
• Develop a cost recovery system for storm water Business inspections. 
• Complete the study and fee assessment for expanding the Town’s sanitary Sewer Enterprise Fund. 
• Establish an equipment replacement fund. 
• Represent Town at Local, County wide, Regional and State required meeting and conferences. 
• Continued work with SFPUC, NCSMSD, Cal-water and Cemeteries regarding a reclaim water system. 

Public Works Maintenance Division (320): 

• Perform minor construction and painting as needed. 
• Establish programs and training to further develop maintenance staff. 
• Monitor and manage minor encroachment work. 
• Work with Sustainability group to meet our Climate Action Plan and Goals. 
• Meet or exceed the SF Reginal Boards goals of reducing trash in the Town’s waterways and assisting the 

business community in trash management.  
2021-22 Proposed Budget 73

Attachment B



• Work with local businesses to be compliant with stormwater discharge adherence and their FOG Program.  
• Work on a Request for proposal for tree maintenance services and tree safety program. 
• Continued work on the Towns Sidewalk safety program. 
• Establish a roadway striping and signage program. 
• Join the Maintenance Superintendents Association. 
• Continue to certify all Town owned backflow devices. 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 74

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Division consists of the following functions: Public Works Administration, Engineering and Building. Contract 
professionals provide the staffing for the day-to-day duties; the five-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP); the 
County wide Storm Water NPDES permitting and maintenance program; annual sewer service maintenance and 
charges; solid waste, recycling and sustainability programs; sanitary sewer system maintenance and reporting 
requirements; right of way infrastructure, Geographical Information System (GIS) upkeep and other daily and annual 
service activities. The Division assists the Public Works Maintenance and Planning Divisions and the Town’s Police 
and Recreation Departments in their current and future infrastructure and facility needs. The Division provides 
comprehensive engineering, building inspection and CASp (Certified Access Specialist) inspection and consulting 
services; processes building, grading and encroachment permits; and provides plan review and inspection services 
for land development projects. These activities are partially supported by fees. 

Staffing 
Public Works Administration, Engineering and Building Division services are provided under contract with CSG 
Consultants. The Division coordinates with the Public Works Maintenance Division but does not oversee operations. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 75

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/clrEFcQ2C
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/WWhCdf5JM


Revenues Summary 

The Engineering and Building departments generate revenues from permit activities. The fees and charges collected 
offsets the services provided for encroachment review, inspection, and other development activities. The fees and 
charges assessed are based on the City Council approved cost of service fee study and has a target recovery of 
90%. The total FY 2021-22 Engineering & Building revenue budget is $229,000 and the expenditures budget is 
$939,000. The difference of $710,000 is supported by non-departmental General Fund revenues.  

 

Expenditure Summary 

The Engineering and Building Budget for FY 2021-22 is $939,000 
or $207,000 more than the FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. The 
main reason for the increase is the restoration of the Engineering 
and Building budget to pre-Covid levels. A majority of the 
department’s budget is in contract services for general building 
and engineering support, and permitting for engineering and 
building.  

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 76

Attachment B



Expenditure by Categories 

 

Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 77

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Public Works Maintenance/Sewer Division is responsible for the upkeep and maintenance of public streets, 
sidewalks, traffic signals, street lights, storm water systems and public facilities. The Division also manages roadway 
weed and litter control and graffiti abatement; participates in the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) Storm Water Program; and are the first responders to sanitary sewer overflows. The Division also manages 
the landscape, facility janitorial and HVAC maintenance contracts. 

Staffing 

The Division is composed of one Maintenance 
Supervisor and two Maintenance Technicians, 
overseen by the City Manager. 

Revenue Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Public Works Maintenance revenues budget is $962,000 with $942,000 in sewer operations (Fund 
81) and $20,000 in General Fund (Fund 11) reimbursement. The sewer fees collected offsets the sanitary sewer
operating cost of $1.13 million. The "Sanitary Sewers" operating budget can be found within Expenses > Professional
& Contractual Services in the table below.

The total "Revenues Less Expenses" for FY 2021-22 Budget is $1.49 million and is supported by non-departmental 
General Fund revenues.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 78

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/Xmu_J9GG1
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/P9WYXiUB8


 

Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Public Works Maintenance budget is $2.48 
million, or $523,000 more than FY 2020-21 Estimated Actuals. 
The main reason for the increase is related to the restoration to 
pre-Covid pandemic service levels. As part of the Covid-19 
pandemic deficit reduction strategy, the Public Works 
Maintenance operation reduced contributions to the 115 trust to 
reduce OPEB and pension liabilities ($68,000), reduced the use 
of contract services ($242,000), and halted the vehicle 
replacement contribution ($62,000).  

The FY 2021-22 budget includes $50,000 allocated for a sewer 
fees consultant. The consultant will assist the Town is developing 
funding strategies in preparation for future major sewer 
infrastructure repairs and rehabilitation.  

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 79

Attachment B



Expenditure by Categories 

 

Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 80

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Planning Division is responsible for Advanced (long range) Planning, Current Planning (application processing), 
Climate Action, Economic Development and Neighborhood Services. The Planning staff, in partnership with other 
Town staff, residents and the business community, implements the community vision for the physical development 
of Colma, as described in the General Plan. Specific activities include: preparing planning studies to update policies 
and regulations in light of changing laws and conditions to ensure Colma continues to be a desirable community in 
which to live, work, visit and recreate; coordination with or participation in County and regional planning efforts to 
represent Colma’s interests; reviewing development proposals to ensure high quality and compatible development; 
reviewing all building permits for compliance with zoning requirements; enforcing codes and promoting property 
maintenance; and providing public information about planning and development. 

Staffing 

The Town contracts with CSG Consultants for planning services – partially offset by fees. Professional contract staff, 
including the City Planner, an Assistant Planner, an Associate Planner, a Sustainability Manager, a Code 
Enforcement Officer and additional planning staff are available to assist the Town on an as-needed basis. 
Administrative support is provided by the Town’s Administrative Technician, who is under the supervision of the City 
Clerk. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 81

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/WWhCdf5JM
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/o7G0QA07N


Revenue Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Planning revenues budget is $51,920 and the operating budget is $451,000. Fees collected for 
planning activities are based on the 2018 cost of service fee study with a recovery target of 90%. Non permit related 
activities are supported by General Fund revenues. 

 

Expenditure Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Planning budget is $451,000 and is $101,000 
more than the FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. The increase is the 
result of restoring planning operations to pre-Covid service levels.  

Part of the Planning budget includes pass-through consultant and 
legal fees as well as contingency budget for permit reviews.  

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 82

Attachment B



Expenditure by Categories 

 

Expenditure by Funds 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 83

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Department Description 

The Facility Operations Activity includes non-personnel operating expenses for all Town facilities, 
such as janitorial and landscape contract services for facilities, water, electricity and pest control. 

Staffing 

The Public Works Maintenance Supervisor oversees facility maintenance operations and the 
staffing cost is fully charged to Public Works Maintenance Division. 

Revenue Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Facility Operations revenue budget is $186,000 and it is rental income from Creekside Villas and 
Verano. Creekside Villas and Verano rental incomes are recorded in Fund 83, City Properties fund - an Enterprise 
Fund and are used to offset facility operation costs in Fund 83. All other Town facilities are supported by General 
Fund revenues, with a small portion of the Town Hall's electricity cost reimbursed by EVgo.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 84

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/P9WYXiUB8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/DlQE_JcuA


Expenditure Summary 

The Facility Operations Maintenance budget for FY 2021-22 is 
$832,000, or $279,000 more than FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. 
The largest category is in building interior (90012) and building 
exterior (90013) maintenance repair at $206,000. Facility 
improvements include the cupola (roof) repair at Sterling Park 
($20,000), new elevator and generator maintenance agreement 
at Town Hall ($6,500), new fabric for operable wall ($10,000) and 
new drapes ($23,000) at the Community Center, second entry in 
dispatch area at Police Station ($18,000), interior repair at 
Creekside Villas as needed ($30,000), and minor repairs and 
replacement at all ten Town facilities ($98,500).  

Additionally, budgets for janitorial service, landscaping 
maintenance, facilities supplies, and gas & electricity were 
restored to pre-Covid 19 operations, as the Town prepares for the 
Statewide reopening.  

 

 

Expenditure by Facilities 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 85

Attachment B



Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 86

Attachment B



Expenditure by Funds 

 

Expenditures by Facilities and Categories 

For the full interactive experience, click on the word "link" to get to OpenGov Reports.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 87

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=revenuesVersusExpenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=250692&selection=EF079D1DD0D22E2E476F503FCCFB0D2F&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=2022


Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

The Recreation Services Department provides programs, activities and events for Colma residents of all age groups 
ranging from youths to seniors at two park facilities: Colma Historical Park & Community Center and Sterling Park. 
Program elements include: Fitness, Enrichment, Special Events, Cultural Events, Sporting Events, Trips and 
Community Events. It is the goal of the Recreation Services Department to offer a balanced program ensuring all 
elements are offered to all age groups throughout the fiscal year. 

Recreation program fees are subsidized using a system that provides a greater discount for programs that serve the 
community versus programs that serve the individual. The policy-based system was approved by the City Council in 
2011 and the Department has typically recovered 12%-14% of department costs, including the recreation facilities 
maintenance budgets. In FY 2020-21, the Department is projected to recover 8% of department costs, including the 
recreation facilities maintenance budgets. The lower cost recovery rate is due to the Covid-19 pandemic and reduced 
revenues. 

The Department has experienced an increase in program participation every year beginning in FY 2012-13. The 
increase is attributed to more in-house activities and community-based programming, ensuring opportunities for all 
populations. In FY 2020-21, staff had to alter traditional recreation programming and moved to an online and virtual 
platform with a few drive-through special events. Traditional recreation program participation suffered but online and 
virtual program participation did much better than expected.  

The 2017-2019 and 2020-2022 Strategic Plans call for the coordination and implementation of more community-
based programming and additional recreation opportunities for the Teen population. Over the last few years, the 
Department has developed the following community-based programs and Teen activities: Halloween House 
Decorating Contest, Holiday House Decorating Contest, Super Bowl Party, Summer Concert Series, Friday Night 
Lights, Teen Center hours at Sterling Park, Teen L.E.Y.P program, Colma Community Fair and Bike Rodeo, Cinema 
at the Cemetery, Parol Lantern Workshop, Annual Holiday Tree Lighting, and Día De Los Muertos Festival. During 
the Covid-19 pandemic a lot of the above mentioned programs were cancelled and new online programming was 
developed. 

Key Events in Recreation 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 88

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/o7G0QA07N
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/VVMGeZFMe


Staffing 

  

The staffing for this Department includes one Recreation 
Manager, two Recreation Coordinators, 3.5 FTE in part-
time Facility Attendants and 4.0 FTE in part-time 
Recreation Leaders. In FY 2020-21, the Recreation 
Manager position was frozen due to Covid-19, however FY 
2021-22 supports the hiring of the Recreation Manager 
position. 
 

Accomplishments 

During FY 2020-21, the Recreation Services Department: 

• Received Age Friendly City Status in September 2020; 
• Hosted modified and Covid-19 safe Tree Lighting event, Dia De Los Muertas Altar event, and Drive through 

Halloween and Holiday events' 
• Converted day camp program to take home day camp program activity kits;  
• Provided online events for senior population and community;  
• Hosted multiple Blood Drives with the Red Cross and Stanford Blood Center; 
• Partnered with Second Harvest Food Bank of San Mateo County delivering food to populations in need; 
• Provided take-home Parol Lantern Kits; and, 
• Hosted Colma Wonderland. 

COVID Response 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and Shelter in Place Orders, the Recreation Services Department had to transition 
from providing in person services to a virtual, online, take home and drive thru recreation service provider. For a 
period of time picnic areas, outdoor workout equipment, and the basketball court were closed and the recreation 
facilities were closed for rentals since April 2020. Facility rentals for indoor, in-person gatherings may not be available 
until late Fall or Winter of 2021, pending updated Shelter in Place Orders for gatherings. 

During FY 2020-21, the Recreation Services Department began offering an array of online programs and remote 
activities for the community, some of those programs were: 

• Community online Bingo and Trivia, 
• Remote Armchair Travel, 
• Take Home Parents Night Out, 
• Senior Breakfast Bingo, 
2021-22 Proposed Budget 89

Attachment B

https://www.colma.ca.gov/departments/parks-recreation/


• Delivered Senior Lunches, 
• Take Home afterschool and day camp craft kits, and 
• Online homework assistance 

The Recreation Department also partnered with the Second Harvest Food Bank of San Mateo County delivering to 
over 100 households once to twice a month throughout the year. 

Future Objectives 

For FY 2021-22, the Recreation Services Department will:  

• Continue working on Age Friendly Cities initiatives;  
• Coordinate the annual Town Picnic and Adult Holiday Event, if permitted;  
• Attempt to provide the same service level (offer the same number of programs and meet participation levels) 

as FY 2019-20; 
• Continue to develop and offer more community based and teen programming including; 

• Cinema in the Cemetery Movie Series;  
• Dia De Los Muertos festival in collaboration with a local cemetery; 
• Continue collaboration with Colma Police Department L.E.Y.P.;  

• Covid-19 permitting, open recreation facilities for facility rentals and indoor programming 
• Offer modified in-person Day Camp and Afterschool programs; and,  
• Increase overall customer service rating of 9.5 out of 10 from FY 2019-20.  

Revenue Summary 

The FY 2021-22 Recreation revenues budget is $84,000. As shown in the table below, Recreation revenues from 
charges and rental Recreation operation are insufficient to fund total operating expenditure of $1.02 million. General 
Fund revenues supports the remaining $932,000 of operating expenditure. 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 90

Attachment B



Expenditure Summary 

The Recreation Program budget for FY 2021-22 is $1.02 million, 
or $528,000 more than the FY 2020-21 Estimated Actual. The 
main reason for the increase is related to the restoration to pre-
Covid pandemic service levels. To address the Covid-19 
pandemic financial crisis in FY 2020-21, the Town froze the 
vacant Recreation Manager position ($131,000), limited use of 
part-time staff ($69,000), reduced contributions to the Town's 115 
Trust to reduce OPEB and pension cost ($54,000), canceled 
community events ($83,000), halted the vehicle replacement 
contribution ($13,000), and reduced other recreation services 
($170,000).  

The FY 2021-22 Recreation budget restored all the programs and 
services cut as part of the Covid-19 pandemic response and it 
also includes increases to benefit cost and accrued leave payout 
contribution ($21,000). 

 

Expenditure by Categories 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 91

Attachment B



Expenditure by Fund 

The Recreation operating expenditures is part of the General Fund operation. 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 92

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a planning document that covers the construction and maintenance of major 
projects and facilities as well as major studies. The CIP also serves as a budget that provides the means to pay for 
these projects.  

This section includes the Town's Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2021-22 through FY 2026-27. 

Overall, the FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Budget is $1.08 million, with $195,000 in projected carryover project 
budget from FY2020-21, $40,000 in carryover project budget from reinstating a deferred project, and $846,000 in 
new funding requests. The program also includes a carryover of $80,000 from FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23.  

CIP Project Categories 

Colma’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) lists projects in four distinct categories, below. Click on the images below 
to get to the project description, FY 2020-21 status, FY 2021-22 work plan, and funding needs for FY 2021-22 through 
FY 2026-27.  

Category 1 
Streets, Sidewalks & Bikeways 

Category 2 
Sewer & Storm Drain 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 93

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/DlQE_JcuA
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ePYfWw36w


Category 3 
City Facilities & Long-Range Plan 

 

 
 

Category 4 
Major Equipment, Technology, & Fleet 

 

 
 

Project Status 

The project status is shown on each capital project. The statuses are Active, Closed, Future or Unfunded. 

• Active - existing or new CIP projects that have available funding and activities (spending) in FY 2021-22. 
• Closed - CIP projects that have been completed or have been closed out. These projects will only appear in 

future CIP budgets if they have project expenditures during the prior three years. 
• Future - CIP projects that are programmed for FY 2022-23 through FY 2026-27. Project budget and funding 

are identified, but are not earmarked. 
• Unfunded - CIP projects that are Town priorities but are currently without budgeted funds. Unfunded projects 

will be reviewed annually during the Town Budget process to see if funds are available for construction and 
if the proposed projects are ready to move from the Unfunded to the Budgeted projects list. 

This will provide more clarity in the Capital Improvement Budget. It will also identify projects that are budgeted, 
projects that are ready to be closed (and dropped from future CIP budgets) and future projects that are currently 
unfunded today but are in the developmental stage awaiting conceptual design approval, plans and specifications, 
and additional funding from the Town and/or outside sources. 

FY 2020-21 Capital Improvement Program Overview 

During to the Covid 19 pandemic, the Town focused on projects that met the Town's Covid 19 pandemic goals. These 
goals include ensuring public safety, preserving reserves, and utilizing all available grant funding. FY 2019-20 Active 
Projects that met these goals were El Camion Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (914), Mission Road Bicycle & 
Pedestrian Improvement (903), General Plan Update (991) and Climate Action Plan (994). The Town continued to 
fund the IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986) as online and virtual office support increased during the Covid 19 pandemic. 
By March 10, 2021, the City Council approved the addition of three capital programs: 

1. F-Street Retaining Wall (902) - ensuring public safety 
2. Housing Element Update (996) - utilizing grant funding 
3. Zoning Code Update (997) - subset of General Plan Update (991) 

Of all the projects listed above, Climate Action Plan (994) and El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (914) are 
completed and will close as of June 30, 2021. All other projects will continue into FY 2021-22, with the IT Infrastructure 
Upgrades (986) continuing as an ongoing program. The projected total carryover, as of April 30, 2021, is $235,000, 
with $80,000 programmed for FY 2022-23. Actual carryover will depend on actual project spending through June 30, 
2021 and will be part of the year-end process.  

NOTE: Ongoing programs typically do not have carryover. The unspent portion is released back to the reserve and 
new funding is allocated in the new fiscal year. Ongoing programs are used as a tool to separate purchases and 
improvements from the operating budget and is used for capitalization.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 94

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/zUSKwdxcb


FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Plan Highlight 

In addition to the six projects listed above that will continue into FY 2021-22, the Town has added five additional 
projects, continues two ongoing projects, and re-establishes one deferred project.  

Additional Projects: 

1. Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Maintenance (906) - $150,000 
2. Colma Museum Facility Repair and Painting (951) - $75,000 
3. Facility Parking Lot Upgrades (953) - $99,025 
4. Financial Software Replacement (965) - $100,000 
5. Police Body Worn and In-Car Cameras [part of the Equipment Purchase and Replacement Project (984)] - 

$201,000 

Ongoing Projects: 

1. IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986) - $50,000 
2. Vehicle Replacement (987) - $164,000 

Deferred Projects: 

1. Creekside Villas Repair (952) - $40,000 - included in the carryover budget discussed above. 

The FY 2021-22 Capital Improvement Budget also includes a budget increase of $7,000 for the design phase of the 
F-Street Retaining Wall (902) project.  

Project Funding and Spending Plan for FY 2021-22 through FY 2026-27 

The Funding Plan table below summarizes the revenue sources that the Town plans to use to support the capital 
program.  

The Capital Program bar chart below summarizes the projects by categories. The corresponding table is below the 
bar chart. To get to the table, use the scroll bar on the right of the bar chart. At first glance, the table shows the total 
program by fiscal year and by categories. The project list is also available in the table by clicking on the triangles on 
the left of the categories.  

 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 95

Attachment B



  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 96

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Maintenance (906) 

Project Scope 

The Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Maintenance Program includes minor repairs, such as crack 
sealing, and major rehabilitation, such as slurry seal and mill and fill. The goal of the program is to maintain the 
Town’s Pavement Condition Index (PCI) at 80 or above, the current PCI Townwide has been rated at 79. The 
multiyear project budget includes design, construction management and construction costs. The Annual Roadway 
Rehabilitation Preventive Maintenance Project is broken into design and construction phases for the 300 Block of F 
Street, which is scheduled for 2021/22; Colma Boulevard and 400 Block of Serramonte Boulevard are scheduled for 
2022/23; Collins Avenue and Junipero Serra Boulevard are scheduled for 2023/24; and, Hillside Boulevard is 
scheduled for 2024/25. The total project cost for 2021-2025 is estimated at $917,900. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

Project was deferred in FY 2019-20 and the funding was reallocated to the Mission Road Project in FY 2019-20. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

For FY 2021-22, the Public Works Department identified the 300 Block of F Street is in need of a mill and fill, (minor 
roadway reconstruction). Construction documents are estimated to be completed in the Fall/Winter of 2021 and the 
construction is to take place in the Spring of 2022. 

Impact on Operation 

An effective roadway maintenance program includes minor repairs as part of the operating budget and major 
rehabilitation as part of the Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Program. By rehabilitating the roadway 
when needed, the Town is able to maintain the annual roadway repairs budget to $95,900. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 97

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/VVMGeZFMe
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ePYfWw36w


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

The Annual Roadway Rehabilitation project is an eligible project to utilize the State and County allocated Gas Tax 
and RMRA (21), Measure A (22), Measure W (26), and Measure M grant funding.  

 

F-Street Retaining Wall (902) 

Project Scope 

In 2019 the Colma Engineering Department surveyed the retaining wall on F Street. It was determined that the failure 
we are experiencing in the structure is most likely due to poor drainage, thus causing the wall to deteriorate. The first 
phase of the project is design, specifications, plans and construction estimates. The second phase includes soliciting 
bids for construction and construction management services. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This project is a priority project. The design phase and Plan, Specifications & Estimates (PS&E) will be completed by 
early Summer of 2021. The construction phase is slated for the Fall of 2021. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

Construction documents will be assembled and ready to bid by August or September 2021. It is anticipated that the 
start of construction will commence in the September time frame and be completed by the November/December time 
frame. It is estimated that the project will take approximately 60 calendar days.  

Impact on Operation 

The project will decrease maintenance on and around the wall. The one item that will have to be continually watched 
and maintained is the drainage system.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 98

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=242991&selection=C3DB98BDC1ECFBF3015C1EA7A5D7CA2E&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan  

 

Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Project (903) 

Close by December 31, 2021 

Project Scope: 

The Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements Project includes the implementation of several safety-
related improvements for pedestrians, bicyclists, and vehicles along Mission Road between El Camino Real and 
Lawndale Boulevard. 

Status as of June 30, 2021: 

The design phase is complete and the construction phase is nearly completed or will be completed by June 30, 2021.  

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The final phase of the project is the slurry seal and striping. This will be completed by June 30, 2021. Thereafter, the 
project manager will begin the closeout phase, which includes final grant submissions.  

Impact on Operation 

The project will provide a safer bicycle and pedestrian path and will mitigate the risk of accidents and control the 
Town’s cost in annual insurance premiums and claims.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 99

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=242990&selection=568B4BF7542A58FE3C45B653A96652A1&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022-23 through FY 
2026-27 

The future unfunded portions of the projects shown above and below are not connected to a fiscal year and therefore 
cannot be included in the charts above. The future unfunded portions are as followed: 

• El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvement (923) - $29.50 million
• Hillside Boulevard Beautification (901) - $9.10 million
• Lawndale & El Camino Real Landscape & Median (956) - $2.60 million
• Serramonte/Collins Roadway Improvement (905) - $19.25 million

The future unfunded projects will be programed depending on the availability of funding and may be phased in over 
time or programmed as a separate project similar to the Serramonte/Serra Center Signalization (911) project. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 100

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244586&selection=FC67B85884C8A722EACF13BC51373E0E&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2022&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvements (923) 

Scheduled for FY 2024-25 
Estimated Project Cost: $30.0 million ($500,000 projected for FY 2024-25) 

Project Scope 

The project includes a re-design of El Camino Real with separated bicycle facilities, continuous sidewalks, additional 
bicycle and pedestrian safety features, new traffic signals, landscaping, and a reconfiguration of the Mission Road 
(“the Y”) intersection. The project presents a vision for residents and visitors to travel safely, comfortably, and with 
ease. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

None. New future project. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

Design phase scheduled to start in FY 2024-25, pending grant funding availability.  Total project cost per the final EL 
Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Plan (914) is $30.0 million. 

Impact on Operation 

There will be an increase in landscaping maintenance and irrigation costs. The proposed improvements and 
beautification enhancements will assist in making the shopping experience and visiting the various cemeteries a safer, 
and memorable experience. 

Hillside Boulevard Beautification (901) 

Scheduled for future (unknown) 
Estimated Project Cost: $9.1 million (Future Unfunded) 

Project Scope: 

Phase 1 of the three-phase Hillside Beautification Project (Hoffman Street to 600 feet south of Serramonte Boulevard) 
was completed in the 2014-15 fiscal year. The remaining work in this project will be evaluated to determine phasing 
and potential opportunities for grant funding. The costs and estimates will also need to be updated to incorporate 
green infrastructure mandates. A reserve of $930,889 is being held in the Capital Improvement Fund towards the 
cost of this $9,100,000 project. 

Status as of June 30, 2021: 

On hold. Future Unfunded. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

Pending availability of funds. 

Impact on Operation 

There will be an increase in landscaping maintenance and irrigation costs. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 101

Attachment B



Lawndale and El Camino Real Landscape and Median (956) 

Scheduled for FY 2022-23 
Estimated Project Cost: $2.75 million ($150,000 projected for FY 2022-23) 

Project Scope: 

Median landscapes along Lawndale Boulevard and El Camino Real are in need of rehabilitation. As a result of the 
severe drought in recent years, the State of California has levied irrigation restrictions that prevent cities from irrigating 
its street medians with turf. This resulted in many of the vegetation in the Town’s medians along Lawndale Boulevard 
and El Camino Real will need significant maintenance efforts in order to avoid the area being overtaken by intrusive 
vegetation. Additionally, the landscape along the backside of the sidewalk along the Northside of Lawndale Boulevard 
will also need to be addressed in all phases of this project.  

• Phase 1 is the conceptual review of the landscaping and public use and enhancement on Lawndale
Boulevard and El Camino Real - completed in FY 2019-20.

• Phase 2 will provide “Shovel Ready” project plans, specifications and estimates (PS&E) and preparing a bid
package - tentative scheduled for FY 2023-24.

• Phase 3 is the construction phase, which includes awarding the contract, and building and inspection services,
and construction - future unfunded $2.6 million.

• The study will also focus on green infrastructure possibilities, stormwater enhancements, and recreational
features. Grant opportunities may be available for Phase 3 of this project.

Status as of June 30, 2021: 

The conceptual design (Phase 1) was completed and approved in FY 2019-20. The design phase was deferred due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

This project is a restoration of the existing Lawndale Boulevard Landscape Improvement Project (956). The 
construction phase of the project (Phase 3) is currently unfunded. Staff will be looking for funding opportunities to 
help assist with the construction costs. The feasibility/conceptual study (Phase 1) was completed and approved in 
FY 2019/20. The development of the PS&E (Phase 2) will begin in 2023/2024. The construction Phase will be 
evaluated after the completion of PS&E and will depend on available funding and Town’s priorities. 

Impact on Operation 

The rehabilitation of the landscape and median along Lawndale Boulevard and El Camino Real with drought-resistant 
vegetation will increase the aesthetic of the roadway, provide safe crossing, and reduce the cost of landscape 
maintenance. 

Serramonte/Serra Center Signalization (911) 

Scheduled for FY 2022-23 
Estimated Project Cost: $600,000. This project is part of the Serramonte Blvd/Collins Ave Roadway Improvement 
Project (905) - see below 

Project Scope 

Install traffic signal on Serramonte Blvd at the Serra Center entrance (Target). The project will be partially funded by 
a development impact fee ($26,000). The project may be eligible for Transportation and Infrastructure grant (T&I) of 
$420k with a local match of $80k. Total project cost $500k for the signalization plus design and project management 
cost. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 102

Attachment B



The signalization of the Serramonte/Serra Center intersection is part of the Serramonte Blvd/Collins Ave Master Plan 
and has been separated for project management purposes.  

Status as of June 30, 2021 

New Project. Project is scheduled to begin design and if required land acquisition in FY 2021-22, construction would 
be in FY 2022-23. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The required work is contingent on the T&I Grant, if awarded, the project would start in the fall of FY 2021-22. If the 
grant is not awarded to the Town, the start of this project would be postponed until funds were made available.  

Impact on Operation 

Annual operation and maintenance costs as they relate to the streetlight signal. 

Serramonte Blvd/Collins Ave Roadway Improvement (905) 

Scheduled for FY 2022-23 
Estimated Project Cost: $600,000. 

Project Scope 

The primary purpose of the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan (Master Plan) is to improve the 
overall design, function and identity of the corridors with a view to supporting the Town of Colma’s main economic 
engine and one of the premier auto rows in the Bay Area. The Master Plan thus addresses the design of the right of 
way, connections and accessibility, safety and operational challenges, identity and character, sustainability, and 
green infrastructure. Please refer to https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/serramonte-boulevard-collins-
avenue-master-plan/ for the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

New Project. This project is scheduled to begin in FY 2023-24. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

It is anticipated that this project will be broken into phases, scheduling of the various phases of design and 
construction are to be determined. 

• Phase 1a: Traffic light at Serra Center (separate project)- see project 911 above.
• Phase 1b the island (Collins Ave): Phase 1B- Close down the slip lane at Serramonte and Collins in the east

bound direction, also restripe Serramonte Boulevard simulating the proposed road diet, (lane reduction) from
the Serramonte/Serra Center entrance to El Camino Real.

• Phase 2: Reconstruct Collins Avenue, continuous sidewalks, High visible cross walks, streetlights,
landscaping, underground of overhead utilities, car carrier off-loading zones for local car dealerships.

• Phase 3: Continue improvements to Serramonte West.: Lane reduction, sidewalks, landscaping,
sustainability enhancements, street lighting, and accessibility improvements,

• Phase 4: landscaping, accessibility enhancements, street lighting, bike paths, streetlights.

Impact on Operation 

The project will improve safety and mobility along Serramonte Blvd and Collins Avenue, reduces enforcement costs, 
and enhance economic viability going into the future. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 103

Attachment B

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/serramonte-boulevard-collins-avenue-master-plan/
https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/serramonte-boulevard-collins-avenue-master-plan/


El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan (914) 

Close by July 1, 2021 

Project Scope 

The El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan will provide guidelines and directives for a 
comprehensive bicycle and pedestrian safety program along a portion of the El Camino Real corridor, (State Route 
82) in the Town of Colma, from Daly City to South San Francisco. The project will strive to improve community mobility
along this portion of the roadway by creating a vision to increase and enhance various modes of transportation,
including walking and bicycling, while providing opportunities to increase ridership on public transportation. The study
will review and implement the standards and goals that are stated in the California Transportation Plan 2040,
California State Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, Caltrans District 4 Bicycle Plan, San Mateo County Comprehensive
Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan, and Grand Boulevard Initiatives’ Goals. Community outreach is included in the
study from residents and businesses.

Status as of June 30, 2021 

Since this project is completed, the next step in this process will be to take a construction phasing approach to this 
project, thus creating several future projects through a phasing approach. By doing so, this will also allow staff to 
apply for grants specifically as they may apply to that phase. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

None. 

Impact on Operation 

The completed plan will assist the Town in the design and construction of a safer bicycle and pedestrian path, which 
will mitigate the risk of accident and control the Town’s costs in annual insurance premiums and claims.  

Project Funding and Spending Plan 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 104

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244718&selection=D303D7415D1BD72FA28691DCAA7F026D&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2022&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

No active projects in FY 2021-22. 

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022-23 through FY 2026-27 

There is no future unfunded portion estimated for either of the projects listed above. 

Colma Creek Channel Repairs (934) 

Scheduled to Start in FY 2022-23 

Project Scope 

Sections of the Colma Creek concrete channel have deteriorated over the years. Because there are different levels 
of deterioration, a study will need to be performed as Phase 1 of this project. This study will identify, categorize and 
map the deteriorated areas, estimate costs to repair those areas and identify what outside permits will be required to 
enter and repair the creek walls and floor. Phase 2 of the project will be to prepare plans and specifications for the 
project along with applying for and obtaining all necessary permits to perform the work. Phase 3 will be the 
preparation of the bid documents, project and construction management, and the repair work. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 105

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/vnIX3hcM8
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl


Status as of June 30, 2021 

The project has been deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic and continued negotiations with San Mateo County 
Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District for shared maintenance costs. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The Colma Creek Channel Repair Phase 1 is programmed to take place in FY 2022/23. Phase 2 & 3 will depend on 
the results of Phase 1 and the availability of funds. Staff will pursue outside funding to assist within offsetting the 
repair costs. 

Impact on Operation 

The study will unveil a more precise annual maintenance cost. After repairs are complete, the annual creek 
maintenance is estimated to cost $12,000-$15,000. 

Storm Drain System Assessment and Mapping (972) 

Scheduled to Start in FY 2022-23 

Project Scope 

The project will review and analyze the Town's 11 miles of the Storm Drain System. The process will be to start 
assessing the current Storm Drainage system by way of internally videotaping the system in its current state. The 
video will provide several insights; it will unveil any needed repairs and unrecorded blind or illegal connections. The 
videotaping equipment used to view the interior of the storm drain lines will also have the capabilities of recording the 
data and allowing the data to be mapped in the Town’s Geographical Information System (GIS). The findings that 
come through the videotaping process will allow staff to budget for repairs or enhancements to the storm drain system. 
Only portions of the system will be addressed each year. The project is expected to be a 3-year effort; funding will be 
requested on an annual basis for the specific scope of work for each year. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

The project was deferred due to Covid 19 pandemic and has been rescheduled to begin in FY 2022-23.  

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The Storm Water Drainage Assessment Project will need to be funded through the Capital Reserves on an annual 
basis. This project is anticipated to start FY 2022-23. Budget $70,000/per year for 3 years starting FY 2022-23. 

Impact on Operation 

Future costs for repairs or enhancements will be evaluated as part of the assessment and will be budgeted in future 
operating or capital projects.  

 

 

No active projects are scheduled to close by June 30, 2021. 

  
2021-22 Proposed Budget 106

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Colma Museum Facility Repair & Painting (951) 

Project Scope 

The Historical Museum Facility is currently in need of painting. The work includes minor building repairs such as 
plaster touch up, dry rot repairs, and window and trim repairs or replacement. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This project is scheduled to begin in FY 2021-22 as part of the City Council adopted 2019-2024 Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

Will begin this project in FY 2021-22. 

Impact on Operation 

No additional annual maintenance costs are anticipated at this time, outside of normal day to day wear and tear on 
the facility. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 107

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ePYfWw36w
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/zUSKwdxcb


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

Creekside Villas Repair and Painting (952) 

Project Scope 

The Creekside Villas Facility is currently in need of painting and minor trim repair. The work will include:  

• minor exterior repairs. 
• window and exterior wood trim repair and/or replacement. 
• stair and deck resurfacing. 
• exterior preparation and painting of main building & axillary structures. 
• replacement of awnings. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

Exterior painting was completed 2019. Other exterior repairs were deferred. Remaining $40,000 in the budget is for 
various miscellaneous repairs to the facility. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

Work is anticipated to be completed in the Fall of 2021. 

Impact on Operation 

Exterior painting is part of the ongoing preventative maintenance effort. Routine painting and resurfacing extend the 
life of the property and prevents more costly repairs. It also prevents an increase in operating maintenance cost. 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 108

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243001&selection=B20A3A112148BE4FDC54D958988287C3&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

Facility Parking Lot Upgrades and Repairs (953) 

Project Scope 

Several of the Town owned facility parking lots are in need of reconstruction and/or resurfacing along with stripping 
and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) upgrades. This project will address long term parking lot maintenance and 
reconstruction needs at: Creekside Villas, the Colma Community Center and Historical Museum, the Colma Police 
Station and the Public Works Maintenance Corporation Yard. The work will vary from facility to facility ranging from 
reconstruction, (Mill and fill) to minor surface treatments, such as crack sealing and slurry coats. All facilities will be 
restriped. Installation of additional ADA stalls will be considered if feasible for the Colma Community Center parking 
lot. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This project was deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The Police Station and Creekside Villas parking lots are scheduled for FY 2021-22 at an estimated cost of $99,025 
and the Colma Community Center, Museum and Corporation Yard parking lots are scheduled for FY 2024-25 at an 
estimated cost of $99,025. 

Impact on Operation 

No additional annual maintenance costs (Within the 5-year CIP Plan) are anticipated at this time.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 109

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243004&selection=8DD5D894CD04FF18D548921BEEB85211&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

General Plan Update (991) 

Closed by December 31, 2021. 

Project Scope 

Update General Plan to comply with State Law. The General Plan governs development within Town limits. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

The Town applied and received a $160,000 grant for the update of the General Plan. Currently, staff is working on 
an Existing Conditions report and drafting of the plan. Existing Condition report will be released in January/February 
2020. Next step is the drafting of the General Plan, Environmental Impact Review (EIR), and the adoption of the full 
plan. Additional funding of $249,350 was allocated in FY 2020-21 to complete this project. The $160,000 grant will 
offset a portion of the increase.  

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The final draft of the General Plan is scheduled for public release in May 2021, the EIR will be released in late summer 
of 2021, and City Council adoption of the EIR and General Plan by the end of December 2021.  

Impact on Operation 

The General Plan guides the Town’s residential and commercial developments. It also ensures compliance with State 
and Federal housing regulations.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 110

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243005&selection=D589DE88D35E0818A47CA8BD2C85B0E5&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

Housing Element Update (996) 

Project Scope 

Pursuant to state law, the Town of Colma is required to update its General Plan Housing Element on a predetermined 
schedule. The 6th Cycle Housing Element is required to be completed and certified by the state by January of 2023. 
Staff is working with 21 Elements consultants and other San Mateo County jurisdictions on tasks related to the 
preparation of the element, including a housing site inventory and feasibility study. The updated housing element will 
need to include a map and inventory of sites which will show where 202 units (determined through the RHNA process) 
can feasibly be built within the 8 year term of the Housing Element. In addition, the Housing Element will include 
policies and implementation items to remove barriers to the production of housing. Additional required activities may 
include site re-zonings, policy development, and zoning text amendments. An environmental document will be 
required to be prepared to satisfy CEQA requirements.  

Status as of June 30, 2021 

Preliminary work on the housing site inventory is currently underway. Regular coordination with 21 Elements 
consultants will continue. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

In FY 2020-21, activities were focused on the housing element site inventory. In the FY 2021-22, the Housing Element 
document will be assembled and written. A majority of the work will occur between January 2022 and November 
2022. Work is anticipated to conclude by June 30, 2023. 

Impact on Operation 

Completion and certification of the Housing Element will allow the Town to be in full compliance with state law. Failure 
to have a certified Housing Element may cause the Town to incur financial or legal penalties and may make the Town 
ineligible for certain grant and funding opportunities.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 111

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244633&selection=05D18B5C175A348078A330329E3398A0&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

Zoning Code Update (997) 

Project Scope 

Pursuant to state law, the Town of Colma is required to amend its zoning code and zoning map after the adoption of 
the General Plan, anticipated by the end of calendar year 2021. The General Plan and zoning must be consistent 
with one another. The Town of Colma zoning code has been added to over the years, and information is very hard 
to find, with land uses and development standards for each zone in two separate places. The code requires 
reformatting and updating to be more user friendly. In addition, in anticipation of the Municipal Code being converted 
to a searchable document by sections, the update will align with the goal of creating an easily searchable document. 
Sections will also be updated to comply with current state law. A minor environmental document will be required to 
be prepared to satisfy CEQA requirements.  

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This is a new project that was added in as part of the mid-year financial update and budget amendment for FY 2020-
21.  

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

This project is scheduled to begin in the first quarter of 2022 and end in the last quarter of 2022. 

Impact on Operation 

The Zoning Code Update will improve usability of zoning code by the public and developers. Staff will ensure that the 
zoning code complies with current legal requirements and that it is consistent with the General Plan.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 112

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=243006&selection=8B88409677FD67FA998FE8DBAC75B7D7&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022- 23 through FY 
2026-27 

There is no future unfunded portion estimated for either of the projects listed above. 

Bark Park Upgrade (958) 

Scheduled for FY 2022-23 
Estimated Project Cost: $95,000 

Project Scope: 

The Bark Park located on lower D Street provides dog owners a site where they can allow their pets to play, run and 
socialize with other dogs. Though the park caters to dogs, it is also a place where residents can meet while their pets 
play and be contained within a safe and confined area. Currently the Bark Park is an underutilized park space, due 
to the fact that much of the facility has grown old, and is need of repair and upgrades. The proposed project and 
upgrades include: 

• Additional Picnic and seating spaces
• Resurface and expand grass area
• Install concrete curbing around lawn and decomposed granite walkways
• Provide play features for pets, including obstacle course and add additional pet amenities
• Add permanent shade structure over benches and picnic table area
• Add outdoor message board

2021-22 Proposed Budget 113

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244591&selection=B7C35FA2E8D9EDECF83E496F9F3591B0&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


• Replace fencing as needed

Status as of June 30, 2021: 

This project was deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The project is scheduled to start in the fall of 2022 and is estimated to be completed by early 2023. 

Impact on Operation 

Annual repairs should decrease, operation and maintenance of the Bark Park facility will continue. 

Colma Community Center Painting and Repair (960) 

Schedule for FY 2022-23 
Estimated Project Cost: $100,000 

Project Scope 

The Colma Community Center Facility is currently in need of painting. The work will include minor trim and building 
repairs, re-staining of the back deck. The Project is projected to take place in FY 2022-23. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

New Project. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The project is scheduled to start and be completed in the Summer of 2022. 

Impact on Operation 

The improvement will not change the current annual maintenance cost. 

Corporation Yard Car Wash Upgrade (954) 

Scheduled for FY 2023-24 
Estimated Project Cost: $170,000 

Project Scope 

Under the Town of Colma's Municipal Regional Permit (a State permit to discharge Storm Water), it is required that 
municipalities provide washdown facilities for various pieces of equipment. Currently, the Public Works department 
follows the State Stormwater mandates but the effort to stay in compliance is a tedious and time-consuming effort. A 
washdown station will be constructed on site in the Corporation yard, the drive-in wash area would have a roof over 
the washdown area and floor drains that are connected to a clarifier (prevents oil and grease to flow into the sanitary 
system), allowing the gray water from the washdown area to enter the sanitary sewer system. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This Project is scheduled to begin in FY 2023-24. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 114

Attachment B



Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

This Project is scheduled to begin in FY 2023-24 with a budget $170k. 

Impact on Operation 

This project will decrease Maintenance workers time in the washdown of equipment and cleanup. 

HVAC System Replacement at Police Station (943) 

Schedule for FY 2022-23 
Estimated Project Cost: $750,000 

Project Scope 

The HVAC system at the Colma Police Station is showing signs of failure due to exposure from the weather, quality 
of the equipment and everyday normal use, (because the Department is open 24 hours, some of the units are used 
continuously). The other issue that will face the Department is the current HVAC system uses R-22 refrigerant. 
Production of R-22 refrigerant will not be manufactured after 2020 due to its harmful effects to the environment. After 
2020 the only R-22 that will be available will be from recycled stock, as the stock becomes depleted the cost of R-22 
will increase to the point where it is cost prohibited to service the current HVAC equipment. 

This project is slated to be in the CIP long range plans, consideration for replacing the HVAC equipment is estimated 
to be 5 years out (approximately 2024), funding for replacement will be pursued through State and Local grant 
programs that assist in energy equipment upgrades. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

None. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

Depending on the condition of the HVAC system and the Town's HVAC maintenance contractor's assessment, the 
project is temporarily scheduled for improvement and rehabilitation in FY 2022-23. The project cost is estimated to 
be $750,000 to $900,000.  

Impact on Operation 

Costs for both Maintenance and operation should decrease due to the efficiencies of a new system and annual 
maintenance should be limited to general maintenance and not having to make needed repairs. 

Recreation Operation and Facility Master Plan (995) 

Schedule for FY 2022-23 
Estimated Project Cost: $50,000 

Project Scope 

The Recreation Department has grown over the last several years. The department has added additional community 
events, in-house programs and contract programs. The department plans to continue to grow in all areas of service; 
more specifically in teen and senior programming. The department seeks to develop solutions to facilities' needs that 
will better serve our current and future residents. The department is requesting that the facility master plan study 
provides:  

• Options for areas of possible future expansion.
2021-22 Proposed Budget 115

Attachment B



• Help to identify a designated space for teens (Teen Center).
• Clarify design information to make a more informed decision on future facility additions or remodels.
• Evaluation of present facility conditions and future requirements to identify needs.
• Feasibility study and program plan to identify all viable options and their costs.

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This Project was deferred due to the Covid 19 pandemic. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

To be determined 

Impact on Operation 

To be determined 

Townwide Branding (959) 

Schedule for FY 2022-23 

Estimated Project Cost: $200,000 

Project Scope 

The 2012 Economic Development Plan identified several strategies within the framework of the study. One of the 
strategies was to create Branding and Promotional Materials emphasizing Colma’s commercial activities. Phase 1 of 
this project will be to prepare an RFP and hire a firm to develop a community branding campaign. The process will 
involve local outreach, surveys, interviews with business leaders, and other research, and utilizing this information to 
establish creative options for the community’s brand. Phase 2 will be to launch an expanded image and branding 
campaign highlighting Colma’s brand through logo, marketing brochures, letterhead, streetlight banners, promotional 
campaigns, advertisements and tag lines. Staff will look to partner with local businesses and shopping centers for 
funding opportunities. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This Project was deferred due to the Covid 19 pandemic. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

This Project is scheduled to begin in 2022-23. 

Impact on Operation 

There may additional annual costs to maintain the branding campaign which may include updated streetlight banners 
and marketing materials. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 116

Attachment B



Climate Action Plan (994) 

Project Scope 

The Climate Action Plan (CAP) guides the Town’s actions for greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction targets established 
under State Law (Assembly Bill 32, signed into law in 2006). Colma has completed an updated Community-wide 
Greenhouse Gas Inventory Report which confirmed that the Town should meet reduction targets. 

The Town completed its first 2013 Community Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Inventory Report that detailed GHG 
reductions of 18.2% from the 2005 baseline to 2013. This significant reduction takes the Town close to its goal, which 
is 20% by 2020. Due to changes in the California Public Utilities Commission reporting rules, it has been more difficult 
to obtain energy use data after 2013. 

The updating of the CAP is not only critical in meeting the Town’s mandated 2020 goals, but it is also critical in the 
updating of the Town’s General Plan. In addition, Senate Bill 32 was signed by the Governor in 2016 that requires a 
higher GHG reduction target reduction of 40% below 1990 levels by 2030. In order to meet this target, it is necessary 
to update the CAP to meet this more aggressive reduction target since current CAP programs will likely not bring 
about the target reductions. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

On October 28, 2020, the City Council accepted the Climate Action Plan 2030 Update. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

None. 

Impact on Operation 

This is a planning document that provide guidelines to the Town reducing energy consumption, along with 
greenhouse gas emission. The implementation of the CAP program will be integrated into the Town’s operations. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 117

Attachment B



  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 118

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Equipment Purchase and Replacement (984) 

Project Scope 

This Capital Improvement Project covers the purchase of major equipment Town-wide. 

• In the FY 2019-20, the Police Department updated the dispatch center radio and equipment. The Police base
station radio and dispatch console equipment was nearing its useful life. The dispatch center was upgraded
to digital in preparation for future radio updates. The radio itself will remain an analog system to be consistent
with other Police Departments in San Mateo County and to communicate with Town Officers. The minimum
life expectancy is 10 years. The project funding of $250,000 is required in FY 2019-20. This purchase was
completed in FY 2020-21.

• For FY 2021-22, the Town will be purchasing body worn cameras and replacing the police in-car cameras.
The purchase will include new tasers, automatic license plate reader (ALPR) units, and new computers for
the police cars to support the new in-car camera systems. Projected cost is $191,000.

• Future Project, encryption of the dispatch center, portable radio, and vehicle radio transmission. On October
12, 2020, the California Department of Justice issued a bulletin requiring all law enforcement and criminal
justice agencies to limit access of certain Criminal Justice Information (CJI) and Personally Identifiable
Information (PII) to authorized personnel and to encrypt the transmission of such information. The process
and cost of encrypting radio transmission is unknown at this time. The Town has until 2024 to encrypt its
radio transmissions. In the meantime, the Town will use a temporary work around provided by the County
Chief's Association.

Status as of June 30, 2021 

The Town purchased and updated the dispatch center radio and equipment in FY 2019-20 and the project was 
completed in FY 2020-21.  

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

This is an ongoing CIP program. The Body Worn Camera Project is projected to start in FY 2021-22 and be completed 
in FY 2022-23. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 119

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/OpA8TxROl
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/rcFCRdSf6


Impact on Operation 

The goal of this ongoing program is to keep operating maintenance costs low. The annual maintenance costs total 
$75,000 for body worn cameras, ALPR, and in-car cameras.  

Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

Financial Software Replacement (965) 

Project Scope 

The Town of Colma currently uses Eden Software provided by Tyler Technologies to record, manage and track all of 
the City's revenues, expenditures and financial transactions. The Eden Software product is being phased out by the 
vendor. It will need to be replaced with another Financial Software System prior to the end of life of the Eden Software 
product.  

The proposed project will include the use of an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Consultant ($50,000) to assist 
with software needs assessment, preparation of the Request for Proposal (RFP) for the software system, conducting 
the RFP process and the software evaluation process. The balance of the project budget will cover the cost of the 
new ERP Financial System Software ($500,000). 

Features to be requested from the software vendors include the full range of City Financial System capabilities 
including General Ledger (GL), Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable, Budget, Payroll, Purchasing, Accounting 
and Cash Management. Optional features may include Point of Sale, Cash Receipts and Business License Tax 
management. As part of the RFP and selection process, software vendors will be asked to provide a response to the 
RFP that offers both an on-site server-based system and a hosted/cloud-based system.  

During the software implementation phase of the project, training will be provided to Town Staff on the operation of 
the software. Additional training will be provided during the first year at key milestones including fiscal year close, 
year end close, 1099 production, budget preparation and budget roll over to GL to ensure the success of the 
implementation of the new ERP Financial Software System. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This project was deferred due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 120

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244662&selection=85B960C12CF3A2C17D73A1D876C99CA2&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

The Town will begin a needs assessment in the Summer of 2022. Key project milestones will include; 1. Software 
System Needs Assessment and RFP Development, 2. Issue RFP to Software Vendors, 3. Respond to Questions 
from Vendors, 4. Feature Demonstrations From Most Qualified Vendors, 5. Award of Contract by City Council, 6. 
Installation of Software, 7. Running New Software In Parallel With Existing Eden Software System, 8. Training Staff 
on Use of New Software, 9. Follow Up Training, Consulting and Software Modifications to Implement New Software 
System.  

Impact on Operation 

During the software implementation, the workload will increase for the Finance Department. The Department may 
consider the use of an intern to assist in the process. Once the system is in, there may be cost-saving measures 
available.  

Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986) 

Project Scope 

The ongoing maintenance of computers, as well as the Town’s backbone network, requires periodic upgrades to 
ensure that operations continue. The project includes: 

• Replacement of desktop computers and other equipment. 
• Technology needs in the Town Hall facility and other Town-owned facilities. 
• Update software. 
• Update and upgrade to servers, switches and routers. 
• New switch to interconnect the Police Department and Town Hall sites. 

Status as of June 30, 2021 

This Project is ongoing. 

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

IT and Infrastructure upgrades is an ongoing capital investment. 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 121

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244663&selection=0924AE57E88F2BD362B89ADAC3820F01&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Impact on Operation 

This ongoing program provides timely replacement of essential technology hardware to ensure minimal impact on 
Town daily operation.  

Project Funding and Spending Plan 

 

Vehicle Replacement (987) 

Project Scope 

This Capital Improvement Project covers the purchase of vehicles and major fleet items Town-wide. In the FY 2021-
22, the Police Department will replace the patrol supervisor vehicle (Flex Fuel Tahoe, $64k), a patrol (Hybrid Explorer, 
$60k) and one detective vehicle (Honda, $40k). The cost of these three vehicles is estimated at $164,000, including 
outfitting with public safety equipment. 

The Town plans to replace the Public Works Maintenance Truck in FY 2022-23 and roughly two police vehicles a 
year. A full assessment of the fleet replacement schedule will be completed in FY 2021-22.  

Status as of June 30, 2021 

The Vehicle Replacement Project was deferred in FY 2020-21 due to the Covid 19 pandemic. The $20,000 budget 
below is the carryover budget to equip the Public Works vehicle purchased near the end of FY 2019-20.  

Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

This is an ongoing CIP project. 

Impact on Operation 

The goal of this ongoing program is to keep operating maintenance costs low. 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 122

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244666&selection=5FB4CC33634E2F14AE44E2694B0831AA&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Project Funding and Spending Plan 

Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022- 23 through FY 2026-27 

There is no future unfunded portion estimated for either of the projects listed above. 

Parking Permit Software (981) 

Project Scope: 

This project will include the hiring of a consultant and deployment of a software solution that will manage the Town’s 
parking permit program. Features will include: 

• Parking permit database management system.
• Parking permit record keeping.
• Online user capabilities.
• Online distribution of guest parking permits.
• Mobile parking enforcement solutions.

Status as of June 30, 2021: 

This Project was deferred due to the Covid 19 pandemic. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 123

Attachment B

https://colmaca.opengov.com/transparency/#/54079/accountType=expenses&embed=n&breakdown=types&currentYearAmount=cumulative&currentYearPeriod=years&graph=bar&legendSort=desc&proration=true&saved_view=244667&selection=5F14524675034B27F2252F5EC6A38891&projections=null&projectionType=null&highlighting=null&highlightingVariance=null&year=2027&selectedDataSetIndex=null&fiscal_start=earliest&fiscal_end=latest


Schedule for FY 2021-22 and Thereafter 

To be determined. 

Impact on Operation 

The project will reduce labor hours in maintaining and issuing parking permits and will add an annual licensing cost 
to the Police Department budget. 

 

 

No active projects scheduled to close by June 30, 2021. 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 124

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

This section of the Budget provides additional analysis based on historical trends and a projection of future revenues 
and expenditures. Included are schedules showing five years of actual revenues and expenditures data for all funds. 
The General Fund comprises the most significant component of the Town's financial base. A five-year General Fund 
projection was prepared. The projection is a high-level forecast that can be used as a financial planning tool. 

Historical Revenue and Expenditures (All Funds) 
The expenditures (expenses) shown below consists of only operating expenditures, including debt service. Overall, 
the Town has successfully maintained its operating expenditures, plus debt service, below the annual revenues. Even 
in the midst of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Town managed to come below the operating budget of $16.3 million by 
$570,000, projecting to end the year at $15.7 million. In addition to not filling key vacant positions and deferring 
spending during the year, the Town also received $2.0 million more in revenues than expected because of the Wayfair 
decision as discussed in the Budget Overview section. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 125

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/hjP4mYNbd
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/zUSKwdxcb
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/drPK0MN2d


General Fund Revenue & Expenditure Trend (including transfers) 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 126

Attachment B



General Fund Forecast and Assumptions

To understand the potential financial challenges to the Town in the next five years, this section of the budget will 
focus on the General Fund. General Fund represents 85 percent of total Town operations and subsidizes the Sewer 
Funds and Capital Improvement Funds. Additionally, this section is organized to show the financial impact of status 
quo and potential solutions. These solutions will require further analysis and City Council authorization. 

General Fund Expenditure Forecast 

• Salaries, wages & benefits is the largest expenditure category for the General Fund. This expenditure
category includes contributions to address future unfunded liabilities as they are related to OPEB, pension,
and accrued leave payout at separation (retirement and voluntary separation). The five-year projection builds
in a 3% escalation for salaries and wages and 5% escalation for other benefits. The 3% escalation for salaries
and wages does not include COLA adjustment but rather reflects step increase resulted from positive
performance evaluation.

• Professional & Contractual Service and Supplies & Services categories are the next largest categories
in the General Fund. The projection applies a 3% or 5% escalation depending on the nature of the services.

General Fund Revenue & Expenditure Forecast (including operating transfers) 

Adding revenues to the discussion, the projection below shows the gap between the expenditure and revenue lines 
widen over time. Note, this is assuming no changes to revenue streams or operating structure.  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 127

Attachment B



 

 

Potential Options to Mitigate Insolvency 
The Town has been vigilant in the last few years in preparing for the next economic downturn. Changes made include 
funding of OPEB and pension trust above the pay-as-you-go level, setting aside funds for capital improvements to 
avoid rising construction costs from deferred maintenance and improvements, working closely with local businesses 
to promote economic development, completing a user fee study which raised permit fees, and successfully passed 
a voter-approved Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT). Contributions to the 115 Trust funds and capital improvement 
funds can be used as part of the budget stabilization strategy to free up General Fund revenues for other essential 
Town services and operations. The new permit fees are accounted for in the projections, above. The TOT was 
established in preparation for when a hotel/motel is developed in Town.  

Additionally, the 2020-22 Strategic Plan (adopted prior to the start of the Covid-19 pandemic) includes a plan to 
diversify revenue sources and promote economic development. The FY 2021-22 Budget included appropriation to 
engage consultants in these matters.  

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 128

Attachment B



COST CONTAINMENT AND REDUCTION 

In addition to revenue measures, cost containment and reduction measures are considered. Below is a list of potential 
cost reduction measures: 

• Salary & Wages. The Town is currently at the final year of the 3 year labor contract, which included a
"reopener" clause in the event the Town faces a operating deficit in FY 2021-22. The FY 2021-22 budget
shows a Town-wide operating deficit and assumes the last two COLA adjustment are not implemented.
However, it is still very challenging to attract and retain qualified employees in the greater Bay Area/Silicon
Valley. The Town will need to balance pay increases to attract and retain qualified individuals and the related
operating cost. A potential solution is restructuring the organizational chart.

• Pension & OPEB. The Town may decide to “pay as you go” for both Pension and OPEB. However, this
measure will handicap the Town in meeting its future unfunded liabilities.

• Supplies and Contractual Services. Colma contracts out permit processing services, facilities and
landscape maintenance, and insurance. For the most part, there is a minimal contingency budget in this
category. The Town may reduce the annual budget to be $100,000 less than the projection but it may impact
processing time and facility maintenance and minor repairs may be deferred.

• Capital Improvement Fund Contribution. The Town may limit the maximum General Fund transfer of
$500,000 per year to Capital Improvement Fund (31) through FY 2026-27 and zero transfers thereafter.

• Parking Enforcement Program. Once the Grant Reserve fund is depleted, projected for FY 2022-23, the
Town’s parking enforcement program may need to be altered to avoid General Fund Subsidy.

• Sewer Operation and Capital Funds. The above projections assume a General Fund subsidy of $150,000
to $200,000 per year to subsidize the sewer operation, plus capital improvements. To eliminate the General
Fund subsidy, the Sewer Funds can be fully self-funded and an increase in sewer fees will be required. The
fees will have to be established as part of a Sewer Fee Study and complete the Proposition 218 process.

• Vehicle Purchase (Capital Outlay). The FY 2021-22 Budget includes an annual Departmental Budget
transfer of $250,000 to the Fleet Replacement Fund (61) to meet vehicle the replacement schedule. In future
years, we may have to delay vehicle replacement and reduce the annual contribution.

• Budget Stabilization Reserve. To keep Unassigned General Fund in the black, Budget Stabilization may
need to remain at $12.0 million, despite the Town’s reserve policy to set aside 100 percent of the prior year’s
operating budget as Budget Stabilization.

Next Step 
Closely monitoring revenues and expenditures and completing the revenue initiative and economic development 
projects in the 2020-2022 Strategic Plan will be an important part of the strategy to bridge the revenue and 
expenditure gap.  

Other measures to consider include making supplemental contributions to CalPERS directly during the next economic 
downturn to reduce the overall pension liability, looking at the benefit of leasing the Town fleet, rather than purchase, 
negotiating shared medical premium cost with employees, considering new revenue measures, increasing rental 
income, changing the Town’s investment portfolio, and investing in the Town’s business community and business 
corridors to enhance or prolong economic viability within Town.  

Financial Summaries 
The tables and charts below include financial summaries for all Town funds by Fund Categories: General Funds, 
Special Revenues and Debt Service Funds, Capital Improvement Funds, Internal Service Fund, and Enterprise Funds. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 129

Attachment B



General Fund (11, 12, 19) 

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 130

Attachment B



Special Revenue and Debt Funds 

Funds include Gas Tax (21), Measure A (22), Transportation Grant (23), Park in-Lieu (24), Housing Impact (25), 
Measure W (26), Police Grants (27), Citizens’ Option for Public Safety (29), and Certificate of Participation – Debt 
(43). 

 

 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 131

Attachment B



Capital Improvement Funds 

Funds include Capital Improvement Fund (31), Street Capital Fund (32). Fund 31 also reserves as the general Capital 
Reserve fund. Capital program in Vehicle Replacement Fund (61), Sewer Capital Fund (82) and City Property Fund 
(83) funds are not included in the tables and charts below. 

 

 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 132

Attachment B



Internal Service Fund 

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 133

Attachment B



Enterprise Funds 

Funds include Sewer Operation (81) and Capital (82) and City Property (83).  

 

 

  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 134

Attachment B



Town of Colma, California 

FY 2021-22 Budget 

www.colma.ca.gov 

Appropriation Limit 
California voters approved propositions, amending the State Constitution, which requires that the annual Town budget 
include a calculation of the Appropriations Limit, sometimes referred to as the Gann Limit. This requirement was 
imposed by Proposition 4 (1979) and later amended by Proposition 111 (1990). 

The requirement imposes a restriction on the amount of governmental revenue, which may be appropriated in any 
fiscal year. The Appropriations Limit was first based on actual appropriations during the base year (1986-87), and it 
can be increased each year based on a specific formula and specified growth factors. The Appropriations Limit does 
not apply to all funds. It only applies to funds that are “proceeds of taxes.” 

Each year, the adjustment to the Appropriations Limit takes into consideration two factors: 1) the change in the cost 
of living, and 2) the change in population. For each of these factors, the Town may select between two optional 
factors. 

Selection of Optional Factors 

1. Change in Population (Town of Colma vs. San Mateo County)
1. Town of Colma had a population of 1,678 on 1/1/2020 and 1,659 on 1/1/2021, a decrease of 1.13%
2. County of San Mateo had a population of 770,925 on 1/1/2020 and 765,113 on 1/1/2021, a decrease

of 0.75%
2. Change in State per capita Personal Income vs. Colma Non-Residential Building Construction

1. Change in State Per Capital Personal Income was 5.73%
2. Change in Colma Non-Residential Assessed Valuation was not available.

For the Fiscal Year 2021-22 calculation, the Town selected the County’s population growth rate of 0.75% and the 
change in the State Per Capita Income of 5.73%. 

Appropriation Limit Calculation 2021-22 

The 2021-22 Appropriations subject to the limit (“Proceeds of Taxes”) total $16,367,042, which means the Town is 
$40,907,730 below the authorized limit. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 135

Attachment B

https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/rcFCRdSf6
https://stories.opengov.com/colmaca/published/ub0shwb9l
https://www.colma.ca.gov/budget/


Staffing List 
The data is available beneath the bar charts. Use the scroll bar to the right to move to the table. 

Description of Funds 

Fund Type: General Fund 

General Fund (11) 

For the purpose of tracking funding and cost of ongoing operation and unrestricted revenues. The expenditure and 
use of General Funds are discretionary after appropriation by the City Council to the extent there are no local policies 
or laws that impose any special conditions. 

General Fund Reserves (12) 

For the purpose of segregating committed reserve funds approved by the City Council in the Town Budget. 

Emergency Operation (19) 

For the purpose of tracking emergency operation. 

Fund Type: Special Revenues 
2021-22 Proposed Budget 136

Attachment B



Gas Tax (21)  

For the purpose of receiving gas tax collected and distributed by the State of California. Gas Tax Fund is designated 
for ongoing traffic signal and street lighting contract services as well as street capital projects as authorized by the 
gas tax requirement. 

Measure A (22)  

For the purpose of receiving Measure A collected and distributed by the San Mateo County Transportation Authority. 
This is a county-wide voter-approved sales tax measure designed to improve transit and relieve traffic congestion. A 
portion of the Measure A funds are distributed directly to cities on a per-capita basis and the use is limited to eligible 
street capital improvements.  

Transportation Grant (23)  

For the purpose of recording various Federal, State and county grants for major bikeway, pedestrian, and roadway 
capital improvement projects. Grants are generally reimbursable in nature and require the Town to pay the contract 
cost, first.  

Parks in Lieu (24)  

For the purpose of receiving Parks in Lieu fees and disbursing funds for Town parks and recreational facilities. 

Housing Impact Fees (25)  

For the purpose of receiving Housing Impact fees paid by developers and disbursing funds for affordable housing 
purposes. 

Measure W (26)  

For the purpose of receiving Measure W collected and distributed by the San Mateo County Transportation Authority. 
This is a county-wide voter-approved sales tax measure designed to improve transit and relieve traffic congestion. A 
portion of the Measure W funds are distributed directly to cities on a per-capita basis and the use is limited to eligible 
street capital improvements.  

Public Safety Grants (27)  

For the purpose of revenue associated with one-time or limited-term Police grants that have restricted uses. This 
includes a distribution associated with State criminal justice realignment funds. Other one-time Police-related grants 
are also accounted for in this fund. The Public Safety Grants Fund is designated by the Town as Fund #27. 
Expenditures from this fund will finance the majority of costs associated with specialized Police training and homeless 
outreach services. 

COPS Grant (29)  

For the purpose of revenue associated with Police grants that have restricted uses and may be on-going. This 
includes an annual State distribution from the Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF), which must 
be used for front-line law enforcement activities. Expenditures from this fund will finance the majority of costs 
associated with the Police - Community Services Division including a Community Services Officer (CSO) position. 

Fund Type: Capital  

Capital Improvement (31)  

For the purpose of tracking the funding and cost of capital improvement projects that are not related to improvements 
to streets (Fund 32), sewer (Fund 82), Verano property (Fund 83), and Creekside Villas property (Fund 83). 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 137

Attachment B



Street Capital (32)  

For the purpose of tracking the funding and cost of Street Capital Improvement Projects 

Fund Type: Debt 

COPS Debt Services (43)  

For the purpose of tracking the payment of interest and principal associated with the 2015 Town Hall Campus 
Renovation COP and related administrative expenses. This is the only debt the Town currently has outstanding.  

Fund Type: Internal Services 

Vehicle/Fleet Replacement (61)  

For the purpose of accumulated funds over time to provide for the replacement of the Town fleet used by Police, 
Public Works, Recreation and Administration. Annual charges based on the usable life and cost of vehicles and the 
public works fleet are recorded as expenses within the operating departments. The future replacement of these 
vehicles and the fleet is financed from reserves accumulated in this fund. 

Fund Type: Trust 

OPEB Trust (71)  

For the purpose of tracking funding designated to pay retiree medical and dental cost and related investment returns. 

Pension Trust (72)  

For the purpose of tracking funding designated to pay retiree pension cost and related investment returns. 

Fund Type: Enterprise 

Sewer Operating (81)  

For the purpose of tracking the operating and maintenance cost of the Town’s Sewer System and to streamline 
quarterly and annual compliance reporting 

Sewer Capital (82)  

For the purpose of tracking the funding and cost of Sewer Capital Improvement project, and to establish the sewer 
system needs of the Town. 

City Properties (83)  

For the purpose of tracking the lease and rental of City properties, expenses for the maintenance of City properties, 
and depreciation. 

Financial Policies 
The Town of Colma's Policies are online and adopted as part of the Colma Administrative Code. Below is a list of 
policies that pertains to finance, directly.  

 
2021-22 Proposed Budget 138

Attachment B



Colma Administrative Code 4.01: Budget Procedures and Reserve Polices  

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-01-budget-procedures-reserve-policy/ 

Colma Administrative Code 4.02: Investment Policy  

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-02-investment-policy/ 

Colma Administrative Code 4.03: Grants & Donations  

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-03-grants-donations/ 

Colma Administrative Code 4.04: Banking Authority  

https://www.colma.ca.gov/documents/chapter-4-04-banking-authority/ 

Glossary of Terms 

A 

AB - Assembly Bill. 

ABAG - Association of Bay Area Governments. 

ABC - Alcoholic Beverage Control. 

Accounting System - The total set of records and procedures used to record, classify, and report information on the 
financial status and operations of an entity. 

Accrual Basis of Accounting - A method of accounting in which revenues are recorded when measurable and 
earned, and expenses are recognized when a good or service is used. 

Activity - A unit of budgetary accountability and control that encompasses specific and distinguishable lines of work 
performance for the purpose of accomplishing a function for which the Town is responsible. 

ADA - See Americans with Disabilities Act. 

ADC - Actuarially Determined Contribution. Minimum annual contribution, as determined based on actuarial 
assumptions, to pay off OPEB or Pension liabilities. 

Adopted Budget - The budget document formally approved by the City Council, often referred to as the original 
budget. 

Ad-valorem - According to value. 

Amended Budget - An adopted budget, after it has been changed (or adjusted) by the City Council. An example of 
an amended budget is when the City Council adopts changes in expenses and revenues of a specific item or project 
or a series of items and projects during the Mid-Year Budget process. (See Budget Adjustment) 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) - A 1990 law that gives federal civil rights protections to individuals with 
disabilities similar to those provided to individuals on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age, and religion. 
It guarantees equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities in public accommodations, employment, transportation, 
State and local government services, and telecommunications. 

Appropriation - A legal authorization granted by the City Council to make expenditures or enter into obligations for 
specific purposes. 

Appropriation Limit (Gann Limit) - A mandated calculation of how much the Town is allowed to expend in one fiscal 
year. It is mandated on government agencies within California by Article XIII B of the California Constitution. The 
amount of appropriation subject to the limit is the budgeted proceeds of taxes. Some examples of proceeds of taxes 
are sales and property taxes. The total of these budgeted revenues cannot exceed the total appropriations limit. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 139

Attachment B

http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-01-budget-procedures-reserve-policy/
http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-01-budget-procedures-reserve-policy/
http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-02-investment-policy/
http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-02-investment-policy/
http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-03-grants-donations/
http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/cac-4-03-grants-donations/
http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/chapter-4-04-banking-authority/
http://https/www.colma.ca.gov/documents/chapter-4-04-banking-authority/


Annually, local governments may increase the appropriations limit by a factor comprised of the change in population 
combined with the California inflation rate as determined by the State Finance Department. 

APWA - American Public Works Association. 

ARC - Actuarial Required Contribution. The term changed to Actuarially Determined Contribution, per GASB 75. 

Assessed Valuation - A valuation set upon real estate or other property by the San Mateo County Assessor and the 
State as a basis for levying taxes. 

Assigned Reserve - The spendable amounts set aside for specific purposes or contingencies authorized by 
resolution of the City Council. 

Authorized Positions - Positions approved by the City Council which may or may not have funding. (See Budgeted 
Positions) 

Audit - A review of the Town’s accounts by an independent accounting firm to verify that the Town’s financial 
statements accurately reflect its financial position. 

B 

BAAQMD - Bay Area Air Quality Management District. 

Balanced Budget - A balanced budget exists when the total projected inflow of resources is equal to, or greater than, 
the total projected outflow of resources. The inflow of resources includes current year revenues, future grant 
receivable, and use of reserves as approved by City Council. 

BART - Bay Area Rapid Transit. 

Base Budget - Those resources necessary to meet an established and existing service level. 

Basis of Budgeting - The method used for recognizing revenues and expenditures in the budget. The Town uses 
the modified accrual basis of accounting for budgetary purposes, which is in compliance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP). 

BCDC - Bay Conservation and Development Commission. 

Beginning Fund Balance - Resources available in a fund from the end of the prior year for use in the following year. 

Benefits - See Fringe Benefits. 

Bond - A written promise to pay a specified sum of money, called the face value of principal amount, at a specified 
date or dates in the future, together with the periodic interest at a specified rate issued by a city to raise capital funds. 

Budget - A planning and controlling document for financial operation with estimates of proposed expenditures and 
revenues for a given period of time, usually one year. A plan expressed in figures. 

Budget Adjustment - A change of expenditure levels and corresponding resources needed to accomplish an existing 
service level or unanticipated service. All budget adjustments are reflected in the current year budget and are 
approved by the City Council. 

Budget Calendar - The schedule of key dates or milestones that a city follows in the preparation and adoption of the 
budget. 

Budget Highlights - Portion of department narrative in the budget that focuses on key changes in the budget from 
the previous year. 

Budget Message - A general written description summarizing the proposed budget. The budget message explains 
principal budget issues against the background of financial experience in recent years and presents 
recommendations made by the City Manager. 

Budget Stabilization Reserve - Monies set aside, sometimes called a rainy day fund, that can be used to assure 
continuity of Town operations when tax revenues temporarily decline as the result of a recession, the loss of a major 
taxpayer or other similar circumstance. 

Budgeted Capital Project - Existing or new Capital Projects that have funding available in the current fiscal year. 
Work on these projects will continue during this year's budget. 

Budgeted Positions - The number of full-time equivalent positions to be funded in the budget. Example: Funding of 
two half-time positions would equal one full-time equivalent position. (See Authorized Positions). 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 140

Attachment B



C 

C/CAG - City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County. 

CAD/RMS - Computer Aided Dispatch and Records Management System. 

CAFR - Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

Cal BIG - California Building Inspection Group. 

CALBO - California Building Officials. 

CalPERS - See PERS. 

CAP - Climate Action Plan. 

CAPE (General Government) – Community Action Plan for Emergencies (Colma’s CERT Program). 

Capital Improvements - A permanent major addition to the Town’s real property assets including the design, 
construction, purchase or major renovation of land, buildings or facilities including major landscaping and park 
improvements. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - A plan for capital expenditures and the means of financing them, to be 
incurred each year over a fixed period of years, to meet capital needs arising from a long-term plan. (See Capital 
Improvements) 

Capital Outlay - Routine capital expenditures for the acquisition of capital assets. These items are included in almost 
every budget and do not have a significant impact on the operating budget. The Town’s capitalization limit is $10,000. 
(See Fixed Asset) 

Capital Project - All related expenditures for a public improvement project. 

Capital Project Fund - Resources transferred from the General Fund to complete a capital improvement project. 

Cardroom Tax - A permit tax imposed on gambling establishment operations in the Town of Colma. The tax is a 
general tax with the proceeds going to the General Fund. The tax requires each person operating a gambling 
establishment to pay a monthly tax which is a combination of a set fee and a percentage of gross revenue on a sliding 
scale set by Town ordinance. 

CASp - Certified Access Specialist. 

CAT - Community Action Teams. 

CEQA - California Environmental Quality Act. 

CERT - Community Emergency Response Team. 

Certificates of Participation (COPs) - A method of raising funds collateralized by leases between a lessor and a 
government agency. Payments are funded with annual appropriations made by the government agency (in this case 
the Town) to the lessor. COPs are typically used for capital leases for large projects where the financing amount 
exceeds several million dollars. 

Charges for Service - See Fees. 

CIP - See Capital Improvement Program. 

Climate Action Plan - A Climate Action Plan or a CAP is a detailed and strategic framework for measuring, planning, 
and reducing Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions and related climatic impacts. Climate Action Plans include an 
inventory of existing GHG emissions, reduction goals or targets, and prioritized measures and programs to reduce 
GHG emissions and climate impacts to target levels set by the City Council. 

Closed Capital Project - Capital Projects that have been completed or closed out. These projects will only appear 
in future Capital Improvement Budgets if they have project expenditures during the prior three years. 

COLA - See Cost of Living Adjustment. 

Committed Reserve - The spendable amounts set aside to meet the Town’s long-term obligations. 

Competitive Bidding - Transparent procurement method in which bids from competing contractors, suppliers, or 
vendors are invited by openly advertising the scope, specifications, and terms and conditions of the proposed contract 
as well as the criteria by which the bids will be evaluated. Competitive bidding aims at obtaining goods and services 
at the lowest prices by stimulating competition, and by preventing favoritism. 

Consultants - Outside individuals who provide advice or services. 
2021-22 Proposed Budget 141

Attachment B



Contractual - A type of expenditure. Usually, a professional consulting service involving a contract for one or more 
years. 

COP Town Hall Fund - Project expenses which were financed by Certificate of Participation (COP) debt financing. 

COPs - (debt) Certificates of Participation. 

COPS - (grant) Citizens Option for Public Safety. See Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund. 

Cost Accounting - The branch of accounting that provides for the assembling and recording of all the elements of 
cost incurred to accomplish a purpose, to carry on an activity or operation, or to complete a unit of work or a specific 
job. 

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) - A scheduled percentage adjustment to wages, which is based upon the terms 
of labor agreements as approved by an action of the City Council. 

Cost of Services - Payments made by customers for publicly provided services that benefit specific individuals and 
exhibit "public good" characteristics. They include fees such as recreation fees, building permit fees and planning 
fees. 

CPI - Consumer Price Index. 

CPOA - California Peace Officers’ Association. 

CPR - Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation. 

CPRS - California Park and Recreation Society. 

CPUC - California Public Utilities Commission. 

CSMFO - California Society of Municipal Financial Officers. 

CSO - Community Service Officer. 

D 

Debt Service - Actual cost of interest and principal on debt. 

Debt Service Fund - A fund established for the payment of principal and interest on debt other than payable 
exclusively from special assessments. 

Deficit - The excess of expenditures over revenues during an accounting period. 

Department - An organizational unit comprised of divisions or programs. It is possible for a department to be 
comprised of only one division. 

Department Description - A list of the typical activities of programs. 

Department Function - Category of work performed. The Town has five major categories: General Government, 
Recreation, Public Works, Public Safety and Planning. 

Discretionary Revenue - Money that the City Council has the authority to allocate for any purpose. Often refers to 
the General Fund, as opposed to special or Restricted Use Funds. 

Division - A functional grouping of related activities within a department. There are usually several activities within a 
division. (See Activity) 

DUI - Driving Under the Influence. 

E 

Economic Development - Efforts that seek to improve the economic well-being and quality of life for a community 
by creating and/or retaining jobs and supporting or growing incomes and the tax base. 

Encumbrance - An obligation in the form of a purchase order or contract. 

Enterprise Fund - A fund established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises, where the intent of the City Council is that the costs of providing services to the 
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, i.e., water utility, 
parking system. 

EOC - Emergency Operations Center. 
2021-22 Proposed Budget 142

Attachment B



ERAF - Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund. A shift of property tax revenue from local agencies (cities, counties, 
special districts) to the State. 

Expenditure - Designates the cost of goods delivered or services rendered, whether paid or unpaid. Where accounts 
are kept on the accrual or modified accrual basis of accounting, costs are recorded when goods are received or 
services rendered. Where accounts are kept on a cash basis, expenditures are recognized when the cash payments 
are made. 

F 

FBI - Federal Bureau of Investigation. 

Fees - A charge to cover the cost of services (e.g. building inspection fee, zoning fee, etc.) sometimes referred to as 
Charges for Service. 

FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

FF&E - Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment. 

FHA - Fair Housing Act. 

Fiscal Accountability - The responsibility of governments to justify that their actions in the current period have 
complied with public policy decisions concerning the raising and spending of public moneys in the short term (usually 
one budgetary cycle or one year). 

Fiscal Year - A twelve-month period of time to which the budget applies. For the Town of Colma and many local 
government agencies, this period is from July 1 through June 30. 

Fixed Asset - A tangible item of a long-term character such as land, buildings, furniture, and other equipment with a 
unit cost in excess of $10,000. (See Capital Outlay) 

Fleet Replacement Fund - An internal service fund used to accumulate funds over time to provide for the 
replacement of the Town fleet. 

FLSA - Fair Labor Standards Act. 

FMLA - Family Medical Leave Act. 

FPPC - Fair Political Practices Commission. 

Fringe Benefits - Benefits to Town employees, in addition to salaries, paid by the Town. These benefits include 
pensions, workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, health club membership, and life and health insurance. 

FTE - See Full-Time Equivalent. 

Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) - One or more employee positions totaling one full year of service or approximately 
2,080 hours a year. 

Full Cost Recovery - Recovering or funding the full costs of a project or service, typically through a user fee. In 
addition to the costs directly associated with the project, such as staff and equipment, projects will also draw on the 
rest of the organization. For example, adequate finance, human resources, management, and IT systems are also 
integral components of any project or service. 

Fund - A self-balancing set of accounts. Governmental accounting information is organized into funds, each with 
separate revenues, expenditures and fund balances. 

Fund Balance - The difference between fund assets and fund liabilities in a governmental or trust fund. Changes in 
fund balances are the result of the difference of revenues to expenditures. When revenues exceed expenditures in a 
given period, fund balance increases and when expenditures exceed revenue, fund balance decreases. 

Funding Source - Identifies fund(s) that will provide resources for Town expenditures. 

FY - See Fiscal Year. 

G 

GAAP - See Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

Gann Limit - See Appropriation Limit. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 143

Attachment B



Gas Tax Fund - Fund required by State law to account for gas tax revenues received from the State and expended 
for construction and maintenance of Town streets. 

GASB - See Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

GASB Statement No. 34 - Requires state and local governments to produce financial statements on an accrual basis, 
in much the same manner as private sector businesses. The objective is to enhance the understandability and 
usefulness of the financial reports of state and local governments to the public, legislative and oversight bodies, and 
investors and creditors. 

GASB Statement No. 45 - Requires the measurement and recognition criteria for other Post Employment Benefits 
(OPEB) for reporting purposes. The objective is to recognize the cost of benefits, provide information on related 
liabilities and provide information for assessing fiscal health for future periods. 

GASB Statement No. 54 - Intended to improve the usefulness of the amount reported in fund balance by providing 
a more structured classification. It also clarifies the definition of existing governmental fund types. 

GASB Statement No. 68 - Improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. 
It establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities and expenditures and identifies the methods and 
assumptions that should be used to calculate those liabilities and expenditures. 

GASB Statement No. 75 - Improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for post-
employment benefits other than pensions (other post-employment benefits or OPEB) such as retiree medical and 
retiree dental benefits. It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about 
financial support for OPEB. 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) - Uniform standards used by state and local governments for 
financial recording and reporting; established by the accounting profession through the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. 

General Fund - The primary fund of the Town used to account for all revenues of the Town not legally restricted as 
to use and related expenditures. 

General Fund Reserves - The balance of all general funds not otherwise appropriated (budgeted) or accounted for, 
such as the allocated reserves Council set aside for Litigation, Insurance, Disaster Preparedness, Employee Benefits 
and Operations. 

General Plan - A plan of a city, county or area which establishes zones for different types of development, uses, 
traffic patterns, and future development. 

General Revenue - General sources of income a city collects and receives for public use (e.g. property tax). There 
are no restrictions as to the use of these monies - often referred to as Discretionary Revenue. General Revenue 
comprises the General Fund. 

GF - See General Fund. 

GFOA - Government Finance Officers Association. 

GHG - Greenhouse Gas emissions. 

GIS - Geographic Information System. A Geographic Information System (GIS) is designed to capture, store, 
manipulate, analyze, manage, and present all types of geographical data. It analyzes the spatial location and 
organizes layers of information into visualizations using maps. With this unique capability, GIS reveals deeper insights 
into data, such as patterns, relationships, and situations — helping city departments make better decisions and more 
effective use of resources. 

Goal - An observable and measurable end result having one or more objectives to be achieved within a more or less 
fixed time frame. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) - The body that sets accounting standards specifically for 
governmental entities at the state and local levels. 

Governmental Funds - Self-balancing sets of accounts that are maintained for governmental activities. Financial 
statements of governmental funds are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial 
resource flows method of measurement focus. All of the Town’s funds are in the governmental category. (See 
Measurement Focus) 

GP - General Plan. 

Grant - A payment of money, often earmarked for a specific purpose or program, e.g. from one governmental unit to 
another or from a governmental unit to a not-for-profit agency. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 144

Attachment B



Grievance - An actual or supposed circumstance regarded as just cause for complaint. A complaint or protestation 
based on such a circumstance. 

H 

HEART - Housing Endowment and Regional Trust. 

HOA - Homeowners Association. 

HR - Human Resources. 

HRA - Human Resources Administration. 

HVAC - Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning. 

I 

ICMA - International City/County Management Association. 

Infrastructure - All Town-owned facilities supporting the operation of the government agency. It includes streets, 
roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, parks, water and sewer lines, storm drains, water pump stations and reservoirs, 
water wells, sewer lift stations, all government buildings and related facilities. 

Interfund Transfers - Monies appropriated from one fund to another fund. This is done to reimburse the fund for 
expenses or to finance the operation of the other fund. 

Internal Service Fund - A fund used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department 
or agency to other departments or agencies of a government on a cost reimbursement basis. 

IPM - Integrated Pest Management. 

Irrevocable Trust - A type of trust that by its design can't be modified, amended, changed or revoked. 

IT - Information Technology. 

J 

JPA - Joint Powers Agreement. 

L 

LAFCO - Local Agency Formation Commission. 

LAIF - Local Agency Investment Fund. 

LAO - Legislative Analyst’s Office. 

LCW - Liebert Cassidy Whitmore. 

Level of Service - Indicator that measures the performance of a system. Certain goals are defined and the service 
level gives the percentage to which they should be achieved. 

Long Term Debt - Debt with a maturity of more than one year after the date of the issue. 

LTD - Long Term Disability. 

M 

MADD - Mothers Against Drunk Driving. 

Mandate (Mandated Services) - A legal requirement, usually imposed by State or Federal law. This term is used to 
refer to Town services, which are provided to comply with State or Federal laws, such as preparation of the City 
Council Agenda in compliance with the Brown Act. 

Maturities - The dates on which the principal or stated values of investments or debt obligations mature and may be 
reclaimed. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 145

Attachment B



Measure A Fund - Fund used to account for the Town’s per-capita portion of a countywide, voter-approved sales tax 
increase for improving transit and relieving congestion. 

Measure M - Countywide, voter-approved vehicle registration fee, half of which goes to the cities in the county using 
a pro-rata formula based on population and road miles. The money can be used for pavement resurfacing, pothole 
repair, signs and striping, traffic signals, street sweeping, storm-inlet cleaning and local shuttles. 

Measurement Focus - The accounting convention which determines: (1) which assets and which liabilities are 
included on the governmental unit's balance sheet; and (2) whether its operating statement presents "financial flow" 
information (revenue and expenditures) or "capital maintenance" information (revenues and expenses). 

Mid-Year - As of December 31st (mid-point of the fiscal year). 

Mid-Year Budget Review - Annual process, which occurs in February, where staff analyzes the revenue and 
expenditures of the Town through the mid-point of the fiscal year (December 31st), projects the data to the end of 
the fiscal year (June 30th) and presents the information to Council, along with any recommended budget adjustments. 

MMANC - Municipal Management Association of Northern California. 

Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting - A form of accrual accounting in which (1) expenditures are recognized 
when the goods or services are received and (2) revenues, such as taxes, are recognized when measurable and 
available to pay expenditures in the current accounting period. 

MOU - Memorandum of Understanding. 

MRP - Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit. 

MTC - Metropolitan Transportation Commission. 

Municipal Code - A book that contains City Council approved ordinances presently in effect. The Code defines Town 
law in various categories. (See Ordinance) 

N 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) - A policy set forth by the Environmental Protection 
Agency, under the 1987 Federal Clean Water Act, imposing regulations that mandate local governments to control 
and reduce the amount of stormwater pollutant runoff into receiving waters. 

Non-recurring Costs - One-time activities for which the expenditure should be budgeted only in the fiscal year in 
which the activity is undertaken. 

Non-spendable Fund Balance - The amounts associated with inventories, prepaid expenses and other items legally 
or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

NorCalHR - Northern California Municipal Human Resources Managers Group. 

NPDES - See National Pollution Discharge Elimination System. 

NSMCD - North San Mateo County Sanitation District. 

O 

OBF - On-Bill Financing. 

Objectives - Desired results of the activities of a program. 

OES - Office of Emergency Services. 

OPEB - Other Post-Employment Benefits. 

Operating Budget - A programmatic, financial, and organizational plan for furthering the goals of the City Council 
through departments of the Town, which does not include capital improvement projects. 

Operating Expenses - Expenses incurred as a result of day-to-day operations. 

Operational Accountability - Governments’ responsibility to report the extent to which they have met their operating 
objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources available for that purpose, and whether they can continue to 
meet their objectives for the foreseeable future. 

Ordinance - A formal legislative enactment by the City Council. It has the full force and effect of law within the City 
boundaries unless it is in conflict with any higher form of law, such as a State statute or constitutional provision. An 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 146

Attachment B



ordinance has higher legal standing than a resolution. Adopted ordinances form the Municipal Code. (See Municipal 
Code) 

P 

PCI - Pavement Condition Index. 

PCJPB - Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board (Also known as Caltrain Board) 

PELRA - Public Employers Labor Relations Association. 

PEMHCA - Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act. 

PERS - Public Employees Retirement System. A pension plan administered by the State of California for government 
agencies. (Also known as CalPERS). 

Performance Measures - Indicators used in budgets to show, for example, (1) the amount of work accomplished, 
(2) the efficiency with which tasks were completed, and (3) the effectiveness of a program, which is often expressed 
as the extent to which objectives were accomplished. 

Personnel Expenditures - Salaries, wages and benefits paid to employees. 

PMP - Pavement Management Plan. 

Police Grants Fund - Revenue associated with Police grants that have restricted uses and may be ongoing, for 
example, SLESF. 

POST - Police Officer Standards and Training. 

Priority Area - A category of Town services, such as Economic Development, Long Range Financial Plan or 
Neighborhoods which the City Council selects as an area of focus for staff in the coming fiscal year. 

Program - Plan of action aimed at accomplishing a clear objective, with details on what work is to be done, by whom, 
when, and what means or resources will be used. 

Program Revenues - Revenues received by a department as a result of the services or operations of that department 
(such as user fees), and generally used to finance the related services or programs. 

Property Tax - A tax on the assessed value of property. California State Constitution Article XIII A provides that the 
combined maximum property tax rate on any given property equal to 1% of its assessed value unless an additional 
amount has been approved by voters for special taxes or general obligation bonds. San Mateo County remits the 
Town’s share, including all penalties and interest. 

Proposed Budget - The working document for the fiscal year under discussion. 

PTAF - Property Tax Assessment Fee. 

Public Employee Retirement System - See PERS. 

Public Safety Grants Fund - Revenue associated with one-time or limited term Police Grants that have restricted 
uses. 

PW - Public Works. 

R 

Real Estate Transfer Tax - A tax on the value of property transferred, currently levied at a rate of $0.275 per $500. 
San Mateo County collects the tax and the Town receives the revenues. Revenues are dependent on how frequently 
the property is transferred and on the accrued value at the time of transfer. 

Records Management System (RMS) - A system that automates the storage of current documents and important 
records of the Town (documents, agendas, minutes, reports, maps and vital records) to facilitate quick and easy 
access to these records using software and other technologies. 

Request for Proposal (RFP) - Part of a procurement process which is frequently associated with obtaining 
professional or specialized services or goods. Vendors are invited to respond with a description of services and 
associated costs. The agency evaluates responses to determine the response which most closely meets the stated 
needs in a cost-effective manner. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 147

Attachment B



Reserve - An account used to designate a portion of the fund balance as legally segregated for a specific use, i.e., 
General Fund Reserve. 

Reserve Policy - A Council adopted set of principles which establish an appropriate minimum level of reserves and 
specify how reserves can be used. 

Resolution - A special order of the City Council that requires less legal formality than an ordinance in terms of public 
notice and the number of public readings prior to approval. 

Restricted Use Funds - Funds designated for use for a specific purpose. 

Revenues - Income from all sources used to pay Town expenses. 

RFP - See Request for Proposal. 

RHNA - Regional Housing Needs Assessment. 

Risk Management - An organized attempt to protect a government’s assets against accidental loss in the most 
economical method. 

RMS - See Records Management System. 

ROW - Right-Of-Way. 

RWQCB - Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

S 

Salaries and Wages - A fixed monthly or hourly sum paid to an employee. 

Sales Tax - Taxes assessed on retail sales or leases of tangible personal property in the Town. The Town receives 
one percent of the 8.25% San Mateo County sales tax. 

SAMCAT - San Mateo County Telecommunications Authority. 

SamTrans - San Mateo County Transit District. 

SB - Senate Bill. 

Secured Taxes - Taxes levied on real properties in the Town which are “secured” by liens on the properties. 

SFPUC - San Francisco Public Utilities Commission. 

SLESF - See Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund. 

SLPP - State-Local Partnership Program. 

SMC - San Mateo County. 

SMIP - San Mateo County Investment Pool. 

Special Revenue Fund - A fund that accounts for the use of revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specific purposes. 

SSAR - Systemic Safety Analysis Report Program. A grant program established by the State Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) in 2016. The purpose of this grant is to study deficiencies in a government agency's 
roadway network including sidewalks, bike paths, crosswalks, accessibility barriers and streetlights and recommend 
corrective measures to correct the problems. 

SSF – City of South San Francisco. 

SSO - Sanitary Sewer Overflow. 

STEP - Saturation Traffic Enforcement Program. 

STOPP - Stormwater Pollution Prevention Program. 

Strategic Plan - Plan of action aimed at accomplishing a clear objective, with details on what work is to be done, by 
whom, when, and what means or resources will be used. 

Strategic Planning - A comprehensive and systematic management tool designed to help organizations assess the 
current environment, increase effectiveness, develop commitment to the organization’s mission and achieve 
consensus on strategies and objectives for achieving that mission. The focus is on aligning organizational resources 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 148

Attachment B



to bridge the gap between present conditions and the envisioned future. The organization’s objectives for a strategic 
plan will help determine how available resources can be tied to future goals. 

Supplemental Assessment - An assessment of real property occurring after the real property lien date of January 
1st of each year as a result of new construction or a change in ownership. The San Mateo County Assessor 
determines the new value of the property based on current market values, and then calculates the difference between 
the new value and the value set on January 1st. 

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF) - A component of the Citizens’ Option for Public Safety 
(COPS) program which provides grants to every city and county and five special districts that provide law enforcement 
in the State of California. SLESF funds are allocated among cities and counties and special districts that provide law 
enforcement services in proportion to population, except that each agency is to be allocated a minimum of $100,000. 
The Town of Colma receives the minimum allocation. 

Supplies and Services - Expenditures for materials, supplies and related services which are ordinarily consumed 
within a fiscal year. 

SWAT - Special Weapons And Tactics. 

T 

Tax Levy - Amount of tax dollars raised by the imposition of the tax rate on the assessed valuation of property. 

Tax Equity Allocation - The amount of property taxes payable to the Town under a special law to assist cities that 
otherwise would receive low or no property taxes. 

TDM - Transportation Demand Management. 

TEA - Tax Equity Allocation. 

TLC - Transportation for Livable Communities. 

TMA - Training Managers Association. 

Transportation Grants Fund - Fund used to account for one-time transportation grants awarded by Federal, State 
and Regional agencies, and the associated expenditures. 

U 

UBC - Uniform Building Code. 

Unassigned Reserve - The amount of spendable fund balance that is not otherwise appropriated. 

Unencumbered Appropriation - The portion of an appropriation not yet expended or encumbered. 

Unfunded Capital Project - Capital Projects that are Town priorities but are currently without budgeted funds. 
Unfunded Capital Projects will be reviewed annually during the Town Budget process to see if funds are available for 
their design and construction and if these projects are ready to move from the Unfunded Capital Projects list to the 
Budgeted Capital Projects list. 

Unfunded Position - Positions that are authorized but funding is not provided. 

Unsecured Taxes - An ad-valorem (value-based) property tax that is the liability of the person or entity assessed for 
the tax. Because the tax is not secured by real property (such as land) the tax is called "unsecured." 

Useful Life - An accounting term defined as the number of years, as set by the IRS, that depreciable business 
equipment or property is expected to be in use. 

W 

Way-finding - Information systems and signage that guide people through a physical environment and enhance their 
understanding and experience of the area or space. 

Y 

Year-End - As of June 30th (end of fiscal year).  

2021-22 Proposed Budget 149

Attachment B



Resolutions 

Budget Adoption 

Will be updated after June 9, 2021 

GANN Limit 

Will be updated after June 23, 2021 

Reasonable Accommodation 

Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, 
as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification 
or accommodation to view the document, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director, 
at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

2021-22 Proposed Budget 150

Attachment B

http://pak.lin@colma.ca.gov/


Economic Development Study Session  Page 1 of 6 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Peter Ingram, Economic Development Advisor 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: June 9, 2021 
SUBJECT: Economic Development Study Session No. 2 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff seeks broad direction from the City Council for advancing the Town’s 2020-2022 Strategic 
Plan – Economic Development Program. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this study session is to focus attention on the continuation, creation and/or re-
activation [post-Covid] of economic development partnerships, programs and marketing 
strategies for the Town.  The desired outcomes include: 

• Build on still-relevant prior activities, ideas, and community outreach
• Work toward consensus on mid-term activities and actions
• Set a work plan in place for Fiscal Year 2021-22

FISCAL IMPACT 

None at this time. 

BACKGROUND 

As the “Great Recession” was unfolding in 2008, the Town developed a business and public 
outreach plan to engage business owners and residents affected by the Town’s economic 
development efforts. In spring 2009, the Town held a Community Workshop and also asked 
local business owners, residents and Colma shoppers to participate in a survey to identify their 
economic needs and concerns. 

In 2012 BAE Urban Economics prepared the Colma Economic Development Plan.  The plan was 
intended to guide actions over the ensuing ten years, and laid out potential strategies in 
response to overall land use and urban design needs.  The recommended actions identified the 
then-current market demand for a variety of land uses, but did not reflect land availability or 
associated redevelopment constraints. 

Item #8



Economic Development Study Session  Page 2 of 6 

The 10-year actions were: 
1. Refine Town Communications Program to Retain Existing Businesses
2. Strengthen Auto Row
3. Expand and Diversify Retail and Restaurant Sectors
4. Accommodate Cardroom Expansion
5. Create Branding and Promotional Materials for Colma
6. Develop Specialty Retail/Entertainment/Dining District
7. Develop Hotel
8. Create Town Center

In August 2012, in conjunction with the development of the Colma Economic Development 
Plan, the Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center facilitated a community meeting about the Plan 
and elicited input and ideas from residents and local businesses. 

In the fall of 2013 the Town’s land use consultants Dyett and Bhatia provided a form-based 
vision for future development and growth in Colma, to gauge community sentiment about the 
development of identified key properties. The resulting Land Use and Urban Design Strategy 
was accepted in October 2014. The Strategy considered land use issues anticipated over a 20-
year period and provides an innovative framework for the eminent General Plan Update. The 
following Guiding Principles emerged from discussions and analysis: 

• A Walkable Town Center Destination
• Community Facilities and a Cohesive Open Space Scheme
• Improved Accessibility
• A Stronger Commercial Base

Taken together, these ideas establish the overall priorities for future development within the 
Town. 

In 2014, as part of the initial drafting of the General Plan Update 2040, the Planning 
Department conducted a community survey on a range of land uses, six of which are linked to 
economic development.   

In 2018, the City Council initiated a ballot initiative to establish a Transient Occupancy Tax 
Ordinance, setting a room rental tax rate of 12%.  This tax was approved by voters in 
November of 2018.  

In January 2020 the Serramonte Blvd. & Collins Ave. Master Plan was completed. Specific 
objectives identified for the Master Plan include (Partial list): 

• Economic Development. Support, retain and increase commercial business activities
while fostering a dynamic and sustainable business district that can respond to changing
market conditions. The plan recommends office uses if auto sales uses are no longer
viable.

• Land Use and Urban Design. Incorporate land use and urban design elements that
sustain and enhance the function and unique identity of Serramonte Boulevard and
Collins Avenue.



Economic Development Study Session  Page 3 of 6 

In March 2020 the State of California and the County of San Mateo initiated the first stay-at-
home orders in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

By the fall of 2020 staff had completed drafting the elements of the General Plan Update 2040 
(with the exception of the Housing Element, which is now under way and required to be 
approved by the state in early 2023).  

On Dec. 9, 2020 the first in a series of City Council study sessions on the draft General Plan was 
held, focused on the Introduction, Land Use, and Historic Resources elements. As was stated in 
the staff report and presentation, the updated General Plan (particularly the Land Use Element) 
needs to clearly articulate Colma’s community vision concerning potential land uses and 
development for the next 20 years.   

In January 2021 City Council members responded to a list of questions about economic 
development and the current state of the local economy, in light of the continuing Covid-19 
pandemic.  Council responses were captured via individual interviews with the City Manager and 
his economic development advisor. Broadly interpreted, the Council’s collective thinking falls 
into two categories – and mirrors their standing Strategic Plan goal for economic development: 

• Land use changes (“Placemaking”)
• Partnerships and programs (“Marketing Strategy”)

On Feb. 10, 2021 the City Council received a status update on each program of the previously 
approved 2020-2022 Strategic Plan. The City Manager’s presentation also included newly 
proposed initiatives that the City Council considered as they discussed the plan update.  The 
Council gave direction on prioritization of the programs for 2021, and whether to include the 
newly proposed initiatives in the update for the 2020-2022 Strategic Plan.  Ultimately the City 
Council accepted the update as recommended, and made no changes to the economic 
development strategy. The Strategic Plan’s stated goal for economic development is: 

“Create Placemaking and Develop Marketing Strategy” 

This two-part goal statement – and how to bring it into reality in Colma – provided the basis for 
a first economic development study session, which focused on Placemaking as related to the 
pending General Plan Update. The March 24, 2021 study session provided staff with broad 
direction from the Council based on the question, “What specific information will be needed by 
the Council to evaluate the General Plan Update’s potential effectiveness in enabling robust 
future economic development?” In addition to setting a land use framework that encourages 
the development of a desirable and economically viable community, partnerships and programs 
will also be important to furthering the Town’s economic success. Staff affirmed that a second 
session with the Council, ahead of the General Plan adoption would be scheduled for a focused 
discussion on the Partnerships and Programs / Marketing Strategy aspects of economic 
development. 

The purpose of the two study sessions: 
• Increase the focus on economic development by reviewing the Council’s cumulative

direction over the past eight years and the resulting, interrelated plans and strategies 
that must be effectively tied together and activated when the Council adopts the 
General Plan Update 2040 later this year; 



Economic Development Study Session  Page 4 of 6 

• Commence a discussion on how to ensure that the Council’s “economic development
tool kit” will contain all the appropriate tools, levers and mechanisms that will be
required to realize the draft General Plan’s policy theme for economic development:

“Economic Development and Fiscal Sustainability: Encourage 
businesses and activities that will allow the Town to maintain a 
high standard of public services and improvements into the future.” 

In April and May of 2021 the Council held study sessions to review and provide direction for the 
preparation of the Fiscal Year 2021-22 operating and capital improvement program budgets. 

ANALYSIS 

The study session will be structured as follows: 
1. Recap prior workshops, outreach activities, materials, and ideas.

QUESTION: Does the Council see program pieces that remain relevant and of 
priority today? 

a. 2009 - In 2008 the Town of Colma developed a business and public outreach
plan to engage business owners and residents affected by the Town’s economic
development efforts. In spring 2009, the Town held a Community Workshop and
also asked local business owners, residents and Colma shoppers to participate in
a survey to identify their economic needs and concerns. Staff from the Colma
Planning Department and the Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce
interviewed local businesses for additional, more in-depth input.
(See Attachment A – Summary of Community Workshop and Survey, July 2009)

b. 2012 – In August 2012, in conjunction with the development of the Colma
Economic Development Plan, the Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center facilitated
a community meeting. 
(See Attachment B – August 22, 2012 Meeting Notes) 

c. 2014 – As part of the initial drafting of the General Plan Update 2040, the
Planning Department conducted a community survey on a range of land uses, six
of which are linked to economic development.
(See Attachment C – Survey Results slide from prior General Plan Update study
session)

2. Primary business sectors: Successes, issues, emerging trends, differing needs, and
shifting priorities

a. Shopping centers
b. Auto Row dealers
c. Card room
d. Cemeteries

3. Strategic Plan/Economic Development – Relevant program goals for Q3 and Q4 of 2021
a. Commit resources to support expansion or relocation of businesses

i. 2012 Economic Development Plan – Identify targeted updates and
relevance to a post-Covid economy

ii. Future collaboration with “Chamber 2.0”?
iii. In-house business development capacity – new programs
iv. Options

 Partnerships?
 Other cities – share staff resources?



Economic Development Study Session  Page 5 of 6 

 Refine strategies and narrow focus
b. Develop branding campaign (pending Council budget decisions, funding planned

for FY 2022-23)
c. Prepare for the future of commercial real estate and retail

Staff encourages the City Council to engage in the study session presentation, ask questions, 
and provide feedback and preliminary direction to staff.  

Questions to prompt Council discussion include: 

1. Which legacy Town events could be reactivated in Fiscal Year 2021-22, as the effects of
the pandemic subside?

a. Mayor, City Manager and Police Chief business walks
b. Town Hall patio mixers / happy hours
c. Business recognition luncheon
d. Holiday activities with shopping centers
e. Auto dealer lunches
f. Cemetery managers lunches
g. Business newsletter

2. What do you want to learn from other places about business recruitment & retention?
a. Chambers of Commerce
b. Commercial brokerage community
c. Retail businesses
d. Neighboring cities

3. How can we best assess businesses’ short-term and mid-range needs as the pandemic is
winding down?

a. Survey
b. Outreach & engagement

Time line for decisions, actions and activities across the remainder of 2021 
• By June 30:

o Complete current scope of work – economic development advisory services
o Council’s FY 2021-22 budget process completion
o City Manager and Economic Development Advisor create work plan for FY 2021-

22 
o Create budget for outside survey & outreach services

• By Fall 2021:
o Mayor forms an ad hoc Economic Development committee for FY 2021-22

Purpose:
 Create programmatic infrastructure
 Support Council and staff in executing short and mid-term strategies

o Council adopts General Plan update
 Roll-out events
 Economic Development messaging – land use audience

• By end of 2021:
o Conclude a marketing / branding needs assessment (business survey)



Economic Development Study Session   Page 6 of 6 
 

Council Adopted Values 
 
Considering enabling policies for economic development is consistent with the Council value of 
responsibility because it proactively considers policy that will enhance the Town over time. 
 
Sustainability Impact 
 
The General Plan and its policies related to economic development will promote sustainability 
since development will be in-fill in nature and encourage more walking, biking and transit use.  
 
Alternatives 

None with regard to holding this study session.  However, the Council could determine in the 
course of discussion that alternative approaches to economic development partnerships, 
programs and marketing strategies for the Town are desirable for subsequent study and 
potential Council actions. 

CONCLUSION  

The eminent adoption of the 2040 General Plan Update provides a unique and timely 
opportunity to strengthen the core foundations of long-term economic development in Colma.  
Taking the time now to focus on both the Town’s land use tools and potential, effective 
partnerships and programs are affirmative actions the City Council can take on this stated 
strategic priority. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Summary of Community Workshop and Survey, July 2009 
B. August 22, 2012 Meeting Notes 
C. Survey Results slide from prior General Plan Update study session 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
STRATEGY 

DRAFT 
Summary of Community Workshop and Survey 

July 2009 

Town of Colma 
Planning Department 
1190 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 

JUNE 9 STAFF REPORT - ATTACHMENT A



Draft Community Workshop and Survey Summary 
TOWN OF COLMA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

In 2008, the Town of Colma developed a business and public outreach plan to engage 
business owners and residents affected by the Town’s economic development efforts. 

In spring 2009, the Town held a Community Workshop and also asked local business 
owners, residents and Colma shoppers to participate in a survey to identify their 
economic needs and concerns. Staff from the Colma Planning Department and the 
Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce will interview local businesses for additional, 
more in-depth input, and will include a summary of the interview information in a 
subsequent version of this document.  This draft summary describes the results of the 
community outreach efforts to date. 

I. KEY FINDINGS

In summary, the findings of both the workshop and the surveys implied the following: 

Colma has significant community assets key to economic development,
including its accessibility, its pro-business Town government, and the Town’s
sense of pride and community.

There are several advantages to having a business in Colma, including ample
parking infrastructure, proximity to regional freeways, and a mix of both
national chains and smaller local businesses

Local businesses in Colma are currently concerned with both local and
national economic issues, ranging from the vacant parcels and businesses in
Colma, to Colma’s mix of old and new businesses and development, to
unemployment and the national credit crunch.

Local businesses may be interested in programs that improve transportation
access and infrastructure, marketing and branding campaigns, and
streamlined business and development permitting.

Colma residents and shoppers are interested in attracting new businesses to
Colma; specifically neighborhood-serving uses such as a grocery store and
post-office, to national discount retail chains that can generate significant
sales tax revenue.

II. WORKSHOP

On May 4, 2009, a Community Workshop was conducted for both residents and 
representatives of the local business community. The workshop was held at the Colma 
Community Center and approximately 25 participants attended. Approximately one 
third of attendees identified themselves as residents or shoppers, one third identified 
themselves as local business owners, and the remaining third identified themselves as 



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 2 of 11 

belonging to both categories. Several 
Council Members were also present to 
observe but not participate in the 
workshop activities.  

The Workshop encouraged participants 
to brainstorm solutions to common 
economic issues and describe the needs 
of local businesses, Colma residents and 
shoppers. Attendees participated in 
activities, led by Colma staff members, 
designed to generate information and 
ideas. Each workshop activity is 
described in detail below, along with 
each activity’s key findings. 

City Planner Andrea Ouse welcomes workshop 
participants, discusses the need for economic 
development, and describes the workshop. 

Activity 1: Colma’s Economic Future 

In this activity, participants used a 
combination of post-it note brainstorming 
and discussion to answer the following 
questions posed by the facilitator, the 
answers to which are summarized below. 

What are Colma’s primary assets? 

1. Accessible and safe parking.

2. Good business climate, with friendly
businesses, good discount stores and
lots of visitors.

In Activity 1, participants brainstormed 
Colma’s assets and economic priorities. 

3. Ease of transportation and access; Colma is located within minutes of San
Francisco, BART stations and is easy to get to by freeway or by the street
network.

4. Small town atmosphere with a strong sense of community.

5. Town government that is pro-business, supportive and provides for the safety of
its residents through good police and fire service.

6. High levels of maintenance and good aesthetic environment; the Town is well
kept, quiet and clean.

7. Benefits for residents.



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 3 of 11 

8. Existing local businesses include a variety of shops, Target, small community
stores, and good merchants.

What should Colma’s economic priorities be? 

1. Improving transportation and transportation infrastructure, such as a shuttle or
plans for anticipating future traffic flow increases.

2. Supporting existing businesses to provide continuity of our existing commercial
core, including auto row.

3. Streamlining the permit and approval process for new businesses and new
development.

4. Identifying and courting new businesses, especially those businesses and services
that Colma currently does not have (restaurants, grocery stores, etc.), businesses
that would generate sales tax, and businesses that add to a vibrant mix of retail
and service opportunities.

Other suggestions included developing a permanent home for the Chamber of 
Commerce within Colma, developing Colma into a ‘Green Hub’ for sustainable 
businesses, providing more recreational opportunities and amenities and increasing 
the size of Colma by annexing adjacent land. 

Activity 2: Colma’s Local Business Climate 

In this activity, participants were asked to discuss and identify concerns facing local 
businesses as well as to define solutions to these concerns. Participants engaged in 
group discussions to answer the following questions. Their responses are summarized 
below. 

What are the primary advantages and disadvantages of locating a business in Colma? 

1. Advantages to locating a business in Colma include:

a. We have good ‘business climate components’, such as a nice retail
facilities, a supportive Town government, and a family atmosphere.

b. Excellent freeway access to businesses.

c. Traffic to our national chains helps our small businesses; and our national
chains have good name recognition.

d. Close proximity to BART.

e. Fairly smooth permitting processes.



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 4 of 11 

f. Parking availability.

g. Convenient location for businesses.

h. El Camino Real has name recognition.

2. Disadvantages to locating a business in Colma include:

a. Lack of name recognition or strong and
positive name recognition; Colma is only
associated with cemeteries.

b. Cemetery land use does not provide tax
revenue to the Town.

c. Cemetery traffic is not being captured by
other businesses.

d. Town provides residents with lots of
benefits, but not many benefits for
businesses.

e. While the permitting process is good, it
could be better.

Notes from Activity 2 
identifying advantages and 
disadvantages. 

f. No major draw.

g. No good pedestrian connection between
Colma residences and Colma businesses.

h. Poor signage.

i. Poor public transportation in commercial areas.

What are the most pressing concerns facing local businesses today? 

1. Current vacancies (especially along Auto Row) and abandoned properties.

2. Defining the appropriate balance between old and new businesses and
development.

3. High levels of unemployment

4. The current credit crunch; inability to secure loans and money.

5. Heavy traffic along El Camino Real; El Camino Real not being a safe and inviting
place for pedestrians.

6. Uncontrolled lease rates.



Colma Economic Development Strategy  7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts  Page 5 of 11 

7. Need better signage and advertising. 

8. Town is too skewed towards auto uses. 

9. Need more diversity in our business mix (and our retail mix specifically). 

 

Activity 3: Colma’s Consumer Climate 

In the third activity, participants were asked to discuss and identify the needs of 
shoppers as well as evaluate the Colma shopping experience. Participants used post-it 
note brainstorming and facilitated discussion to answer the following questions. 
Responses are summarized, in order of importance, below. 

Why do you shop where you do? 

1. Location factors that impact where we shop include:  

a. Whether the business is closer to my home or work. 

b. Whether or not the business is easily accessible by car and the freeway. 

c. Whether or not the business is close to others that I want to visit. 

2. Design factors that impact where we shop include:  

a. Whether the stores are easily accessible. 

b. Whether there is ample and safe parking. 

3. Specific shops and services that impact where we shop include:  

a. The overall store selection. 

b. Target and Kohl’s – stores with a variety of goods. 

c. Stores that are smaller and friendlier than others. 

d. Operating hours of specific stores. 

e. The diversity of the stores. 

4. Other factors that impact where we shop include:  

a. Whether my patronage benefits the Town (e.g., whether my purchase will 
generate sales tax for Colma).  

 

  



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 6 of 11 

What are the advantages and disadvantages of shopping in Colma? 

1. Advantages to shopping in Colma include:

a. It’s easy to park.

b. The stores are less crowded than in other areas.

c. There is good BART/transit access.

d. I know the stores here.

e. I like the small town feel of Colma.

f. Colma feels safe; good police force.

g. Colma looks good.

h. The stores have good lighting and good hours.

2. Disadvantages to shopping in Colma include:

a. Design of shopping facilities isn’t modern.

b. Traffic congestion.

c. There’s no shuttle to take you between stores, and some stores are not
near one another.

d. Colma lacks basic neighborhood services, including restaurants,
grocery/produce market, pharmacy or post office.

Far left: a staff 
facilitator leads 
participants in a 
discussion on 
consumer needs. 
Left: notes
generating on the 
Colma shopping 
experience. 



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 7 of 11 

What actions, businesses or services would encourage you to shop in Colma more 
often? 

1. Farmer’s market-inspired community events or festivals.

2. Grocery store, especially a health food store or “Whole Foods” type of store.

3. Kids play places - place to host parties.

4. Education or vocational services.

5. Provision of family discounts.

6. Shuttles or public transit.

7. A “Shop Colma” type marketing campaign.

8. Coffee shops.

9. Big name stores.

10. Theater.

11. A Goodwill or St. Vincent de Paul thrift store.

12. Family restaurants or fine dining establishments.

III. SURVEY

Between March and June, Colma distributed surveys to Colma businesses and 
residents, and also administered surveys to non-residents shopping in Colma. The 
surveys were designed to solicit specific and somewhat detailed feedback on 
preferences, advantages/disadvantages of Colma, as well as precise information 
regarding issues facing businesses and consumers. The survey included multiple 
choice, “yes/no”, and short answer type questions.  

In total, 140 surveys were received, including 103 surveys from residents, 19 from 
Colma businesses, and 18 from non-resident shoppers. Follow-up in-person interviews 
with businesses are planned for late July 2009, which will provide more in-depth 
information gathering from the local business perspective. Once the information from 
the business interviews are included summarized in this document, the document will 
be finalized.  The findings from each of the responding groups are summarized below. 



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 8 of 11 

Business Owner Survey Findings 

The Town received a total of 19 surveys from businesses located along Mission Road, 
Serramonte Boulevard, Serra Center or 280 Metro Center, El Camino Real, Collins 
Avenue, Colma Boulevard, Hillside Boulevard and within a residential neighborhood. 

Six surveys were received from cemetery or cemetery-related businesses, 5 from auto 
dealerships or related businesses, 2 from personal service businesses, 4 from general 
retail businesses and 2 from construction related businesses. 

Findings from the Business Owner Survey include: 

1. When asked to identify up to 3 issues or concerns facing Colma businesses, the
most common answers were competition from other cities, businesses and
industries, business attraction and recruitment, and business retention.

2. When asked to identify up to 3 specific projects or actions that businesses would
like to see in Colma, the most common answers were fill existing vacancies,
brand Colma with a specific identity or sense of place, and create a Town-
wide marketing campaign.

3. When asked to identify Colma attributes that provided advantages to Colma
businesses, the most common answers were freeway access, location and
proximity to BART and SamTrans bus routes.

4. When asked which kinds of development or uses Colma businesses would like to
see in the Town, the most common answers were restaurants, value-based or
off-price retailers, and grocery stores.

5. When asked which kinds of development or uses Colma businesses would NOT like
to see in the Town, the most common answers were value-based or off-price
retailers, convenience stores, and open space.

6. When asked ‘what is the single most important thing Colma could do right now
for Colma businesses’, answers included:

a. Lower rents.

b. Town government could be more business friendly.

c. Help bring customers to Colma.

d. Market Colma as a necropolis – there is no other city in the US like it.

e. Lower taxes.

f. Less city government.



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 9 of 11 

g. Create a business directory on the City website.

h. Pressure landlords to fill vacancies.

i. City should pay for an electronic sign by the freeway to advertise
businesses.

j. Invite businesses to community events.

k. Lower property taxes and lower lease rates.

Resident and Shopper Survey Findings 

In total, the Town received or administered 121 surveys, including 103 from Colma 
residents and an additional 18 from non-residents shopping in Colma. Of the non-
resident shoppers, 1 is a resident of San Bruno, 3 are residents of Pacifica, 4 are 
residents of Daly City, 1 is a resident of South San Francisco and 9 are residents of San 
Francisco.  

Findings from the Resident and Shopper Surveys include: 

1. Most Colma residents shop in Colma at least once each week, or several times
each week, while most non-residents shop in Colma approximately once each
month.

2. Most Colma residents shop in Colma because stores are close to their home and
the businesses where they want to shop are located in Colma. Most non-residents
shop in Colma because the businesses they want are located in Colma.

3. The stores both residents and non-residents list as visiting most frequently are
Target, Home Depot, Kohl’s, Bed Bath & Beyond, Best Buy and Marshalls, in
that order.



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 10 of 11 

4. When asked which stores they wish were available in Colma, responses include
the following specific chains, stores or services:

99 Cent Store Home Goods Nugget Market 

Andersen's Bakery IKEA Pak N Save 

American Apparel In N Out Burger Peet's 

Banana Republic JC Penney Pet Club 

Big Lots K-Mart Safeway 

Borders Little Caesar's Sanraku (sushi restaurant) 

Cheeseburger Cheeseburger Loehmann's Sears 

Chuck E Cheese  Long's Staples 

Costco Lowes Starbucks

Dave and Buster’s Lunardi's Taco Bell 

Draeger’s or Ralph's Supermarkets McDonald's Toys R Us 

DSW Mi Pueblo Walgreen's

Food Maxx Molly Stone’s Walmart 

Fry's Olive Garden Whole Foods 

Gap

5. The majority of respondents agreed with the following statements:

a. If more restaurants were in Colma, I would probably patronize them.

b. I feel like Colma has a strong Town identity.

c. When I shop at Colma businesses, parking is easy.

d. When I shop in Colma, I usually visit more than one store or business in a
single trip.

e. I recommend Colma businesses to my friends, neighbors and coworkers.

f. I like the look and feel of Colma.

g. I shop in Colma because the stores and businesses here are affordable.



Colma Economic Development Strategy 7/20/2009 
Draft Summary of Public Outreach Efforts Page 11 of 11 

6. The majority or close to the majority of respondents make most of their
purchases in the following categories at Colma businesses:

a. Clothing

b. Household items

c. Books, CDs or DVDs

d. Gifts

e. Electronics

f. Items related to a specific hobby (i.e. video games, crafts, cooking, etc.)

7. In addition to answering the multiple choice survey questions, many respondents
also left additional comments. These comments included several requesting a
grocery store, and requests to fill existing vacant parcels and buildings.



JUNE 9 STAFF REPORT - ATTACHMENT B









JUNE 9 STAFF REPORT - ATTACHMENT C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	06.09.21 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	2. Minutes - Regular Meeting 05.26.21
	3. Report of Checks Paid - May
	4. Adoption of FY 2021-22 Salary Schedules
	A. Resolution - Salary Schedule Update
	Exhibit A - Salary Schedule


	5. Agreements with the SMC Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District
	A. Resolution - Approving SMCFSLRRD Agreements Colma Creek
	Exhibit A - TOC Maintenance Agreement-BART Portion of the Channel
	Exhibit B - OC Maintenance Agreement-Old Colma Creek

	B. Map of BART Portion of Channel
	C. Map of Old Colma Creek Portion

	6. Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account Project List
	A. Resolution - FY 21 - 22 SB 1 Project List
	B. SB1 FY 21-22 Project List
	C. LSR Projected FY 2021 Revenues

	7. Adoption of FY 2021-22 Budget
	A. Resolution - Appropriating Funds and Adopting the 2021-22 Budget
	B. 2021-22 Proposed Budget
	Annual Budget (Proposed)
	Table of Contents
	Budget Award

	Introductory
	Navigating Through the Digital Budget
	Colma Profile
	Colma Revenues Profile

	Budget Overview
	Economic Assumptions for FY 2021-22
	Town-Wide Financial Summary for Fiscal Year
	Revenues & Expenditure Summary
	Projected Reserve Balance
	Inter-Fund Transfers Summary

	Departmental Budget
	Organizational Chart
	General Government
	City Council
	City Attorney
	City Manager/City Clerk
	Human Resources
	Finance
	General Services
	Debt Services
	Emergency Response

	Public Safety
	Police Administration
	Police Patrol
	Police Communications
	Police Community Services

	Public Works & Planning
	Engineering & Building
	Public Works Maintenance
	Planning
	Facility Operations

	Recreation

	Capital Improvement Plan
	Streets, Sidewalks & Bikeways Projects
	Active Projects
	Annual Roadway Rehabilitation and Preventative Maintenance (906)
	F-Street Retaining Wall (902)
	Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Project (903)

	Future Projects
	Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022-23 through FY 2026-27
	El Camino Real Bicycle & Pedestrian Improvements (923)
	Hillside Boulevard Beautification (901)
	Lawndale and El Camino Real Landscape and Median (956)
	Serramonte Blvd/Collins Ave Roadway Improvement (905)
	Serramonte/Serra Center Signalization (911)

	Closed Projects
	El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan (914)


	Sewer and Storm Drains Projects
	Active Projects
	Future Projects
	Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022-23 through FY 2026-27
	Colma Creek Channel Repairs (934)
	Storm Drain System Assessment and Mapping (972)

	Closed Projects

	City Facilities & Long-Range Plans
	Active Projects
	Colma Museum Facility Repair & Painting (951)
	Creekside Villas Repair and Painting (952)
	Facility Parking Lot Upgrades and Repairs (953)
	General Plan Update (991)
	Housing Element Update (996)
	Zoning Code Update (997)

	Future Projects
	Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022- 23 through FY 2026-27
	Bark Park Upgrade (958)
	Colma Community Center Painting and Repair (960)
	Corporation Yard Car Wash Upgrade (954)
	HVAC System Replacement at Police Station (943)
	Recreation Operation and Facility Master Plan (995)
	Townwide Branding (959)

	Closed Projects
	Climate Action Plan (994)


	Major Equipment, Technology & Fleet
	Active Projects
	Equipment Purchase and Replacement (984)
	Financial Software Replacement (965)
	IT Infrastructure Upgrades (986)
	Vehicle Replacement (987)

	Future Projects
	Projects Funding & Spending Schedule for FY 2022- 23 through FY 2026-27
	Parking Permit Software (981)

	Closed Projects


	Financial Summaries & Forecast
	Historical Revenue and Expenditures (All Funds)
	General Fund Forecast and Assumptions
	Potential Options to Mitigate Insolvency
	Next Step
	Financial Summaries
	General Fund (11, 12, 19)
	Special Revenue and Debt Funds
	Capital Improvement Funds
	Internal Service Fund
	Enterprise Funds


	Appendix
	Appropriation Limit
	Staffing List
	Description of Funds
	Fund Type: General Fund
	Fund Type: Special Revenues
	Fund Type: Capital
	Fund Type: Debt
	Fund Type: Internal Services
	Fund Type: Trust
	Fund Type: Enterprise

	Financial Policies
	Glossary of Terms
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	J
	L
	M
	N
	O
	P
	R
	S
	T
	U
	W
	Y

	Resolutions
	Budget Adoption
	GANN Limit




	8. Economic Development Study Session
	A. Summary of Community Workshop and Survey, July 2009
	B. August 22, 2012 Meeting Notes
	C. Survey Results slide from prior General Plan Update




